2022 SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

Ingredients that Add Value to Life



About this Report



Report Overview

This report is the second sustainability report published by Samyang Holdings. Samyang Holdings is committed to transparently disclosing the directions and outcomes of its sustainable management practices and this second sustainability report was published in June 2023 to actively communicate with stakeholders. This report will be published annually in Korean and English. Through the sustainability report, Samyang Holdings will be able to collect feedback from stakeholders and reflect their views in its business activities.

Reporting Period

The reporting period included in this report is from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and the report contains the sustainable management activities and performance of Samyang Holdings. To track quantitative performance, data from the last three years, from 2020 to 2022, have been included for comparison. In addition, some items on qualitative activities may include data from the first half of 2023, in considraton of the time of publication.

Reporting Scope

This report contains the activities and achievements promoted by Samyang Holdings and Samyang Group. The financial data in this report accord with the consolidation standards of the Korean International Financial Reporting Standards (K-IFRS). For non-financial data, sustainable management performance information has been collected from all business sites in Korea. In any cases where there is a difference in the reporting scope, this fact is explained within the report.

Reporting Principles and Standards

This report was prepared in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards 2021, the principles of the Sustainable Development Goals of the UN Global Compact, and the requirements of the SASB. Financial performance was reported based on the consolidated financial statements of Samyang Holdings according to K-IFRS.

Third-party Verification

The financial information in this report has been verified through an accounting audit performed by an independent audit firm. In order to ensure its objectivity, fairness, and reliability, this report was verified by an independent assurance provider Korea Management Registrar (KMR) that has no interest relations with Samyang Holdings.

Inquiries

The sustainability report of Samyang Holdings is available for viewing and downloading on the company's website (www.samyang.com). Contact us for more details or inquiries.

Address | 31, Jongno 33-gil, Jongno-gu, Seoul, Republic of Korea
 Tel | +82-2-740-7672
 Responsible Department | ESG Team
 Email | esg.syc@samyang.com



Contents

Overview

CEO Message	
Introduction of Group	
History	
Introduction of Business Sites	
Business Areas	

ESG Journey

04

05

06

07 09

ESG Management System	13
2022 Highlights	15
Stakeholder Engagement	17
Materiality Assessment	18
Material ESG Issues	19

ESG Performance

Environmental

Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response	23
Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances	34

Social

Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities	38
Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety	45
Strengthening Information Security	50
Expansion of Social Contribution Activities	54
Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance	59
Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development	67
Suppliers ESG Risk Management	72

Governance

Corporate Governance	76
Ethics and Compliance Management	83
Advancement of Business Portfolio	86

Appendix

ESG Facts & Figures	95
GRI Index	101
SASB	104
Awards and Associations	105
Independent Assurance Statement	106



INTERACTIVE PDF

Go to Home

This report was published in an interactive PDF format, which enables viewers to follow links to related pages within the report.

- \equiv Go to Contents
- (b) Go to Previous page

04

+ CEO Message

CEO Message



Samyang Holdings President and CEO, Eom Tae-Ung





Dear respected stakeholders of Samyang Holdings And Samyang Group, thank you for showing interest in Samyang Holdings And Samyang Group.

"We will establish an ESG roadmap for Samyang Group to create a sustainable future."

Samyang Group aims to create positive and long-term value through conservation, social responsibility, and transparent and effective governance for a sustainable future. To this end, Samyang Holdings has established ESG management goals at the group level and implemented nine key initiatives, starting with the first publication of its sustainability report last year. As a holding company, Samyang Holdings will do its best to establish an ESG roadmap for the environment, society, and governance to the extent that its affiliates can move in one direction to practice ESG management to achieve sustainable growth with all stakeholders.

Strengthened Business Portfolio Based on Eco-friendly Materials

Samyang Innochem, a chemical affiliate of Samyang Holdings, developed the white biomaterial isosorbide for the first time in Korea and the second time in the world in 2014, and began 15,000 tons of commercial production of the material last year. Moving forward, we plan to gradually expand the scope of isosorbide's applications and contribute to the growth of the white bio industry in Korea through cooperative research on the development and application of various eco-friendly materials. In addition, we will expand the scope of eco-friendly business by pioneering new global markets in regions such as North America and Europe.

Practicing Social Responsibility by Protecting Human Rights

Samyang Holdings intends to practice its social responsibility by protecting human rights in various aspects, such as respect for workers' rights and safety, protecting customers' personal information, and cooperating with suppliers. We have obtained approval from the ESG Committee by establishing an in-house human rights management policy, and we strive to improve the working environment and promote participation and dialogue for all employees by providing human rights education and introducing grievance processes. In addition, we intend to build trust with customers by handling their personal information in a lawful and secure manner, while realizing responsible management through a fair performance evaluation system.

Establishing ESG Management System across the Group

As the center of Samyang Group's ESG management, Samyang Holdings aims to spread the principles and values of sustainable management to each affiliate, and strengthen ESG execution by cooperating with its affiliates. The ESG Committee, which was launched this year, will identify various topics and issues related to ESG areas and continue to implement improvement measures. We will also discuss the implementation status of overall ESG management at the level of the Board of Directors and prioritize its impact on the environment and society in the management decision-making process.

Sustainable management is one of the most important management principles of our time. Moving forward, Samyang Holdings will continue to research and develop as a company to better understand the needs and expectations of all stakeholders and to provide sustainable products and solutions. Moreover, we will make efforts to improve eco-friendly production and energy efficiency, and fulfill our social responsibilities by promptly responding to social issues. We will also make every effort to secure the sustainable competitiveness of the entire corporate ecosystem through win-win growth programs with suppliers and respect for employees. We look forward to your interest and support in the sustainable future that Samyang Group is creating.

Thank you.

Samyang	Holdings	2022	Sustainability	/ Report
---------	----------	------	----------------	----------

(≣)(ອ

SOCIAL

APPENDIX

OVERVIEW + Introduction of Group

Introduction of Group

Samyang, which has continued to create and innovate for the rich life of mankind, will leap forward as a global company by delivering new values to the world.

ESG JOURNEY

ENVIRONMENTAL

Since its foundation in 1924, Samyang Group has contributed to the improvement of the quality of life of the people and the development of the national economy by practicing management based on integrity and trust. Since the launch of the holding company system in November 2011, Samyang Holdings has been providing special value to customers by strengthening global competitiveness and specializing in four core businesses: chemical, food, biopharmaceutical, and packaging. In line with this, we will discover new businesses for sustainable growth to build a future-oriented business portfolio, and actively respond to the 4th industrial revolution through digital innovation. In addition, Samyang aims to foster innovation by not being complacent with our current methods. Through research and development (R&D), Samyang will further strengthen collaboration system with leading global companies, striving to become a company with world-class capabilitie. Samyang realizes innovation in corporate culture and changes in the way it works through the practice of six values: 'trust, initiative, innovation, talent, customer-oriented, and performance-oriented' that Samyang should think and act on.

Name of Group	Samyang	lng	Ingredients that Add Value to Life				
Date of Foundation	October 1924 (founded as Samsu Company)		\sim				
Listing	Samyang Corporation listed in 1968						
CEO	Eom Tae-Ung, Lee Young-Joon	Goal	Company-wide Strategy	Samyang Value			
Headquarters Address	31, Jongno 33-gil, Jongno-gu, Seoul, Republic of Korea	Samyang did not stop creating values in new fields	Samyang is competitive with extraordinary strategies and	Samyang people share and practice six core values to			
Business Areas	Chemicals, food, biopharmaceuticals, packaging, IT services	with the advancement of its core business.	initiatives for sustainable success.	achieve corporate goals and visions.			
Affiliates	12 domestic and 6 overseas affiliates	i	÷	E			
Sales (*1)	KRW 4.9 trillion						
Current Net Income (*1)	KRW 212.8 billion	Achieving solid growth in core businesses	Choice and focus Securing a leading	• Trust, initiative, innovation, talent			
Total Assets (*1)	KRW 6.5 trillion	Securing future growth platforms in new	market position in the core markets	Customer-oriented, performance-oriented			
Number of Employees (*2)	3,648 people	business areas	 Building the foundation for new growth drivers Differentiating through 				
1) Simple sum of all business sites o	of group companies for the year ended 31 December 2022		innovation				

(*2) For all business sites of group companies, as of the end of December 2022

OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPENDIX	06
+ History						

History

Meet Samyang's 100-year journey that has enriched and filled our lives with convenience.

2011 _ 2022 1924 1900s 2010s 2020s 2020~2022 1924 1955 1979 2011 Launched packaging business Switched to a holding company system Merged with Samyang Biopharm Founded Samsu Company Launched food business Founded Samyang Holdings Completed construction of the Ulsan Manufactured the first PET bottles in Acquired NC Chem, a fine chemical company Sugar Manufacturing Plant South Korea for semiconductors 2016~2018 Samyang Holdings completed construction of Completed construction of the Samyang the Suture Plant in Hungary **Discovery Center** 1931 1969 1996 Completed construction of the Gunsan Launched chemical business Launched biopharmaceutical Changed the company name to Completed construction of the Gunsan Plant Isosorbide (ISB) Plant for Samyang Innochem 'Samyang Corporation' business Completed construction of the for Samyang Fine Technology



Founded Samsu Company



Changed the name of the company to Samyang Corporation



Jeonju Polyester Plant

Launched food business



Completed construction of the Jeonju Polyester Plant



Completed construction of the

Daedeok Pharmaceuticals Plant

Manufactured the first PET bottles in South Korea



Completed construction of the Daedeok Pharmaceuticals Plant



personal care materials

Acquired KCI, a company specialized in

Founded Samyang Biopharm USA

Founded Samyang Holdings



Completed construction of the Samyang Discovery Center



Acquired NC Chem, a fine chemical company for semiconductors



Completed construction of the Gunsan Isosorbide (ISB) Plant for Samyang Innochem

OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPENDIX	07
----------	-------------	---------------	--------	------------	----------	----

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

Introduction of Business Sites

Business Sites in Korea

(≣)(ອ)

Samyang Group manages business and research activities, mainly at its Headquarteres in Jongno, Seoul, Samyang Discovery Center in Pangyo, and Chemical Research Center in Daejeon. Samyang runs various manufacturing plants for food, chemicals, biopharmaceuticals, and packaging products in locations including Ulsan, Incheon, Daejeon, Jeonju, Yeosu, and, Jincheon, to secure an efficient and stable production capacity.

+ Introduction of Business Sites



07

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

	OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPENDIX	08
--	----------	-------------	---------------	--------	------------	----------	----

+ Introduction of Business Sites

Overseas Business Sites

(≡)(5)

Samyang Group has expanded its Business sites to operate manufacturing corporations in China (Shanghai), Vietnam, and Hungary. We are focusing on expanding the global market with separate offices in Japan (Tokyo), China (Shanghai and Shenzhen), USA (New York), and Vietnam (Hanoi). In the biopharmaceutical business, Samyang is working to invent innovative new drugs by operating Samyang Biopharm USA in Boston, Massachusetts, U.S. through open innovation with global pharmaceutical companies.



Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report	OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPENDIX	09
$(\mathbf{\hat{n}}) \equiv \mathbf{\hat{o}}$	+ Business Areas						

Business Areas

Samyang Group aims to grow into a global enterprise that supplies specialty ingredients and solutions for health & wellness, advanced materials, and eco-friendly fields in chemical, food, pharmaceutical bio, packaging, and new businesses. To this end, Samyang is focusing on finding new growth drivers in the future along with improving the existing business structure and securing global, digital, and convergence technology capabilities.

Vision		Ingredients that Add Value to Life						
Pursuit		To be	ecome a global ei	nterprise that supplies special	ty ingredients and solution	and solutions for health & wellness, advanced materials, and eco-friendly		
Company-wide Strategy		In	proving the exis	ing business structure			Finding new growth drive	ers
		Chemicals		Food	Biopharmaceutica	al	Packaging	NEW
	Transfor	ming core growth pi	llars	Adding values to the food ingredients business	Expanding the global sale biodegradable suture		ing the leadership of the packaging business	Health & Wellness
	Fost	ering next-generatior growth drivers	n Tran	sforming the business structure for food ingredients	Expanding the IMD (Increm Modified Drug) anticancer dr Expanding CDMO busin	rug R&D Improving	the profitability of the name	Advanced materials
		ing stable profits fror xisting businesses		Expanding Sangkwaehwan (TOMORROW) and seeking new business opportunities	Developing gene transl vector techniques Developing new mRNA d	Enhancing	plastic recycling business	Eco-friendly businesses
Business Capabilities		G	obal		Digital		Convergent technolo	ogies (organic synthesis and bio)
iystem		Governance	e	Human resource an	d culture	Risk management		ESG
alues		🕅 Trust	Å	Initiative 🔅	Innovation	≣≞ Talent	Customer-oriented	Performance-oriente
Business Status	Business	Sales		Affiliated companies			Key products and services	
(As of the End of December 2022)	Chemicals	KRW 2.8 trillion	Samyang Kasei, Sam	Samyang Corporation (Chemical), Samyang Innochem, Samnam Petrochemical, Samyang Kasei, Samyang Fine Technology, Samyang Engineering Plastics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Samyang EP Hungary, Samyang EP Vietnam, KCI, NC Chem		Engineering plastics, ion exchange resin, display materials, Terephthalic Acid (TPA), Polycarbonate Resin (PCR), Bisphenol A (E Isosorbide (ISB), polymers in personal care, surfactants, precision chemical materials for semiconductors, etc.		
		KRW 1.5 trillion	Samyang Corporation (food)		Sugar, starch homemade	Sugar, starch, starch sweetener, processed fat, cooking oil, flour, premix ingredients, sugar alcohol, allulose, resistant dextrin, homemade mix products, Sangkwaehwan (EASY TOMORROW), frozen bakery product, food ingredients distribution, cosmetic:		
	Food	10001000	Samyang Holdings, Samyang Biopharm USA, Samyang Biopharm Hunga			Anti-cancer druge anti-cancer ADIs (Active Dharmaceutical Ingradients), developing new druge hiedegradah		
	Food Biophar- maceutical	KRW 112.5 billion	Samyang Holding	s, Samyang Biopharm USA, Samyang				
	Biophar-		, , , ,	s, Samyang Biopharm USA, Samyang Ig, Samyang Ecotech	sutures, he	emostatic agents, lifting thread		r fillers, etc.

ESG JOURNEY

+ Business Areas

Chemical Business

We are creating a more abundant and convenient daily life by developing good materials that are the basis of our lives. The chemical business has secured stable results in existing businesses centered on polycarbonate chains, while reorganizing its business portfolio centered on specialty solutions to focus on discovering new business opportunities in eco-friendly, advanced industries and personal care.

Business Areas

Company Name

 Samyang Corporation (Chemical)
 www.samyangcorp.com

► Samyang Engineering

Engineering plastics, ion exchange resin, column spacers, organic insulating membranes, materials for displays

Plastics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd www.samyangepsh.com Samyang EP Hungary www.samyangcorp.com

Samyang EP Vietnam www.samyangcorp.com

Samnam Petrochemical www.samnam.co.kr

► KCI

www.kciltd.com

www.ncchem.co.kr

► NC Chem

Samyang Kasei

www.samyangkasei.com

Samyang Innochem

www.samyanginnochem.com
Samyang Fine Technology

www.samyangfinetechnology.com

PCR (Polycarbonate Resin)

BPA (Bisphenol A), ISB (Isosorbide)

TPA (Terephthalic Acid)

Uniform ion exchange resin

Conditioning polymers, surfactant products

Precision chemical materials for semiconductors (photoresist material, wet chemical)



Food Business

We are creating healthy and delicious life energy through the development of high value-added food ingredients, distribution of food ingredients, and CPG (consumer packaged goods) products. Based on solid basic food ingredients such as sugar, starch sweetener, and flour, the food business is also securing leadership in specialty food ingredients through sweeteners 'allulose' and soluble dietary fiber 'resistant dextrin'. In addition, we provide hangover relief product 'Q.one Sangkwaehwan (EASY TOMORROW)' for those who want to have a refreshing morning after drinking. The food service distribution business is strengthening its online sales activities by expanding its lineup of frozen habitats and establishing digital channels.

Business Areas

Food ingredients

Specialty ingredients

CPG (consumer packaged goods) 'Nexweet® and Fiberest®'
samyangspecialty.com
'
Samyang Corporation 'Sangk-

Company Name

Samyang Corporation 'Q.one'

www.qone.co.kr

▶ Samyang Corporation

waehwan (EASY TOMORROW)' www.easytomorrow.com

Samyang Corporation 'ServeQ.' www.serveq.co.kr





Food Service distribution

ESG JOURNEY

+ Business Areas

Biopharmaceutical Business

We are creating healthy and vibrant life energy through innovative, high-value healthcare new products. Based on its differentiated technology, the pharmaceutical bio business is focusing its development capabilities on various research such as improved drugs using a drug delivery system (DDS), nextgeneration bio drugs to lead future treatments, and medical devices (MD) using advanced biodegradable materials.

Busin	less /	Areas	

Medical devices

(≣)(ອ)

Pharmaceuticals

Developing new drugs

Company Name ► Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group www.samyangbiopharm.com Samyang Biopharm Hungary ► Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

► Samyang Holdings Biopharm USA

Packaging Business

We lead the domestic market in all areas of PET packaging such as aseptic, preform, and beverage OEM, and provides the pleasure of enjoying delicious drinks anytime, anywhere. The packaging business is a leading PET packaging company with the largest production facilities and the best manufacturing capabilities in Korea, and leads the market by providing drinks and packaging solutions tailored to customer needs. In particular, through the aseptic filling system and PET bottle recycling business, we dream of becoming a world-class packaging company.

PET preform, PET bottle, aseptic

PET recycling (recycled PET chip & flake)

Company Name

Samyang Packaging www.samyangpackaging.co.kr

Samyang Ecotech www.samyangpackaging.co.kr/kr/ business/pet-recycling

Other Businesses

In the cosmetics business, Samyang's differentiated technology and bio-technology are incorporated into cosmetics products to properly and effectively convey beneficial ingredients to the skin. The IT business provides high-quality IT services to help customers and companies achieve the highest competitiveness based on the experience and technology accumulated in the information service field.

Business Areas	Company Name
Cosmetics	 Samyang Corporation (Cosmetics) www.aboutmeshop.com
IT services	Samyang Data Systems www.syds.com







About Me



Samyang Data Systems

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

A)	(\equiv)	(\mathcal{O})	
		(\mathbf{O})	

ESG Journey

- ESG Management System
- 2022 Highlights
- Stakeholder Engagement
- Materiality Assessment
- Material ESG Issues

(≡)(

13

+ ESG Management System

ESG Management System

Direction of ESG Management System

1 We Grow for a Sustainable Future for Everyone.

Samyang Group systemized its values, such as principles and trust, and selected its ESG management goals and tasks considering the trend. After establishing the ESG management system, we strive to make all subsidiaries implement sustainable management at the global level. The reinforcement of ESG business portfolios and ESG management system advancement have been selected as the key tasks. Based on this, we will make short-term and mid- to long-term improvement plans and do the prioritized tasks accordingly.

2 We Think about the Environment for Tomorrow that Everyone Dreams of.

We continue to discover and improve factors that affect the environment to protect the environment and enable humanity to lead affluent and convenient lives.

3 We Do our Best to Create a Society where We can Prosper Together.

We strive to fulfill our social responsibility by seeking to provide support to the local community, happiness to our members, collaboration with suppliers, and to become a company that consumers can trust.

We Practice Transparent Management that Everyone can Trust and Rely on.

We seek stable corporate management and protection of shareholders' rights and interests by creating a transparent management environment by complying with ethical management and compliance management and establishing a sustainable management system based on the right governance.

6 We Pledge to Establish and Implement Ethical Management Principles.

In the process of expanding and growing our business, we strive to maintain ethical management principles by building mutual trust with various stakeholders such as customers, shareholders, and suppliers.

ESG Management System Advancement



Sugar reduction / Bionutrients

Materials for personal care

Gene therapy / Medical aesthetics

Semiconductor materials Mobility & energy materials

Recycled plastic

Bio plastics

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sust	tainability Report
----------------------------	--------------------

+ ESG Management System

ESG History and Future

)(≣)(ຽ

Samyang Group is pursuing sustainable growth by considering environmental, social, and governance aspects in its management activities. To this end, we are strengthening mutual trust and cooperation by transparently disclosing ESG management activities to stakeholders and promoting communication management. We continue to strive for sustainable growth and are actively engaged in ESG.

Samyang Group ESG HISTORY

ESG Roadmap



APPENDIX

+ 2022 Highlights

2022 Highlights

(≣)(ອ)

Environmental

ISO1400

Efforts for Eco-friendly Management

Eco-friendly Biomaterial 'Isosorbide'

- Samyang Innochem developed eco-friendly adhesive for electric vehicles using 'Isosorbide'



All Domestic Business Sites of Samyang Corporation Acquire ISO 14001 for Environmental Management System

- Acquired ISO 14001, a global environmental management system standard

Acquired an Eco-friendly Certification

- Samyang Corporation's Q.one white and brown sugar acquired domestic sugar's first low-carbon product certification
- Samyang Corporation received a commendation from the Minister of Environment for promoting eco-friendly technology

Green Technology Convention for the Protection of the Earth

- Samyang Innochem and Kukdo Chemical signed MOU for research in eco-friendly biomaterials

- Samyang Corporation accelerated eco-friendly business by launching waste fishing net recycling business



Samyang Group Organized ECO-100 PLOGGING Event to Celebrate its 98th Anniversary



Social 🛈

Strengthening Safety and Health Activities

Safety and Health Award and Certification

ENVIRONMENTAL

 Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group received A-Grade for safety and health co-prosperity cooperation program organized by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency and Daejeon Regional Employment and Labor Office
 Incheon Plant 2 of Samyang Corporation was recognized as 'Excellent Workplace for Risk Assessment' by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency
 Samyang Innochem acquired KOSHA-MS (Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency - Management System) certification



Safety and Health Activities

- Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group held a 2022 Safety Resolution Conference
- Samyang Kasei conducted VR safety experience education with the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency



(≣)(ອ)

16

+ 2022 Highlights

Social 2

Fostering Win-Win Growth

Company that Grows Together

- Samyang Corporation released 'neighborhood bakery's cake recipe' for free during Christmas season



Fostering Win-Win Growth

Yangyoung and Sudang Foundations donated 2022 scholarships
Sudang Foundation held the 31st Sudang Prize Ceremony
Samyang Group donates KRW 300 million for neighborhood to the

- sampang Group donates RRW 300 million to helpholmood to the Community Chest of Korea - Samyang Group donated KRW 200 million to help residents recover

from forest fires on the east coast



Social 3

Steps Toward Human Rights Management

ڑ<u>ے</u>

Establishing and Publishing Human Rights Management Policy

- Approved the ESG Committee on human rights management policy

Expanding the Communication Channels

 Expanded communication with employees and customers through metaverse

Labor-Management Co-prosperity Workshop

- Samyang Fine Technology conducted labor-management co-prosperity workshop



Governance 1

Establishing ESG Management System

Established ESG Management System

ESG management system advancement
 Strengthened ESG business portfolio
 Established an ESG roadmap

Established Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee



Governance 2

Advancement of Business Portfolio

Technical Convention for Advancement

- Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group established partnership with LG Chemical to develop new anti-cancer drugs

R&D Capabilities Enhancement

- Launched Bio-Convergence Research Center - Held Samyang Innovation R&D Fair



(♠)(≡)(৩

APPENDIX

+ Stakeholder Engagement

ENVIRONMENTAL

Stakeholder Engagement

Definition and Communication of Stakeholders

Samyang Holdings defines shareholders and investors, suppliers, employees, customers, non-profit organizations, and associations as important stakeholder groups, taking into account their legal, financial, and operational responsibilities and impact. Samyang Holdings recognizes that communication with stakeholders is critical, and to this end, we establish and operate communication channels for each stakeholder. We provide space and methods for conversation by key stakeholder groups, listen to and analyze various opinions of each stakeholder, and reflect them in the corporate management process based on this. Through these efforts, Samyang Holdings has led to close cooperation and communication with stakeholders, identifying major interests of each stakeholder, establishing strategies to cope with them, and achieving continuous development and growth.

	Shareholders and Investors	Suppliers	Employees	Customers	Non-profit Organizations and Associations
	\$			()	
Major Interests of Stakeholders	 Maximizing shareholder value Advancement of Business Portfolio ESG risk management Transparency of governance Stable financial performance 	• • Sustainable transactions • Suppliers selection criteria • Fair transaction compliance	 Fair performance evaluation and compensation Safety management at business sites Welfare benefits Support for strengthening employee competency 	• • Product quality • Managing product safety • Customer complaints handling	 Transparency of governance Social responsibility for local communities and the environment
Communication Channels	 Regular and special meetings of shareholders IR disclosure data (Business reports, sustainability report) 	 Visiting suppliers Purchase information system Activities to support win-win growth 	 Labor-management councils In-house grievance channels Company newsletters Metaverse Town hall meeting 	Customer center Customer satisfaction Website Social media	 Press release data Business reports Related councils
«Response Activities	 Reporting business performance through regular disclosures Sophisticating medium to long- term business strategies 	 Supporting the technologies and management of suppliers Educating suppliers 	 Conducting education programs to strengthen the competency of employees Promotion of Organizational Culture Enhancement Activities Building a fair performance evaluation system 	Collecting customer feedback Conducting activities that promote sales and marketing	 Preventing unfair practices and corruption Disclosing corporate governance reports Disclosing sustainability report

(≡)(

Materiality Assessment Results

18

+ Materiality Assessment

Materiality Assessment

Materiality Assessment Process

Samyang Holdings conducted a materiality assessment by applying the concept of double materiality assessment published in the GRI standard and the EU Corporate Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (CSRD) to understand what issues should be managed to promote sustainable management. Double materiality takes into account both the insideout impact of a company's management activities associated with sustainable management issues and the outsidein impact of each issue on its management activities. Samyang Holdings selected 10 material issues that are important for Samyang Holdings' sustainable management out of a total of 30 issue pools by comprehensively considering the impact of the company and society on each other through the double materiality assessment.



- Analysis of global standards and assessment elements: Reviewed the reporting requirements based on related standards, such as GRI Standards, UNGC, SASB, MSCI, and KCGS
- Media analysis: Analyzed news articles related to Samyang Holdings to analyze external stakeholders' awareness
- Benchmarking: Identified material issues reported by similar companies in domestic area and overseas by analyzing sustainability reports
- The issue pool is composed by analyzing the material issues of four listed companies (Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI) of Samyang Group
 Analysis of material issues in the previous year

Materiality Assessment Social and environmental impact analysis

- Assessed the relevance of sustainable management issues derived through internal and external environmental analysis such as global standards and evaluation factors, media, and benchmarking
- Online survey of stakeholders from Samyang Holdings, from March 23rd to April 5th to analyze ESG issues and gather feedback
- Financial impact analysis

- Analysis of financial impact on internal management issues and ESG issues

STEP 03



- Selected 10 material issues by determining priorities among material topics and undergoing review by management
- Determined the reporting levels of material issues, such as scope, boundary, and period, and established plans for preparing reports

• Reported to ESG Committee to gain approval of material issues



Importance to Business

High ●●● Medium ●●○ Low ●○○

Environment Society Governance

Classification	Issue	Social and Environmental Impact	Financial Impact	GRI Topic	Reporting Page
	Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response	•••		GRI 305, 306	23~33
	Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances			GRI 305, 306	34~36
	Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities		•••	GRI 403	38~44
	Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety	•••		GRI 416, 417	45~49
Material	Strengthening Information Security			GRI 418	50~53
Issues	Expansion of Social Contribution Activities		•00	GRI 413	54~58
	Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance			GRI 402, 405, 406, 407	59~66
	Corporate Governance			GRI 201	76~82
	Ethics and Compliance Management		•••	GRI 205, 206	83~85
	Advancement of Business Portfolio			-	86~93

∩)(≡)(𝔅

19

+ Material ESG Issues

Material ESG Issues

Samyang Holdings identified stakeholder relevance and business significance by conducting surveys of internal and external stakeholders and experts before publishing its sustainability report. Based on this research, Samyang Holdings selected 10 material issues. The materiality assessment process carried out to identify the material issues is disclosed on page 18 of this report.

There have been some changes to the material issues in 2022 compared to 2021. 'Flexible organizational culture and work-life balance' were evaluated as important factors for company's sustainable growth and were selected as a material issue. 'Eco-friendly management and climate change response' reflects the importance of a holding company's roles and responsibilities in supporting and cooperating with group companies to enhance corporate value and competitiveness. 'ethics and compliance management', 'expansion of social contribution activities', and 'strengthening information security' include the commitment to integrate the Group ESG management into the corporate business strategy to drive the qualitative growth of Samyang Group.

Samyang Holdings will systematically respond to the material issues selected through its materiality assessment, disclose outcomes by annually publishing its sustainability report, and actively communicate with stakeholders. Moreover, by performing the materiality assessment for the sustainability report, Samyang Holdings will identify ESG trends and the interests of stakeholders, integrate into corporate strategies, and strengthen ESG management.

GOVERNANCE

Samyang Holdings reviewed the reasons for selecting each of the 10 material issues during the materiality assessment. The current responses of Samyang Holdings, major outcomes, and goals that can contribute to the UN SDGs* were analyzed as follows. More details are presented in the Environmental, Social, and Governance section of this report.

Classification	Material Issues	Background of Selection	Issue Management Strategy	Major Activities and Outcomes	UN SDGs(*)
Environmental	Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response	Climate change due to global warming continues, and the frequency and damage of natural disasters are increasing. This situation is directly related to the operations of the enterprise. Companies are increasingly subject to regulations from the international community, as well as direct risks such as increased costs due to environmental destruction and damage to facilities due to disasters. In addition, as international agreements have been signed to respond to climate change, and national and local governments are also tightening regulations on eco-friendly management and climate change, companies need to respond preemptively.	Samyang Group has established and operated an Environment, Safety, Health (ESH) system for environmental safety and health management to fulfill corporate social responsibility. In addition, Samyang Group recognizes the role and responsibility of companies in terms of energy and environment, and operates an ESG committee-based eco-friendly management organization. In addition, we are responding to climate change by establishing a 2050 Net Zero Roadmap and preparing for the RE100.	 Built an ESH system for eco-friendly management and reinforeced the environmental management system Prepared for declare RE100 and established the 2050 Net Zero Roadmap Promoted green purchasing Expanded eco-friendly products Cooperated in the development of joint technology for eco-friendly materials 	6 HANNER 17 DECEMBER 18 DECEMBER 19 DECEM
	Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances	Humanity is confronting resource depletion and waste issues and consumption of finite resources is leading to shortages. Consequently, a global transition to a circular economy, focused on resource conservation and recycling, has become imperative. A waste disposal and management system is required, and efforts are needed to reduce the use of harmful chemical substances and prevent safety accidents.	Samyang Holdings strives to minimize waste generation during its business and process processes to promote eco-friendly management. To this end, we identify the causes of waste generation and emission by production item and process, and utilize environmental technology and environmental management technology to operate with minimal waste generation and emission. In addition, Samyang Holdings has established a hazardous chemical substance management system to prevent chemical accidents.	 Managed volumes of waste generated and treated Increased waste recycling rate Built a hazardous chemical substance management system Inspected hazardous chemical substance management 	12 Entranti interaction

(A) (E) (O)

APPENDIX

+ Material ESG Issues

Classification	Material Issues	Background of Selection	Issue Management Strategy	Major Activities and Outcomes	UN SDGs
ocial	Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities	As the importance of corporate social responsibility becomes more prominent, companies are also recognizing responsibility for safety and health issues. As stakeholders' interest in safety and health issues grows, companies must establish and implement systematic strategies to minimize the impact of safety and health in the course of business activities.	Samyang Holdings recognizes the safety and health of employees to be its top priorities and observes the Safety and Health Management Guidelines. Samyang Holdings has built safety and health management systems to strengthen related activities. Through this, we strive to minimize accidents and diseases by increasing employees' responsibility for safety and health and providing a safe working environment.	 Declared the Safety and Health Management Guidelines Safety and health management activities Acquired KOSHA-MS certification Received A-Grade for safety and health co-prosperity cooperation program organized by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency and Daejeon Regional Employment and Labor Office Recognized as 'Excellent Workplace for Risk Assessment' by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency 	8 HORN HAR HA CONTRACT CANN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND
	Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety	Delivering safe products to customers is one of the crucial elemments that shape a company's value and image. Due to unstable economic conditions and growing consumer interest in the environment and safety, production and sales of safe products have become a prerequisite for the survival and continued growth of companies. Therefore, companies must establish a thorough quality management framework to ensure product safety and consider safety at every stage from production to sales and distribution. This is an important factor in protecting the safety of our customers, as well as for their trust in the company and continued growth.	Product safety is critical to the survival and sustainable growth of the company. This is because unsafe products can lose trust from customers and damage the company's image. Accordingly, Samyang Holdings operates a systematic quality management system to increase product safety. We provide safe products to our customers by thoroughly conducting quality inspections at every stage before, during, and after production. In addition, we strive to continuously enhance the safety of our products through safety management activities by production process.	 Operated a well-organized product quality management process Product safety management activities Strengthened the product quality innovation system Improved quality satisfaction 	3 ADDREAD
	Strengthening Information Security	In the era of the 4th industrial revolution, information threats are becoming more intelligent and sophisticated due to technological developments such as big data, artificial intelligence, and the Internet of Things. As a result, information protection for companies and individuals has become very important. Hackers and cyber attackers can leak corporate or personal data in a variety of ways, including malware, ransomware, and spam. Safe system operations and privacy against these cyberattacks are becoming more important.	Information security is one of the issues that Samyang Group considers most important. In the era of the 4th industrial revolution, information security threats continue to increase, so Samyang Group established information security policies and clarified its responsibility for information security to prepare for them. To this end, Samyang Group continues to identify information security risks and prepare countermeasures to ensure the safety and reliability of its organization and personal information.	 Complied with information security policies Strengthened the personal information protection policy Introduced the security system Conducted information security education Conducted mock training for defense against viruses Deployed a disaster recovery system 	16 mee mere weetenen
	Expansion of Social Contribution Activities	Co-prosperity with the community is one of the ways companies fulfill their social responsibility. For co-prosperity with the local community, companies should promote social contribution activities in various fields such as environmental protection, education, culture, and sports. Through this, we can contribute to realizing co-prosperity relationships between companies and communities and establishing a sustainable business environment.	Samyang Group recognizes the importance of social responsibility and strives for co-prosperity with the community. To this end, we run a social foundation and carry out various projects to pursue community development. In addition, we are active in various fields such as education, research, and employment support to foster human resources, and are promoting various social contribution activities to protect the community. Samyang Group develops with the community, pursues sustainable management, and fulfills its social responsibilities.	 Released 'neighborhood bakery's cake recipe' for free during Christmas season Donated KRW 300 million to the Community Chest of Korea Provided scholarships for 2022 through the Yangyoung and Sudang Foundations Held the 31st Sudang Prize Ceremony Donated KRW 200 million to help residents recover from forest fires on the east coast 	9 Materiansen Second Second S
A Lui	Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance	Employees are the most important resource for the growth and development of a company. Organizations with a flexible organizational culture and work-life balance have a positive impact on their employees. Supporting employees' happy working lives and improving their organizational culture are essential factors in achieving sustainable growth.	Samyang Group considers the development of employees' capabilities very important, and we are establishing various support systems to ensure that they can show their best competencies. Employees grow within the organization by cultivating expertise and competencies through the support system, and companies grow again through their growth. In addition, Samyang Group operates various organizational Culture and welfare Programs to support joyful working life for our employees.	 Continuous communication to revitalize organizational culture Organizational culture diagnosis Conducted labor-management co-prosperity workshops Introduced Samyang Group New HR System Operated various welfare systems and programs to revitalize the organizational culture 	4 sources 8 sources are 10 mars 10 m

(▲)(≡)(数)

21

+ Material ESG Issues

Classification	Material Issues	Background of Selection	Issue Management Strategy	Major Activities and Outcomes	UN SDGs
Governance	Corporate Governance	Social interest in corporate governance is increasing. This is because the expertise and independence of governance are essential for companies to continue to grow. In response to this interest, governance-related laws and regulations are being strengthened, and the demand for information disclosure is increasing as the perception that transparent corporate management is important grows. Communication with stakeholders through transparent information disclosure is important, and a solid governance is recognized as an essential element for a company's sustainable management.	Samyang Holdings strives for the soundness of its governance structure and sustainable management. To this end, we strengthen the expertise and independence of directors, and as ESG management demands grow, we create ESG Committee to practice sustainable management. In addition, information is disclosed transparently for communication with stakeholders. Samyang Holdings shares the value created to pursue sustainable growth with stakeholders, and seeks sustainable development.	 Operated the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee Newly established the ESG Committee Transparently disclosed information to users Created and distributed economic value Shareholder friendly management 	8 instruments ins
	Ethics and Compliance Management	As corporate social responsibility becomes increasingly important, laws on ethical management and anti-corruption are being strengthened worldwide. Companies that comply with these regulations and create economic value are emerging as the next generation of key players. Under these circumstances, companies are increasingly required to practice ethical management and compliance management for sustainable management.	Samyang Group has continually practiced ethical management, since its declaration of ethical management goals in 2013. Samyang Group values the Five Principles of Ethical Management, and all employees recognize and comply with Practice Guidelines to implement them.	 Strengthened the ethics and compliance management system Conducted ethics audit Conducted ethics and compliance management education Operated internal whistleblowing channels 	16 metadata terman term
QQQ L	Advancement of Business Portfolio	As uncertainties intensify due to the global economic crisis and pandemic, maintaining growth drivers has become a critical agenda for companies. Under these circumstances, companies need to upgrade their business portfolio and find ways to sustainable growth. Continuous innovation and creative ideas must lead to new markets, customer satisfaction, and competitive growth in existing business areas. To this end, companies must use a variety of means, including redesigning their management strategies, utilizing optimized resources, and actively investing, to secure growth drivers.	Samyang Group provides various products and services in various fields such as chemistry, food, biopharmaceutical, and packaging and not only maintains competitiveness in each field within the group but continues to improve by pursuing mutual connections and synergy. Samyang Group is promoting medium to long-term development of the entire group by upgrading its business structure and optimizing its business portfolio. Through this, Samyang Group aims to secure sustainable growth and competitiveness in the global market.	 Presenting Vision 2025 Launching Bio-Convergence Research Center Samyang Innovation R&D Fair (SIRF) 	9 antine service 9 Sector service 16 Arct Journal Architecture Sector Service Sector Sector

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

(🔒)	(≡)	(O)

23 Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response MATERIAL

34 Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances MATERIAL

Environmental problems and climate change are one of the biggest challenges facing humanity. Extreme weather changes such as heavy rain, heat waves, and forest fires around the world are having such serious effects that they are called the climate crisis. As a result, companies must fulfill their social responsibility by minimizing their environmental impact and pursuing sustainable development. This is a way to ensure the healthy lives and sustainable development of future generations. Samyang Holdings's interest in environmental issues goes beyond just improving corporate reputation and image.

6 CLEAN WATER AND SANTTAILON	7 AFFORDABLE AND CLEAN ENERGY	12 RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION AND PRODUCTION
13 CEDAATE	14 UFE BELOW WATER	

Environmental

 $(\equiv)(\mathfrak{G})$

GOVERNANCE

ENVIRONMENTAL

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

SOCIAL

MATERIAL **Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response**

management

Over the past decade, the Earth's temperature has continued to rise, and abnormal weather conditions caused by global warming have occurred around the world. From this climate crisis, ecofriendly management has become an essential element and standard for corporate management. As a result, major countries around the world are calling for companies to actively participate in eco-friendly policies and climate change responses, and strengthening environmental regulations related to the environment. In line with these changes, Samyang Holdings is pursuing eco-friendly corporate management activities for a better future. Samyang Holdings aims to contribute to the abundant life of mankind and the preservation of the global environment through corporate activities that make life abundant and convenient. To this end, we are promoting eco-friendly management by analyzing global environmental trends and establishing a preemptive response system.

Eco-friendly Management

Eco-friendly Policies and Goals

Samyang Holdings continually discovers and improves factors that affect the environment, thus protecting the environment and actively participating in the cause to make the Earth clean and safeguard abundant and convenient lives of people. Samyang Holdings faithfully abides by domestic environmental regulations and the company's internal environmental policies. Samyang Holdings strives to prevent accidents by preventing factors that potentially affect the environment, such as the leakage of pollutants and fires. Samyang Holdings engages in activities to prevent environmental accidents to contribute to sustainable environmental protection. In addition, Samyang Holdings promotes eco-friendly management by raising awareness of accident prevention measures and environmental protection through the education and training of all employees and suppliers.



Eco-friendly Management Organization System

Samyang Holdings has established an ESG Committee to promote environmental management throughout the company. The ESG Committee makes key decisions about environmental management, and the management of each business sector is responsible for managing environmental policy implementation and performance. In addition, the ESG Committee oversees risk management and performance improvement activities for environmental management. The ESG Committee actively expresses Samyang Holdings' commitment to eco-friendly management through active communication with stakeholders by establishing and achieving goals in accordance with environmental management policy. Not only Samyang Holdings, but also Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI establish an ESG Committee to practice eco-friendly management. Through this, Samyang Group pursues eco-friendly management throughout the group and values environmental protection and social responsibility. Samyang Holdings establishes environmental goals for each business site and implements detailed practice plans to promote eco-friendly management in an organized manner. Each business site operates an environmental management department to attain the goals established. Each team conducts environmental management activities, inspects conditions, and reports outcomes to the CEO. We make company-wide decisions for eco-friendly management through this process.

Environmental Management Policy

Samyang Holdings established environmental management policy to continuously improve environmental performance and minimize the negative environmental impact of business activities and value chains through eco-friendly management under the management philosophy of 'a company that make our lives abundant and convenient.' We apply this environmental management policy to all businesses sites and encourage our suppliers and contract suppliers to comply with this environmental management policy. The environmental management policy was proposed and approved by the ESG Committee of Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI of four listed companies in Samyang Group, and is disclosed on the Samyang Group website.

(≡)(ຽ

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

mental Management Guidelin

- We faithfully comply with laws and standards related to the domestic and foreign environment and fulfills corporate social responsibilities by cooperating with eco-friendly policies of each countries and institutions.
- We actively strive to minimize carbon emissions and achieve the 2050 Net Zero goal by
 effectively managing resources and energy consumption.
- We minimize the generation of waste and pollutants and increase resource recycling.
- We strengthen environmental management awareness and encourage active participation through education and training for all employees and suppliers.

C Environmental Management Policy

Samyang Holdings Environmental Education Status in 2022

SOCIAL

(Unit: Training time/hour, Number of people who completed/person)

APPENDIX

		Total	Number of p	people who completed		
Course title	Hours of education	hours of education	Pharmaceutical Plant	MD Plant	Gongju Plant	Total number of people
Technical worker and manager course	16	96	2	1	3	6
Training for technical personnel and managers in charge of hazardous chemicals	16	864	43	8	3	54
Training for hazardous chemicals handling (person in charge)	2	520	41	197	22	260
Training for hazardous chemical workers	32	32	1	0	0	1
Total	66	1,512	87	206	28	321

Building an ESH System for Eco-friendly Management

Samyang Holdings has formed an integrated ESH system to further advance and standardize our work process and aims to manage various indicators related to ESH management. The integrated ESH system intends to proactively respond to environmental and safety laws and minimize legal risks. Samyang Holdings manages environmental, safety, and health data with an advanced ESG management system.

Education for environmental managers

Environmental Management Education

We conduct regular education for environment-related workers to prevent environmental risks. In particular, we faithfully implement education for employees who manage, handle, or are engaged in activities related to hazardous chemical substances pursuant to the Chemical Substances Control Act. In addition, we are taking the lead in raising environmental awareness of employees by giving them time to familiarize themselves with environmental issues and policies through occasional education. In addition, we provide environmental education to our suppliers to strengthen their environmental capabilities and raise their awareness of environmental management.

Green Purchasing

Samyang Holdings observes environmental laws to fulfill its social responsibility and promotes lowcarbon, green purchasing to take account of environmental factors in the early stage of purchasing. Samyang Holdings preferentially purchases products with environmental marks, recycling certifications, energy-saving marks, waste reduction, and other environmental certifications to save resources and reduce environmental pollution. By continually purchasing such eco-friendly products, Samyang Holdings fulfills its social responsibility as a sustainable company. The green purchasing policy was proposed and approved by the ESG Committee of Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI of four listed companies in Samyang Group, and is disclosed on the Samyang Group website.

Green Product Criteria



+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

SOCIAL



(≡)(ຽ

Ecological conservation activities



Marine conservation activities



Natural purification activities

Environmental Preservation Activities

Samyang Group participates in various environmental protection activities by operating programs that link the company to local regions. Various business sites of the Group located around the country practice the One-Company, One-Stream Purification Campaign to preserve clean nature. In addition, Samyang Group has formed mutual relationships with farming villages near its business sites in cooperation with NongHyup to increase the understanding of farming village residents and pursue the balanced development of companies and farmers. Through periodic labor-management collaboration, Samyang Group conducts marine preservation activities to protect nature. There are other environmental preservation activities in place, such as road cleaning and pagoda volunteer activities.

Samyang Group is also carrying out environmental conservation activities with its suppliers. Samyang Group reflected on the meaning of eco-friendly co-prosperity as a member of the community by holding tree planting events on the site and environmental beautification activities in the plant-based industrial district with its suppliers. Moving forward, we will regularly carry out activities to strengthen partnerships through corporate citizenship activities with our suppliers. Samyang Group conducts various environmental campaigns, and employees of each company within Samyang Group have enthusiastically demonstrated their commitment to improving the environment. Samyang Group's Eco Challenge is an employee-participating environmental protection by achieving goals such as saving energy, reducing waste and plastic, and reducing carbon emissions. Samyang Group joins the efforts to adopt small practices in everyday life to hand down a better environment to future generations.

Biodiversity Conservation

Samyang Holdings recognizes the importance of restoring natural ecosystems and preserving biodiversity. Accordingly, we investigate the potential impact of group projects on biodiversity in the surrounding areas, and establish and manage biodiversity policy to minimize negative impacts. The biodiversity policy was proposed and approved by the ESG Committee of Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI of four listed companies in Samyang Group, and is disclosed on the Samyang Group website.

Biodiversity Policy

GOVERNANCE

- Samyang Holdings will take necessary investigations and measures to prevent and mitigate factors and causes that threaten biodiversity in the business sites and new projects.
- Samyang Holdings will prioritize the protection of endangered rare and endemic species and support regional, national and global biodiversity protection initiatives. We will also provide relevant information to employees and stakeholders to increase their knowledge and understanding of biodiversity protection issues.
- Samyang Holdings complies with relevant environmental regulations concerning air pollution prevention, wastewater discharge, waste reduction, and adopts stricter management practices. Through initiatives like 'One Company, One Stream' campaign and 'plogging' within the company, we aim to minimize our environmental impact and strive to ensure no loss of biodiversity and create a positive impact on biodiversity.

Biodiversity policy

CASE STUDY

Samyang Group

ECO-100 PLOGGING

In October 2022, Samyang Group held 'ECO-100 Plogging', an 98th foundation event, at 11 civic parks along the Han River in Seoul and rivers and parks near 23 local business sites across the country, with 450 employees participating. Samyang Group practiced environmental protection and provided a place for communication with employees through plogging, an eco-friendly campaign that picks up trash while jogging.



26

 + Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response



Samyang Innochem ISO 14001 certificate





Samyang Corporation Low-carbon certificate

Environmental Compliance and Environmental Management Certification

In order to manage environmental risks, Samyang Group complies with environmental regulations and conducts environmental and safety diagnoses regularly once a year for all business sites to prevent violations. Business sites that have acquired environmental management systems conduct annual environmental impact assessments according to ISO 14001 standard requirements and report the results to management. Through this, we strive to maintain the level of zero environmental accidents and legality risks that may occur in Samyang Group.

Environmental Laws and Regulations Violated_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Number of violations of environmental laws and regulations	Cases	0	0	0
Financial sanctions	KRW	0	0	0
Environmental liabilities	KRW	0	0	0

Expanding Eco-friendly Products

Samyang Group is striving to secure competitiveness and lead the industry as a global green company through sustainable products and technological innovation. Samyang Group will provide customers with more special value through eco-friendly products and technologies.

Conditioning Polymer

KCI's conditioning polymer is a raw material used in shampoo. Among them, PQ-10 is a cationic product of cellulose produced from cotton pulp and is an eco-friendly conditioning raw material that can be used not only for shampoo but also for body wash. The raw material increases the moisturizing and glossing effect of hair, and improves and protects damaged hair, making it easy to comb and style. As a result, it was selected as the 'World-Class Product' organized by the Ministry of Commerce Industry and Energy in 2006. GuarPolymer is a cationic product of guar and is an eco-friendly conditioning material used in shampoo and body wash, just like PQ-10. Due to its molecular weight, it has a high viscosity and conditioning effect, showing an excellent effect without tangling in any hair type, and gives a soft and luxurious feeling of use to hair or skin. We are currently developing two additional new products that have been upgraded from these technologies.

Q.one White Sugar

SOCIAL

Samyang Corporation's Q.one white sugar is the only low-carbon product certified in the sugar industry in Korea. Low-carbon products are a system in which the government certifies products that are below the average carbon emission of the same product or that are above the minimum carbon reduction rate by applying low-carbon technology. Q.one white sugar was the first in the domestic sugar industry to obtain carbon footprint certification in 2010, and succeeded in obtaining low-carbon product certification in 2013 through continuous efforts to reduce carbon emissions and is maintaining it until now.

GOVERNANCE



About Me

Samyang Corporation's cosmetics brand 'About Me' is a brand with the concept of 'Clean Beauty', which means cosmetics that take into account the impact on the global environment during production and use. The packaging of the product uses Eco-friendly paper using recycled pulp certified by the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC), and the surface is printed with soybean oil ink to minimize the environmental burden. In addition, eco-friendly values are realized by using labels that are easy to remove and using eco-friendly subsidiary materials to facilitate separation and discharge.



(≡)(ອ

 \bigcirc

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

SOCIAL

CASE STUDY

Samyang Innochem

Eco-friendly Biomaterial 'Isosorbide'

Isosorbide is an eco-friendly biomaterial made by chemically processing starch extracted from plant resources such as corn. Isosorbide is used in the production of plastics and paints, replacing existing petroleum-derived materials. It is used for various purposes because it has excellent durability, heat resistance, and permeability. Samyang Group succeeded in commercializing isosorbide for the first time in Korea and the second time in the world, and is currently operating about 15,000 tons of production facilities annually at Gunsan Plant of Samyang Innochem. In the future, it is planned to expand to 30,000 to 40,000 tons annually through facility efficiency and expansion investment.

Developing Eco-Friendly Adhesive for Electric Vehicles Using Isosorbide

Samyang Group is targeting future mobility markets such as electric vehicles (EVs), electric trams (e-Trams), and urban air mobility (UAM) with eco-friendly adhesives for electric vehicles developed using the first biomaterial 'Isosorbide' commercialized in Korea. Based on the eco-friendliness of the eco-friendly adhesive developed by Samyang Innochem, we plan to replace the existing chemical material-based adhesive. We have already completed the application test for motor cores for electric vehicles and are preparing to deliver them to domestic and foreign electric vehicle industries. The motor core is a key part of an electric motor, and it is made by stacking thin electric steel plates less than 1mm in layers with adhesive. Motor cores using adhesives are more energy efficient than welding methods, and vibration and noise will be improved, further enhancing the eco-friendliness of electric vehicles. Starting with the motor core market for electric vehicles, Samyang Group will first target industrial electric motor markets such as electric trams and urban aviation mobility, and expand its use throughout the automotive parts market.

Samyang Innochem Cooperates in Developing Eco-friendly Biomaterial Joint Technology

GOVERNANCE

Samyang Innochem and Kukdo Chemical, a leading global epoxy company, have signed an MOU to promote the development of eco-friendly materials using biomass-based isosorbide. Under this agreement, the two companies will jointly research and develop eco-friendly epoxy, coatings, adhesives, and paints, and commercialize them. Epoxy resin is widely used in various industries such as electric and electronics, semiconductor, shipbuilding, construction, automobile, and composite materials. Especially, it has recently been used in automotive electronic parts, wind power generation, and aerospace.









(≡)(

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

Climate Change Response

Eco-friendly management has emerged as a core element of ESG, and investment institutions and civil societies in Korea and abroad are constantly more interested in companies responding to climate change. Samyang Group has devised the 2050 Net Zero Roadmap according to the Science-based Target initiative (SBTi) standards, a joint initiative of the WWF, CDP, UNGC, and WRI, in order to achieve the goals of the Paris Agreement and respond to climate change. In addition, with the increasing demand for renewable energy sources that can replace existing resources such as petroleum and coal, Samyang Group is establishing business strategies associated with renewable energy. Furthermore, Samyang Group is preparing group-wide initiatives to switch all energy sources to low-carbon fuels and declare RE100.



Climate Risk Analysis and Response Strategies

SOCIAL

Samyang Group strives to identify and manage the risks and opportunity factors that climate change can bring. To this end, we aim to select and manage the risk and opportunity factors that can have the most significant financial impact on Samyang Group.

GOVERNANCE

Financial Effects and Opportunities Arising from Climate Change

Classification	Risks	Potential Financial Effects	Response Strategies
Natural Disasters, Such as Heat Waves and Strong Winds		Increased work expenses and damage to workplaces caused by discontinuation of work	Evaluated climate change vulnerabilities and introduced an adaptation system
Policies and Regulations	Emission trading scheme	Increased costs for policy implementation and costs for securing emission credits	Installed GHG reduction facilities
Market Environment	Supply and demand of raw materials	Increasing raw material prices due to increasing demand for high efficiency and eco- friendly materials	Securing GHG low emission technology and carbon reduction management of sustainable products

Methods of Responding to Physical Climate Risks

In the event of a physical climate risk caused by severe climate events such as heat waves and strong winds, Samyang Group has an Emergency Committee to provide rapid response and business recovery. Each business site has insurance for risk preparation, and special contracts related to natural disasters can be applied to compensate for recovery costs and damage.

Physical Climate Risk Response System



Climate Risk Reporting System

(≣)(ອ

29

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

SOCIAL

In addition, Samyang Group stipulates the process from prevention to post-processing to protect the company's assets and employees' lives from natural disasters such as typhoons and floods, and has a reporting system in case of climate risks.

Carbon Neutrality

Major countries, including the Republic of Korea, have declared the goal of attaining Net Zero by 2050 and established Nationally Determined Contribution (NDC) according to international agreements. Samyang Group is planning an implementable medium to long-term roadmap to achieve Net Zero by 2050, taking part in the global movement to cope with the climate change crisis. In addition, we are establishing a product-based carbon emission measurement system, and strengthening to reduce carbon emissions in the process of purchasing, producing, and disposing of raw materials (LCA, Life Cycle Assessment)(*).

GOVERNANCE

CEO Staff Group Head General Affairs PU Head Field Strategy/Support Team Field Strategy/Support Team Chemicals Food Business site Packaging

2050 Net Zero Roadmap



(*) Life Cycle Assessment (LCA): An environmental impact assessment technique that quantifies inputs and emissions throughout the entire process of a product or system and comprehensively assesses the relevant potential environmental impacts.

2022.12	2023.1	2023.11	
Deciding on	Composing CFT and contracting a consultant company	 Initiating	 Introducing
introduction		introduction of LCA	LCA calculation
(proposal)		calculation system	system

(≣)(ອ)

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

SOCIAL

Activities to Reduce GHG Emissions

Samyang Group has established systematic measures to reduce its GHG emissions. Samyang Holdings appointed responsible people and working-level managers at each plant to manage the GHG status strategically. By setting up annual GHG reduction goals for each plant and implementing policies based on the characteristics of each business site, Samyang Holdings actively participates in the South Korean government's GHG reduction policy.

Samyang Group calculates GHG emissions and energy usage and discloses information transparently. We also promote GHG reduction activities through energy saving projects. In addition, GHG emissions from environmental facilities are reduced by applying public methods to minimize environmental pollutant emissions and promoting continuous monitoring and process improvement. Samyang Group is contributing to the response to climate change with these various efforts.

2 Promotion of Carbon Emission Reduction by Business Site

• Fuel conversion at Incheon Plant 1	Pacilitating the installation of solar panels in the plants
Active discovery and application of high-efficiency facilities, new technologies, etc.	Octive participation in the government's GHG reduction support project

3 Establishment of Process of Carbon Emissions Credit Trading

 Emission credit shortage/surplus 	Promotion of purchase and sale
management	through emission credit trading market

Samyang Group Activities to Reduce GHG Emissions



1 Group 2050 Net Zero Roadmap

CASE STUDY

Samyang Corporation

Accelerating Eco-friendly Business by Launching Waste Fishing Net Recycling Business

Samyang Corporation has signed a contract with NETSPA, a social venture company that recycles waste fishing nets, to supply plastic pellets at its headquarters in Jongno, Samyang Group. The waste fishing net is made up of synthetic fibers such as nylon, polypropylene, and polyethylene, and pellets are small pieces made by compressing them. Among them, plastic materials that are actively used for industrial use such as textiles and automobiles are nylon, which can contribute to reducing



Pellet supply contract signing ceremony

carbon generation by about 60% (*) compared to using new nylon materials by recycling waste fishing nets.

(*) Results of performing internal LCA in waste fishing net material

(≡)()

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

CASE STUDY

Samnam Petrochemical

Received a Plaque from the Environmental Organization

The Yeosu plant of Samnam Petrochemical received a citation at the general meeting of the Jeonnam Environmental Yeosu Movement Headquarters. This citation was recognized for contributing to the 'improvement of the local community environment by actively participating in the campaign to respond to climate change and reduce fine dust.'



Received a citation from the environmental organization

15.246.91 tCO.e

Current Status of Samyang Group GHG Regulation Target

GHG target management system

1 company





Samyang Corporation, Samnam Petrochemical, Samyang Innochem, Samyang Kasei, Samyang Packaging



GHG management system



Samyang Group built its GHG management system in 2016, and it conducts monthly monitoring to manage GHG emissions data. Pursuant to the Framework Act on Low Carbon Green Growth, Samyang Corporation was selected as a company subject to the emission trading scheme in 2015, and it has been complying with the scheme using the GHG management system. In addition, we are promoting the management of GHG emission facilities for non-allocated companies and overseas business sites that do not have legal regulations.

GHG Emissions_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Classification (*)	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Direct Emissions (Scope1)	tCO ₂ e	70.93	55.16	59.53
Indirect Emissions (Scope2)	tCO ₂ e	12,721.98	13,772.93	15,341.40
Total Emissions	tCO ₂ e	12,792.91	13,828.09	15,400.92
Intensity Emissions (compared to separate sales)	tCO₂e/ KRW 100 million	11.21	3.93	7.30

Target for total emissions in 2022

(*) GHG emissions are calculated through the Group GHG management system. Data values differ from previous year's report due to changes in calculation methodology.

CASE STUDY

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

SOCIAL

Plant Manager Kim Tae-Heon Received the Environment Award

Kim Tae-Heon, the manager of the MD Plant of Samyang Holdings, received the Environment Award given by Daejeon Metropolitan City Mayor for his contribution to environmental conservation at the 27th Environment Day celebration hosted by Daejeon Metropolitan City. The award was recognized for his contribution to environmental conservation, including the improvement of the environmental pollution source management system. The MD Plant of Samyang Holdings is improving its management system through a campaign to reduce waste emissions to reduce environmental pollutants, and continues to improve carbon emissions, such as using individual cups to reduce the use of paper cups.

GOVERNANCE

Samyang Corporation

Received a Commendation from the Minster of Environment for promoting environmental technology and consumption

In the green product sector, Samyang Corporation has practiced green products production and environmentally friendly management for 13 years from the first carbon quality label certification of the sugar industry in 2010 to the environmental quality label and low-carbon product certification in 2022. This includes such as continuous greenhouse gas reduction activities, improvement of environmental facilities, and contribution to the local community. Accordingly, in recognition of its contribution to national social development, it was awarded a citation from the Minister of Environment for promotion of environmental technology and promotion of consumption.



Commendation from the Minister of Environment

 $(\equiv)(\mathfrak{G})$

32

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

Efforts to Reduce Environmental Impact

Managing Water Resources

With the global water shortage intensifying, there is a growing interest in water resource issues. Samyang Holdings recognizes these problems and establishes environmental management standards to preemptively respond to water resource issues. Through this, we are actively mitigating water resource risks in accordance with government regulations, and consistently engaging in activities to reduce water usage and wastewater discharge.

Managing Water Pollution and Wastewater

Samyang Holdings observes in-house operating standards for discharging water pollutants to minimize pollutant discharge and satisfy the legal discharge standards. Samyang Holdings prevents pollution accidents and minimizes the environmental impact of water pollutants by efficiently managing water pollutants, such as organic materials, suspended materials, and heavy metals. Samyang Holdings takes responsibility for wastewater treatment and strives to ensure that wastewater is discharged in optimal condition by introducing eco-friendly technology. Samyang Holdings has reduced wastewater pollution levels by additionally installing chemical treatment facilities in wastewater prevention facilities and checks the appropriateness of wastewater facilities through regular measurements (twice a year or more). Through these efforts, we are doing our best to effectively treat wastewater and prevent and preserve environmental pollution.



Water Resource Status_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

SOCIAL

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Water intake (surface water)	Tons	68,724	93,913	94,112
Intake intensity (compared to sales)	Tons/KRW 100 million	60.21	26.67	44.61
Wastewater discharge	Tons	11,928	13,521	14,138
Discharge intensity (compared to sales)	Tons/KRW 100 million	10.45	3.84	6.70
Target for water intake in 2022			—	171 tons

GOVERNANCE

Water Pollutant Status_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
BOD discharged	Tons	0.55	0.86	0.93
TOC discharged	Tons	0.53(*)	0.75(*)	0.82
SS discharged	Tons	0.45	0.73	0.38
T-N discharged	Tons	0.31	0.37	0.07
T-P discharged	Tons	0	0.01	0
Total discharged	Tons	1.84	2.72	2.20

(*) Data for 2020 and 2021 shows COD discharged

Target for total discharged in 2022 -

2.17 tons

0.01 0.00

0.25

5.43

5.34 0.00 5.69 33



 $(\equiv)(\mathfrak{G})$

Managing Air Pollutants

Samyang Holdings intends to minimize the environmental impact of air pollutants. To reduce the impact of air pollutants, concentrations of various air pollutants, such as SOx, NOx, dust, odors, and volatile organic compounds (VOCs), are kept within legal limits. When air pollutant emissions exceed the limits due to problems in equipment or processes, we take measures to lower the emissions until they meet the legal limits.

Samyang Holdings increased its frequency of replacing activated carbon and fillings in air pollutant prevention facilities, from once a year to three or four times a year. Dust scrubbers have been installed and exhaust fans and pump OH have been entirely replaced for efficient management of pollutants. In addition, the discharge concentration of specific atmospheric harmful substances is measured twice a month, and an air pollutant monitoring system has been built to measure pollutants and monitor prevention facilities in real-time.

Energy Management

+ Eco-friendly Management and Climate Change Response

Samyang Holdings strives for sustainable management by strategically managing the energy consumption status of each business site. Using the in-house GHG management system, we effectively collect energy targets and usage data, set annual energy reduction goals for each plant, and track them. Samyang Holdings implements policies that align with characteristics and needs of each business site to improve energy efficiency of the business site, and realizes eco-friendly management through active energy-saving activities.

GOVERNANCE

Initiating the Introduction of Renewable Energy

SOCIAL

As Samyang Holdings manages the environmental impact of energy and promotes phased Net Zero, we aim to initiate the introduction of new and renewable energy at major business sites. We are also considering renewable energy purchase contracts by discovering renewable energy power providers in the local government.



Air Pollution Prevention Facilitie - Activated carbon adsorption



facility



Air Pollution Prevention Facilitie - Dust scrubbers

100				
	NOx emissions	Tons	0.04	0.02
es	SOx emissions	Tons	0.00	0.00
n	Dust emissions	Tons	1.33	0.12
	HAPs emissions (*2)	Tons	2.22	4.74
1	VOCs emissions	Tons	2.05	4.58
	Ozone Depleting Substance (ODS)	Tons	0.00	0.00
es	Total emissions (*3)	Tons	3.59	4.88

Air Pollutant Emissions Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Target for total emissions in 2022		5.63 tons
------------------------------------	--	------------------

(*1) The data differs from the previous year's report due to a change in the method of calculating air pollutants. (*2) VOCs substances contain HAPs substances

(*3) Excluded duplicate VOCs emissions

Classification (*1)

Energy Usage Management_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Unit	2020	2021	2022
LΤ	1.21	0.93	0.97
LΤ	236.33	246.18	276.68
LΤ	57.16	64.52	69.70
τJ	294.7	311.63	347.35
TJ/KRW 100 million	0.26	0.09	0.16
	TJ TJ TJ TJ TJ/KRW	TJ 1.21 TJ 236.33 TJ 57.16 TJ 294.7 TJ/KRW 0.26	TJ 1.21 0.93 TJ 236.33 246.18 TJ 57.16 64.52 TJ 294.7 311.63 TJ/KRW 0.26 0.09

Target for total usage in 2022

(*) Energy usage is calculated through the group management system. The data for 2020 and 2021 differs from the previous year's report by recalculating the data due to calculation errors

34



(≡)(ຽ

Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances

Recycling of waste resources is becoming an important issue, and laws on the use and treatment of chemical substances are increasingly being strengthened. As a result, companies are increasingly concerned with waste and hazardous chemical substances management to minimize their impact on the natural environment. In line with this trend, Samyang Holdings is also taking the lead in protecting the environment through the safe waste treatment, separate discharging, and minimization of discharges. In addition, we strive to manage hazardous chemical substances more actively by establishing hazardous chemical substances management procedures to eliminate hazards in all processes from purchasing, using, and disposing of chemical substances.

Managing Waste

Waste Treatment

Waste Treatment Process

MATERIAL



In order to reduce waste emissions and prevent environmental impacts, Samyang Holdings systematically manages waste by establishing waste management regulations for each business site, and periodically checks its implementation and compliance. In addition, when contracting with the disposal company for the disposal of waste, the company enters into a contract in accordance with the management standards of the suppliers and evaluates its legality and suitability. Samyang Holdings strictly complies with the Waste Management Act, and records all waste disposal processes in the waste management system, Allbaro, and manages them transparently and systematically. Samyang Holdings has improved the efficiency of waste disposal by selecting waste management and recycling companies suitable for the types of waste generated at each business site. In order to increase the recycling rate of waste, incineration treatment waste was reduced, and the reuse rate of existing consigned waste was increased by improving plant facilities and processes. In addition, Samyang Holdings continues to manage data by implementing the in-house waste circulation utilization management. In 2022, about 869 tons of waste, accounting for 75.6% of total waste generated from three plants, Pharmaceutical Plant, Gongju Plant, and MD Plant, were recycled, and we will continue to strive to increase the recycling rate.

Confirmation of

approval and report

status

Waste consignment contract

No



SOCIAL

+ Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances

Samyang Holdings separates waste by type and disposes of it in designated locations. We regularly monitor the storage and management status of waste and take appropriate corrective and preventive actions in case of any discrepancies. The results of handling waste are aggregated every time and reported to plant managers, and the performance is periodically reported to relevant agencies.

GOVERNANCE

Samyang Holdings reinforced the safety of waste storage locatons during the product manufacturing process to prevent risks such as leaks, spills and fires. Disaster prevention equipment and apparatuses are furnished in waste storage locations at all times to prepare for emergencies. Regular education programs and campaigns are carried out for all employees to minimize waste generation and reduce environmental pollution through the strict storage practices.

Methods of Reducing Waste



)(≡)(ර

1) Off-site risk assessment report:

Establishing safety measures

by evaluating environmental

2) Risk management plan:

facilities

Comprehensive accident

prevention plan, such as

emergency response, for the

+ Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances

Handling and Managing Hazardous Chemical Substances

Managing Hazardous Chemical Substances

Samyang Holdings established hazardous chemical substances management regulations at each business site and a system for responding to related laws and management to manage hazardous chemical substances safely. We also recognize the dangers of hazardous chemical substances that can affect the environment and consider safety as a top priority when storing and disposing. Hazardous chemical substances are safely stored in designated storage warehouses or facilities, and environmental pollution is reduced through appropriate disposal procedures when disposed of. In addition, we provide regular inspections and support and information to suppliers to enhance the safety of chemical substances handling facilities. Through this, Samyang Holdings minimizes the discharge of hazardous chemical substances into the environment and continues to practice safe chemical substances management.

System for Responding to Chemical Substance Laws



Hazardous Chemical Substance Management System

SOCIAL



GOVERNANCE

Inspection Activities to Manage Hazardous Chemical Substance

Samyang Holdings strictly complies with the regulations on the management of hazardous chemicals substances and conducts active inspections to maintain a safe working environment. The installed hazardous chemical substances handling facilities undergo installation inspection before operation and we enhance safety through regular annual inspections. In addition, in the event of a chemical accident, we are establishing a response system to remove residual risk factors by conducting frequent inspections immediately after prompt initial measures. Through these efforts, Samyang Holdings increases safety in chemical substances management and prevents accidents and environmental pollution caused by chemical substances.

∩)(≡)(𝔄

36

+ Management of Waste and Hazardous Chemical Substances

Chemical Safety Education Status

Handling Chemical Accidents

Samyang Holdings appoints three technical workers and 11 managers to prevent leakage accidents and effectively manage hazardous chemical substances and conducts inspections at least once a week. As facilities storing hazardous chemical substances have been rebuilt into fireproof and nonflammable structures and installed with gas leakage alarm devices, bumps to prevent leakage, and shower facilities, we can prevent leakage accidents. In addition, Samyang Holdings prepares and manages a chemical accident prevention management plan to systematically prevent and manage chemical accidents. Samyang Holdings was notified by the Chemical Safety Agency that the chemical accident prevention and management plan was appropriate.

Samyang Holdings formed an emergency response organization to establish a system for rapid response, dissemination, and evacuation during chemical accidents. Using emergency response organization communication channels, we share environmental and safety information among business sites, such as environmental and safety legal trends, environmental and safety issues, and recommended protective equipment and safety supplies.

Chemical Safety Education and Activities

SOCIAL

Since methods of responding to accidents differ according to the type of chemicals and accidents, it is extremely important to be aware of appropriate response methods and to secure expertise. Accordingly, Samyang Holdings aims to prevent and manage chemical accidents by conducting tailored education and training for different job positions. In addition, Samyang Holdings holds events for safety day at business sites to improve the safety awareness of employees, continually encouraging all employees to build safer business sites together. Through these efforts, there were no chemical accidents in 2022.

GOVERNANCE



Emergency Response Organization
Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

Social



- 38 Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities MATERIAL
- 45 Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety MATERIAL
- 50 Strengthening Information Security MATERIAL
- 54 Expansion of Social Contribution Activities MATERIAL
- 59 Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance MATERIAL
- 67 Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development
- 72 Suppliers ESG Risk Management

ESG management is essential for sustainable growth of the enterprise. Companies should proactively identify the different needs of stakeholders and reflect them in their management activities. In particular, we should strive to fulfill our social responsibility in relationships with customers, shareholders, employees, communities, and suppliers, and solve various problems facing society in line with the rapidly changing business environment and create social values.



38

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities

(≡)(ຽ

MATERIAL **Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities**

Samyang Holdings prioritizes safety and health based on the principle of 'management philosophy of human dignity'. We strive to achieve safe business sites by implementing safety management to a degree exceeding legal standards. Samyang Holdings has established a crisis management system to ensure the safety of employees and conducts safety campaigns to inspire safety awareness.

Safety and Health Management Organization Chart

CEO (Safety and Health Management Officer) Organization dedicated to safety and health



Implementing Safety and Health Management

Safety and Health Management Policy

Samyang Holdings pursues the continual improvement of safety and health by faithfully practicing safety and health management, making the safety of employees and suppliers its highest priority.

In the event of a safety accident, the impact is not limited to workers exposed to dangerous working conditions, but can have a direct impact on the local communities. Therefore, proactive prevention of safety and health is very important. In this situation, Samyang Holdings is striving to establish safety and health policy and principles and raise employees' awareness of safety and health. We aim to pursue continuous improvement in safety and health performance by enhancing our ability to implement safety and health and achieve above legal level through safety and health policy. The goal is to achieve zero cases (0%) of industrial safety accidents (including death accidents, more than three days of holiday accidents, and more than four days of medical accidents). The safety and health policy was proposed and approved by the ESG Committee of Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI of four listed companies in Samyang Group, and is disclosed on the Samyang Group website.

Safety and health management policy

Safety and Health Governance



Safety and Health Council meeting

The CEO of Samyang Holdings is responsible for the prevention of industrial accidents and establishes a

company-wide safety and health management policy and manages the safety and health organization. Samyang Holdings has established a safety and health governance, encompassing not only its own employees but also the safety and health of supplier companies, by forming an Occupational Safety Health Committee and a safety and health council, centered around the CEO.

The Occupational Safety and Health Committee strives to maintain and enhance the safety and health of employees by preventing occupational safety accidents and creating a pleasant work environment. The Safety and Health Council is comprised of employees of suppliers working at the business sites and discusses safety and health matters every month.

The main discussions include safety work and risk assessment of suppliers, accident cases of the same industry, and sharing safety and health issues at the business site. Through this consultation, we prevent disasters that may occur within the business site and eliminate risk factors within the business site. In addition, we strive to create a working environment where employees can work safely by conducting joint safety and health inspections with suppliers to identify and improve risk factors at the site.

Safety and Health Management Guidelines of Samyang Holdings

- All employees of Samyang Holdings and its suppliers voluntarily participate in safety and health activities.
- All employees of Samyang Holdings and its suppliers faithfully comply with the laws and regulations related to 'safety and health.'
- All employees of Samyang Holdings and its suppliers shall do their best to prevent any accidents by actively identifying and improving harmful and risk factors at workplaces.
- Management officer establish a safety and health management system and continuously monitor, maintain, and develop the 'safety and health management system' to ensure efficient operation.

Organizational Situation

Determining the Application Scope of Safety and Health Management Systems



)(≡)(ර

APPENDIX

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities

Safety and Health Management Regulations

Samyang Holdings regularly conducts inspections according to the safety and health management regulations to provide a safe working environment for employees of its suppliers, and has established a system to identify safety status and issues in real time. In addition, the working environment is continuously improved by setting and evaluating safety and health goals every year based on the safety and health management regulations. Samyang Holdings provides a safe working environment at all business sites and is committed to protecting the safety and health of its employees.

Safety and Health Management Regulations

Strengthening Safety and Health Management Activities

SOCIAL

Samyang Holdings aims to make its business sites safe by establishing compliance obligations for executives, to strengthen safety and health management activities and observe the Serious Accidents Punishment Act. Samyang Holdings endeavors to strengthen preemptive prevention activities, emphasize safety awareness, and strengthen responsible management to ensure the safety and health of employees. We systematically manage and supervise workplace safety and health by establishing a company manual. Details related to safety and health are periodically reported to the CEO, and the CEO performs unscheduled inspections on business sites to confirm that compliance obligations are being met. Samyang Holdings is fulfilling its management responsibilities through these safety and health management activities and constantly strives to ensure the safety of employees and stakeholders.



(≡)(

40

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities

SOCIAL

Managing Crises at Business Sites

Crisis Management System

Samyang Holdings establishes a system to identify and evaluate various risks in business operations in advance and establish response strategies. We regularly assess risks at the business site and review supplier's safety and health levels to maintain safety. We strengthen safety by encouraging active participation and cooperation of workers in the evaluation process, and operate a systematic crisis management system to respond rapidly in the event of a crisis. The goal is to strengthen crisis management capabilities across the enterprise and maintain a safe and stable business environment. By continuously strengthening the crisis management system, we will protect the safety and health of workers and communities, and fulfil our social responsibility.

Purposes of Establishing Crisis Management System

- **1** To protect the life and safety of employees and suppliers
- 2 To protect properties, such as facilities, information, and reputation
- 3 To secure the trust of stakeholders, including customers and shareholders
- ⁽⁴⁾ To increase the crisis response capabilities of employees and suppliers and foster a crisis management culture

Risk Assessment Results

	First hal	f of 2022	Second h	alf of 2022	То	otal
Business site	Number of improvement targets	Number of improvements completed	Number of improvement targets	Number of improvements completed	Number of improvement targets	Number of improvements completed
MD Plant	68	68	78	78	146	146
Gongju Plant	9	9	5	2(*)	14	11
Pharmaceutical Plant	7	7	4	0(*)	11	7
Total	84	84	87	80	171	164
	Improver	ment completio	n rate			95.90%

Risk Assessment Process



(*) Uncompleted targets in the second half of 2022 completed in the first quarter of 2023

Results of Suppliers Safety and Health Level Evaluation

Business site	Number of cases in the first half of 2022	Number of cases in the second half of 2022	Total (*)
MD Plant	19	6	25(100%)
Gongju Plant	11	3	14(100%)
Pharmaceutical Plant	31	5	36(100%)
Total	61	14	75(100%)

(*) Acceptance rate

APPENDIX

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities

SOCIAL



(≡)(

Crisis Management Organization

Crisis Management Organization Chart

Samyang Holdings has created a crisis management organization chart to respond rapidly and effectively in the event of a crisis. We identify risks in advance and take preventive actions to prevent crises in advance, and actively respond to crises to maintain the business environment with minimal impact.

Emergency Measure Committee

Inspection of the organization dedicated to safety and health



CEO safety and health inspection

	• Chair: CEO • Members: Releva	nt PU Head	
	General Situ	ation Office	
	 Office managers: Members: Planni Crisis related Tea 	ng Team Manager,	
Communication Team	Corporate Response Team	Corporate Support Team	On-site Response and Support Team
		1	
	Emergency C	Control Office	
	Officer: Crisis Mana Members: Person		
Response Control	Emergency Action	Emergency Support	Emergency Aid
Response Team	Action Team	Operation Team	Medical Team
Control Team	Firefighting Team		Exit Team

Crisis Response Manual

Samyang Holdings has prepared a crisis response procedures in consideration of essential matters for an adequate and effective response in the event of a crisis. This enables rapid response in the event of an accident and minimizes damages.

Samyang Holdings established its principles based on the following aspects. The response measures are divided into three steps: the receipt of the report and dissemination of information on the situation; emergency response activities; and activation and termination of the situation. The Crisis Response Manual is prepared to include minimal essential procedures for each stage.

- **1** Our priority goal is to protect the lives of employees and stakeholders.
- **2** We establish the crisis response procedure for each key risk factor derived after risk assessment.
- 8 We clarify the roles and responsibilities of the crisis response organization.
- 4 The Procedure is written clearly and concisely to be accessible to all workers.
- Some procedure is prepared as a document and furnished in a place easily accessible to all workers.

Work-related Injuries and Diseases

(): Suppliers working at business sites

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Number of deaths caused by work- related injuries	Cases	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)
Number of work-related injuries recorded	Cases	0(0)	0(0)	0(0
Working hours (*)	Hours	512,820	517,008	522,576
Number of deaths caused by work- related diseases	Cases	0(0)	0(0)	0(0
Number of work-related diseases recorded	Cases	0(0)	0(0)	0(0

(*) Total annual working hours at Pharmaceutical, Gongju, and MD Plants combined

A

)(≡)(ර

42

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities

GOVERNANCE

Inspecting the Crisis Response Status at Business Sites

Samyang Holdings has established a systematic and effective crisis management system in preparation for possible crises at business sites. We periodically review the adequacy and effectiveness of the crisis management system and continuously improve through activities such as status diagnoses, education, training, evaluations, document management, and management reviews. Systematic approach to responses enables stable operation of the business site through appropriate and rapid response in the event of a crisis. The primary purposes of maintaining and inspecting the crisis management system are as follows.

Primary Purposes



CASE STUDY

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

SOCIAL

Received A-Grade for Safety and Health Cooperation Program

Since 2016, Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group MD plant has participated in the Safety and Health cooperation program organized by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency and Daejeon Regional Employment and Labor Office. The safety and health cooperation program evaluates and grades business sites in consideration of operational adequacy, risk assessment execution, and operational outcomes. The MD plant was given an A-grade in 2022 thanks to the ongoing efforts and cooperatons of safety officers of its suppliers since 2016.

Samyang Corporation

Recognized as 'Excellent Workplace for Risk Assessment'

Incheon Plant 2 of Samyang Corporation has been recognized as an 'excellent workplace for risk assessment' by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency. Risk assessment refers to a series of processes in which labor and management identify harmful and risk factors, establish and implement reduction measures. With this recognition, Samyang Corporatio has become eligible for benefits, such as exemption form government safety and health inspections and priority recommendations for government rewards and commendations.

Samyang Innochem

Acquired KOSHA-MS Certification

Samyang Innochem was acquired a certificate of Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency - Management System (KOSHA-MS) and a signboard by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency. KOSHA-MS is a safety and health management system that subdivides the existing two types (Type A and Type B) according to the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) into three types to strengthen the applicability of small business sites. Through KOSHA-MS certification, Samyang Innochem has been recognized as systematically managing safety and health levels regarding hazardous risks externally.



Samyang Innochem acquired KOSHA-MS certification

43

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities



Safety Campaign Slogan Contest

Promoting safety awareness through voluntary interest and participation in the contest for safety accident prevention slogan

COLORS.

Safety Campaigns Safety campaigns to promote safety awareness and prevent industrial accidents



Safety and Health Education

Samyang Holdings educates its employees on safety and health to prevent safety accidents by raising safety awareness and cultivating management capabilities. We provide safety and health education related to the positions involved when hiring employees or modifying job responsibilities, and regularaly offer safety and health trainings to the employees at business sites.

Safety and Health Education Status

prevention slogan	Course	Targets of Education	Hours of Education
	A. Regular Education	Office workers	3 hours or more each quarter
	Education	Non-office Workers who directly engage in sales	3 hours or more each quarter
		workers Workers who do not directly engage in sales	6 hours or more each quarter
		Persons in supervisory positions	16 hours or more each year
One Point Lesson	B. Education upon Recruitment	Day laborers	1 hour or more
	Reclutiment	Non-day laborers	8 hours or more
Establishing a consensus among workers by repeating	C. Education upon Change of Duties	Day laborers	1 hour or more
the slogan of the points pointed out by risk factors to	change of Duties	Non-day laborers	2 hours or more
prevent safety accidents and create a sense of alertness.	D. Special Education	Day laborers who are subject to special safety and health education	2 hours or more
Same		Non-day laborers who are subject to special safety and health education	 More than 16 hours (more than 4 hours before starting work and 12 hours divided into multiple sessions over the course of 3 months) More than 2 hours for short-term work or intermittent work

Safety and Health Education Status

Classification (*)	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Total hours of education	Hours	5,535	5,443	6,016
Number of persons who completed education	Persons	240	238	252

(*) Safety and health education status of three plants: Pharmaceutical Plant, Gongju Plant, and MD Plant

Safety and Health Activities

SOCIAL

Samyang Holdings prevents industrial accidents by establishing safety and health standards for business sites through various safety campaigns, such as the Safety Campaign Slogan Contest and One Point Lesson. Samyang Holdings establishes and operates the Safety and Health Guidelines while complying with the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act. In order to respond to the Serious Accidents Punishment Act, we conduct our own inspection and improvement activities. In addition, we conduct simulated crisis response training so that business sites and group organizations can respond systematically and effectively in case of a crisis that can have serious implications.

Inspection and Improvement Activities of the Serious Accidents Punishment Act

ep 2	 Inspection and evaluation of semi-annual (2 times per year) obligations Period: Jan. 1, 2022 – Jun. 30, 2022 / Jul. 1, 2022 – Dec. 31, 2022 Contents: 13 items including safety and health budget execution, identification and improvement of harmful and risk factors, and safety and health manageme (general) performance evaluation Procedure: Inspection of the current and exclusive departments and approval of CEO
ep 3	Continuous inspection and improvement of obligations
	ation and locate states the Action Action Devictor Action
	ection and Improvements related to the Serious Accidents Punishment Act
1 Safety and he	ealth goals and management guidelines
	organization in charge of safety and health affairs
	organization in charge of safety and health affairs azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement
3 Identifying had4 Organizing and	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget
3 Identifying had a Organizing at 5 Measures for	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer
 Identifying had organizing at 0 reganizing at 5 Measures for Appointing statements 	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer afety and health professionals in the business sites
 Identifying hi Organizing at Measures for Appointing st Listening to t 	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer
 3 Identifying ha 4 Organizing and 5 Measures for 6 Appointing so 7 Listening to to such as impress 8 Inspecting m 	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer afety and health professionals in the business sites he opinions of workers and checking whether they are implemented or not,
 3 Identifying hat 4 Organizing and 5 Measures for 6 Appointing so 7 Listening to t such as impress 8 Inspecting m and the imm 	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer afety and health professionals in the business sites he opinions of workers and checking whether they are implemented or not, ovement measures anual work in preparation for the occurrence of major industrial accidents inent risk of occurrence ty and health of third-party workers in cases of contract, service,
 3 Identifying have a constrained of the second of	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer afety and health professionals in the business sites he opinions of workers and checking whether they are implemented or not, ovement measures anual work in preparation for the occurrence of major industrial accidents inent risk of occurrence ty and health of third-party workers in cases of contract, service,
 3 Identifying have a long and the importance of the such as importance of the importance of the such as the importance of the such as the importance of the such as the suc	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement nd managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer afety and health professionals in the business sites he opinions of workers and checking whether they are implemented or not, ovement measures anual work in preparation for the occurrence of major industrial accidents inent risk of occurrence ty and health of third-party workers in cases of contract, service, etc
 3 Identifying h: 4 Organizing au 5 Measures for 6 Appointing sa 7 Listening to t such as impression and the imm 9 Securing safe entrustment 10 Measures to 11 Implementi local govern 12 Inspection au 	azards and risk factors and inspection of improvement and managing the necessary budget faithful performance of duties, such as Safety and Health Officer afety and health professionals in the business sites he opinions of workers and checking whether they are implemented or not, ovement measures anual work in preparation for the occurrence of major industrial accidents inent risk of occurrence ety and health of third-party workers in cases of contract, service, etc establish and implement measures to prevent recurrence in the event of a disaster ng measures of matters ordered by central administrative agencies and

44

+ Strengthening Safety and Health Prevention Activities

MD Plant safety and health

campaign

A

)(≡)(ර

Simulated Training

Based on the crisis management system at the business site, Samyang Holdings conducted simulated image training and accident response training in which crisis response organizations gathered at designated locations to check crisis response procedures through documents. Through the simulation training, we reviewed the crisis response procedures between the Headquarters, business sites, and each department, and based on this, we internalized the crisis response procedures and strengthened our capabilities.

Simulation Training Progress Process



CASE STUDY

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Safety Resolution Conference in 2022

SOCIAL

Gongju Plant of Samyang Holdings held a 2022 safety resolution conference. All employees attended the safety resolution conference to thoroughly follow all safety rules and to create a safe and happy workplace. Employees of Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group's Gongju Plant read a resolution to prevent safety accidents and industrial accidents, and the plant manager stressed, 'all employees make every effort to manage safety.'



Samyang Corporation

Conducting Crisis Response Training in 2022



Incheon Plant 2 of Samyang Corporation conducted '2022 crisis response training.' The training was conducted to establish an emergency response system in the event of a crisis and minimize human and material damage with appropriate responses in the early stages, especially in the event of a fire, using fire extinguishers and fire hydrants.

Samyang Kasei

VR Safety Experience Education with the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency

Jeonju Plant of Samyang Kasei conducted safety experience education using VR with the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency. The VR experience training was conducted to improve safety awareness of all employees at the Jeonju Plant of Samyang Kasei, and to prevent actual accidents and respond to accidents in the event of accidents by indirectly experiencing forklifts, falls, and closed space work with virtual reality (VR) devices and programs provided by the Korea Occupational Safety and Health Agency.



MATERIAL

|--|

APPENDIX

+ Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety

SOCIAL



(≡)(

Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety

Samyang Group aims to provide customers with reliable products. Samyang Holdings conducts continuous research and development to improve the health and quality of life of its customers, and provides the best medicines and medical devices. By applying an internal quality management system, we maintain the safety and excellence of our products, always put customer safety and satisfaction first, and continuously manage and improve quality.

Improving Product Quality

Quality Management System of Samyang Holdings Biopharm

Quality Management System of Pharmaceutical Plant and MD Plant

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group conducts a review of the implementation of the quality management system every quarter, and the necessary personnel from all departments attend every year to review the overall suitability. We evaluate the suitability and implementation of the quality management system and ensure its efficient implementation by supplementing and maintaining the contents of the quality management system appropriately. These efforts are playing a major role in maintaining reliability in Samyang Holdings by providing customers with safer and superior products.



Acquiring GMP certification through regular inspections by Korean and overseas agencies	Upgrading the GMP system by applying international regulatory guidelines and requirements	Conducting regular education for persons in charge of GMP duties	Checking conformity with the GMP standards through periodic internal audits
Establishing and operating quality policies related to change control, deviations, customer complaints, returns, non-conformities, and recall	Inspecting manufacturing and quality matters and improvement points through the annual reports of product quality	Performing quarterly management reviews of quality trends	Operating the quality system by applying quality risk management

+ Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety

GOVERNANCE

SOCIAL

Innovating Product Quality

Product Quality Innovation System (Open Innovation)

The Biopharmaceutical R&D Center of Samyang Holdings cooperate on Open Innovation to develop innovative products. Through Open Innovation, Samyang Holdings constructs various cooperation models, such as the discovery of innovative technologies, joint research, consignment research, technology transfers, investments, joint ventures, and M&A. We improve its research capabilities through the cooperation models. We have achieved a high level of product development and quality improvement. Samyang Holdings will develop further by creating synergy based Open Innovation.



Activities to Innovate Product Quality

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group invested approximately 20% of annual sales into R&D and successfully invented innovative products. As a result, Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group is proud of its world-class technology, Samyang Holdings commercialized an anticancer drug using a chemically synthesized nano polymer called DDS, which is rarely found worldwide. The Transdermal Drug Delivery System (TDDS), a technology that delivers drugs through the skin, was applied to develop many patch products that are safe and effective, such as pain relief patches for cancer patients, smoking cessation patches, and anti-inflammatory patches. In the field of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs), Samyang Holdings succeeded in massproducing Paclitaxel API used in anticancer drugs for the first time in the world using the plant cell culturing method. Recently, Samyang Holdings has been concentrating on developing innovative DDS technologies that deliver nucleic acid drugs, such as siRNA, mRNA. DDS is a technology that delivers drugs to the body, and we are developing various treatments including vaccines using SENS technology that can selectively deliver nucleic acid treatments to desired tissues such as muscles, lungs, and liver.

We developed drug mounting technology using biocompatible polymer nanotechnology, solubility improvement technology of difficult drugs, and various formulation manufacturing technologies of oral agents. In the field of medical devices, Samyang Holdings utilizes its accumulated biodegradable materials and finished medical device manufacturing technologies to develop wound care and laparoscopic wound closure products. Furthermore, Samyang Holdings strives to develop highly functional and value-added medical devices by expanding its scope of research to 3D materials and cosmetic surgery markets. In addition, Samyang Holdings participate in various domestic and international conferences and global healthcare investment events such as JP Morgan to exchange information about the bio-industry, and strengthen its networking with bio-venture companies. Bio-partnering linked to the JP Morgan healthcare conference is a place where global bio companies and investors discuss various technology alliances, research cooperation, and investment.



PCL dermal filler, Lafullen[®] Proven Safe and effective

Lafullen® is a dermal filler that Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group began development in 2015 and received marketing approval from the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety in 2021. Lafullen® is composed of biodegradable polymer substance called polycaprolactone (PCL) using SEP Technology (Samyang's Evenly distributed Porous particle Technology), a patented technology in Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group. Clinical study on the safety and improvement effect on nasolabial fold of Lafullen® has been published in the prestigious international academic journal 'Dermatologic Therapy,' a Scientific Citation Index (SCI) publication. This confirms that safety and longterm effects and safety of Lafullen® have been demonstrated by research.



Lafullen®

47

+ Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety

Croquis®, a Lifting thread Brand For Cosmetic Surgery, Proved Validity and Safety in Global Webinar

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group held a webinar at the 'IMCAS Academy' to inform the safety and effectiveness of Croquis® and introduce the treatment method. IMCAS (International Society of Aesthetic Plastic Surgery) is one of the world's top three beauty societies, where skin and plastic surgery experts from around the world gather to share the latest trends and medical technologies. Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group has participated in the IMCAS Academy since 2020 and has been presenting the validity and safety of Croquis® for the third consecutive year.

Managing Product Safety

Importance of Managing the Safety of Bio Products

The bioindustry is connected to customer safety and is a public industry with strict government regulations. Accordingly, bio companies must carry out clinical studies while observing the regulations and standards of different countries and must prepare for approval, production, and sale. In South Korea, the standards set by the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety must be observed. The Guidelines of the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) are followed in the United States, the European Medicine Agency (EMA) in Europe, the Pharmaceuticals and Medical Devices Agency (PMDA) in Japan, and the National Medical Products Administration (NMPA) in China. In addition, production processes and quality management affairs are inspected, managed, and supervised periodically by regulatory agencies after obtaining approval. Companies are obliged to provide highly safe products to customers. In order to comply with this, Samyang Holdings conducts clinical studies, prepares and executes the sales approval procedure according to the guidelines of each regulatory agency, and submits product safety and quality data to each regulatory agency. In addition, Samyang Holdings operates a unique quality management system to ensure the safety of products by collecting and monitoring product safety information.

OVERVIEW

Methods of Managing Product Safety

SOCIAL

Companies must provide highly safe products to customers in order to subsist and grow sustainably. Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group manages quality in the development, production, storage, and distribution stages to provide safe products to consumers. In addition, the pharmacovigilance system collects and monitors product safety information throughout the pharmaceutical lifecycle, from pharmaceutical and medical device development to post-marketing safety management. As a part of the quality management system, adverse events related to the use of all products sold in the market are reported to regulatory agencies and collected through various means, including literature searches and clinical research. The collected safety information undergoes pharmaceutical analysis to conduct a benefit-risk assessment on the pharmaceuticals and improve quality.

GOVERNANCE

Samyang Holdings observes pharmacovigilance and fulfills the reporting obligations of global regulatory agencies regarding management of safety information for medicines and medical devices. Employees are informed of adverse events and disclosure obligations, and they are educated periodically. In this manner, Samyang Holdings manages safety based on an organized management system. Samyang Holdings will continue to provide better products to customers by ensuring the safe use of pharmaceuticals and preventing potential hazards.

Croquis®



System for Monitoring Side Effects and Safety Information and the Management Activities

- Submitting side effect reports upon occurrence of side effects and submitting timely (within 15 days) or regular (pharmaceutical-quarterly, medical devices-30 days) reports to the Ministry of Food and Safety depending on the severity of the side effects
- 2) Monitoring unexpected side effects through the safety information provided by the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety, change orders and product revaluation, item renewal, and post-marketing surveillance and reflecting such side effects in product labels
- 3) Creating a risk management plan and report for each medical device
- 4) Preparing regular pharmaceutical Safety Update Reports (PSUR) (periodically prepared by product) 5) Regularly implementing and evaluating pharmaceutical Risk Management Plan (RMP) (annually)

(≣)(ອ)

APPENDIX

+ Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety

• Research and development	Product Safety Management Act	ivities According to Product Life Cycle
	Managing the Safety of Clinical Studies	
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	the SOP (Standard Operating Procedure) List, which is d safety for patients and participants of clinical studies.
Clinical practice	There was no inspection of the client or licensor	of clinical trials by regulatory agencies related to clinical
	studies and pharmacovigilance that induce Volu	ntary Action Indicated (VAI) and Official Action Indicated
	(OAI), safety information management, and ad	verse event management. Samyang Holdings has not
	incurred any monetary loss from legal procedure	es related to clinical studies in developing countries.
Production		
	SOP (Standard Operation Procedure) List	Contents
	Regulations for health and sanitation management	Regular implementation of employee health and sanitation related activities
Registration	Safety management regulations	Safety management standards
	Workplace safety management regulations	Safety requirements for workplaces
	Chemical substance safety management	Regulations concerning precautions when using chemical substances
• Sale	Safety work registration criteria	Registration criteria for safe work in progress

Managing the Safety of Drugs

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group complies with the Pharmaceutical Affairs Act, Medical Device Act, and Safety Information Management regulations, and conducts safety information management and adverse event management through safety management monitoring systems. The collected safety information is reported to the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety through analysis, and non-compliance has occurred. There have been no legal action and no monetary losses caused by the reporting deadline of the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety.

Managing the Safety during Production Activities

SOCIAL

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group has a facility dedicated to cytotoxic chemotherapy. We built a dedicated facility under the separation and compartment according to the Pharmaceutical Affairs Act. We have internal regulations for the safety of workers from production to quality control.

Ethical Marketing Activities

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group attaches standardized codes and serial numbers to each product to maintain the traceability of products throughout the supply chain. Product forgery is prevented by tracking the supply of products in the distribution stage (pharmaceutical manufacturer, wholesaler, hospital, patient). Samyang Holdings advertises, markets, and labels in compliance with the Pharmaceutical Affairs Act and the Medical Device Act, and complies with the chemotherapy exceeding the permission announced by the Health Insurance Review & Assessment Service for unauthorized drug use and dosage. Samyang Holdings had no monetary losses caused by false marketing activities, labeling or violation of legal procedure related to corruption.

Samyang Holdings regularly conducts salesperson training to deliver accurate medical and clinical information, and seeks to improve the job competency of the person in charge by attending conferences and symposiums and lectures invited by professors. In addition, we created an internal SOP in accordance with laws and regulations on 'fair competition rules' and 'duty to prepare expenditure reports on economic benefits, etc.' under the Pharmaceutical and Medical Device Act, and established an expenditure report system called 'SYB-CP' to carry out responsible marketing and sales activities.

ESG JOURNEY

APPENDIX

+ Guaranteeing Product Quality and Safety

Process for Handling Customer Complaints

)(≡)(ර





Communicating with customers

Consumer Rights Protection System

Samyang Holdings implements various compensation and insurance systems for customer safety and protection in the field of medical devices and pharmaceutical finished products in Korea.

• Convention on compensation for victims of clinical studies: We comply with Pharmaceutical Affairs and Medical Devices Act to compensate those subjects to clinical studies.

• Pharmaceutical adverse reaction compensation system: Under a system for compensating families and patients who have suffered death, disability, or illness due to adverse drug reactions, we provide compensation for death, disability, medical expenses, and funeral expenses. On the packaging materials of the relevant products, we include the statement 'the application for pharmaceutical adverse reaction compensation can be submitted to the Korea Insistue of Drug Safety & Risk Management' to disclose related information.

•Medical device liability insurance: A system that requires insurance or deduction to compensate patients for damage caused by death or serious side effects while using a human implantable medical device. Production liability insurance for the target products is included. This information can be found on the integrated medical device information system.

• Pharmaceutical product liability insurance: A system that requires insurance or deductions to compensate patients for damage caused by death or serious side effects while using the drug as the registration of the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety. Production liability insurance for the target products is included.

Enhancing Customer Satisfaction

Customer Satisfaction with Quality

SOCIAL

Samyang Holdings is the closest place to our customers to provide the abundance and convenience of their daily lives. Samyang Holdings manages customer satisfaction through product side effects, safety information monitoring system and management status, customer complaints response, and customer management system for customer satisfaction.

Managing Customers

After receiving customer inquiries via communication channels such as Biopharm website, product website, chatbot, customer center, etc., Samyang Holdings handles the inquiries by assigning persons in charge. Customer information, inquiries, and details of the handling process are registered in a database for continual management. In addition, we regularly identify customer satisfaction and requirements through customer surveys and improve the quality of products or services.

Responding to Customer Complaints

Samyang Holdings systematically manages the entire process from customer complaints to resolution. We promptly resolve complaints and prevent recurrence of complaints with data collected from customers.

- Reviewing the necessity of change in approval and responding to approval changes based on customer complaints
- Peporting recall measures to the Ministry of Food and Drug Safety when a quality issue that requires recall arises
- Conducting on-site sales activities
- Operating a customer complaint response manual

Number of Customer Complaints Received and Processed

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Number of customer complaints received	Cases	2	5	8
Customer complaint handling performance	Cases	2	5	8
Ratio of customer complaint processed	%	100%	100%	100%

MATERIAL

|--|

APPENDIX

+ Strengthening Information Security

SOCIAL



(≡)(ຽ

Strengthening Information Security

Samyang Group has implemented various policies and systems to protect personal information and has an information security system that is essential in the information society. Samyang Group utilizes the latest security technologies and expertise to help secure information assets, identifies information security risks, and enhances physical and conscious security to effectively protect our organization and customers from internal and external security threats.

Information Security System

Information Security System Policy

Samyang Group has established an information protection system to manage customer information and information assets more systematically and efficiently and to respond to information security threats. We establish and distribute information protection policies related to cyber attacks such as hacking and ransomware. In addition, Samyang Group has established and implemented information protection regulations including all areas of security management such as management, physical, technology, and personal information based on the company's core information and personal information protection principles.

•

Samyang Group IT Security Policy

- Only information assets that are permitted and authorized to access should be used.
- •We prohibit the external leakage of important information of the company by using e-mail, messenger, mobile phone, USB, etc.
- All users shall access information assets through identification and authentication procedures through individual unique IDs and passwords, and safely manage their IDs and passwords.
- All users shall promptly notify the information protection officer and manager of the details related to the security accident.
- All users shall thoroughly and periodically check the authority management of documents or data.
- All users shall comply with the rules of practice for information protection, personal information handling rules, and ransomware infection prevention activities.

Personal Information Protection System and Rules

Samyang Group has established its privacy policy and guidelines to improve the safety and reliability of organizational and customer information and systematically maintain information protection. Samyang Group distributes its information security policy, which includes its privacy policy, among all employees to guide their practices.

Personal Information Management Organization

The organization in charge of personal information protection consists of the General Group Officer, officers and managers of each group company, and the heads of departments and persons handling personal information. Officers and managers supervise personal information to ensure it is handled safely according to the privacy policy and guidelines.

Personal Information Processing System

Samyang Group operates a well-structured database system and an application system to process personal information. The personal information processing system is protected by authentication, access control, menu and screen display, encryption, and log management. The personal information processing system annually inspects the list of systems, personal information collected and processed by each system, system administrators, supervising departments, and personal information possessed by each system.



(≡)(

+ Strengthening Information Security

Information Protection Organization

As part of the Group's information protection policy, Samyang Group's information protection organization has been formed to comply with relevant laws (Act on Promotion of Information and Communication Network Utilization and Information Protection). The information protection manager is responsible for the overall management of information protection work and assist the Chief Information Security Officer. The Chief Information Security Officer (CISO) oversees and coordinates the company's information protection operations and assists the CEO.

Major Information Protection Activities

Information protection organizations perform key information protection tasks in terms of management, technology, and physical aspects according to the Group information security system.



Group Security Incident Reporting Process

SOCIAL

In the event of personal information infringement or security accident, Samyang Group analyzes the circumstances and causes of the accident and reports it to the information protection manager and the Chief Information Security Officer (CISO).



Number of Complaints Proven to be in Violation of Customer Privacy and Loss of Customer Information

As for the personal information processing system from 2020 to 2022, Samyang Group has not received any claims due to a violation of customer personal information protection, or there have been no cases of a security accident such as loss of customer information.

Information Security-related Data

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Activities to raise cyber security awareness	Cases	2	2	1
Cyber security education hours per person	Minutes	30	30	45
Number of complaints proven to be in violation of customer privacy	Cases	0	0	0
Total number of customer information leakage, theft, and loss identified	Cases	0	0	0

(≡)(ຽ

+ Strengthening Information Security

SOCIAL

Raising Information Security Awareness

Identifying Information Security Risks

With the expansion of Internet services, cyber attacks such as hacking and ransomware are increasing, and the risk of leakage of internal e-mails intentionally or accidentally to the outside is also increasing. Information security has become more important in a social situation where these crimes of personal information abuse are increasing. Samyang Group identifies internal and external risks and responds to the risk of leakage of internal personal information and business data to the outside.

Information Security Risk Response Plan

(*)Cyber Threat Information Analysis Sharing (C-TAS) : A system has been in operation since 2014 to cope with infringement incidents that are occurring widely across industries with domestic and foreign companies and institutions Samyang Group has introduced a physical security solution to cope with internal and external risks of information security, and is conducting information security training to establish a mindset of employees as a conscious security solution. As part of information protection activities, Samyang Group is trying to respond early to infringement accidents caused by intelligence and advancement of cyber threats and prevent the spread of damage by receiving information provided by the 'Cyber Threat Information Analysis Sharing (C-TAS)(*)' organized by the Korea Internet Security Agency (KISA).

Physical Security Solutions

Samyang Group has introduced the following security system in response to the risk of internal personal information and business data being leaked to the outside world. We have upgraded integrated PC security, Anti-Distributed Denial of Service Attacks (Anti-DDOS) equipment, Intrusion Prevention System (IPS), and continue to invest in information protection by establishing a mail mailbox backup system. According to data from the 2022 information security disclosure, Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, and Samyang Packaging invested more than 5% of its IT budget in information protection.

- Document security system: Document security such as Word, Excel, PPT, etc.
- Integrated PC management systems: Systems that manage PC management, removable storage, wireless networks, illegal software monitoring, etc.
- Spam-blocking systems: Spam, malware, and virus mail protection reduce mail security threats and business inefficiencies
- O Advanced Persistent Threat (APT) response solutions: Solutions for responding to intelligent attacks such as ransomware, malicious code, DDOS, network intrusion (hacking)
- 6 VPN: Providing secure network environment where we can work from outside the company network



APPENDIX

+ Strengthening Information Security

SOCIAL

A

(≡)(ຽ

Conscious Security Solutions

Samyang Group is establishing a business security mindset for employees by providing education at Samyang Ethics School, which includes information protection. We also strengthen on-premises system authorities and policies, and establish and operate policies related to business data (email and document). These efforts have a positive impact on Samyang Group's business performance and customer reliability, and further play a major role in raising the level of information protection and personal information protection of domestic companies.

Information Security Education Status



Simulated Training and Principles of Conduct

Samyang Group conducted Group mail virus simulation training for employees to raise the Group's information security awareness and improve its ability to respond to infringement. Through mock training, we prevented the risk of exposing important information and trained them not to read suspicious emails. In addition, we are strengthening security awareness through the three major principles of Group security and the pledge to comply with information security.



Group information security compliance pledge

정보보호 공시

Information protection

disclosure system

sharing through minutes

instead.

가이드라인

Participating in the Information Protection Disclosure System

Samyang Group is participating in the information protection disclosure system that has been implemented since 2022 to guarantee the right to protect and know internet users and to contribute to revitalizing the information protection industry due to increased investment and interest in in information protection. Samyang Corporation and Samyang Packaging, affiliate companies of Samyang Group, are companies subject to information protection disclosure obligations in 2023 and disclose information protection investments, human resources, certifications, and activities to enhance corporate reliability and cyber response capabilities.

The Three Principles of Group Security



MATERIAL

+ Expansion of Social Contribution Activities

GOVERNANCE

SOCIAL



(≡)(ຽ

Expansion of Social Contribution Activities

Samyang Group realizes a prosperous and conveninent life through social contribution activities centered on fostering human resources, preserving the environment, and promoting health. Samyang Group strives to contribute to the overall development of society by cooperating with the community on the principle of not only enhancing the competitiveness of the company but also fulfilling its social responsibility.

Promoting Social Contribution Activities

Samyang Group actively engages in social contribution activities through fostering talent, preserving environmental and improving health for a happier society. Samyang Group's efforts contribute to customers' abundant and convenient lives and are striving to continue to unfold in society beyond the corporate fence. Samyang Group does its best to fulfill corporate social responsibility from the beginning of its foundation in accordance with founder Kim Yeon-Su's management philosophy that 'companies should not be just groups for profit, but should be responsible for the rich country with a sense of historical calling to the state and society.'

Currently, Samyang Group is promoting social contribution activities with the aim of providing opportunities to create new values even in difficult situations based on its vision of a company that 'ingredients that add value to life.' The scholarship project with a long tradition is a symbolic activity of Samyang Group that practices the spirit of fostering talent and corporate social responsibility, and is carried out through the Yangyoung Foundation and the Sudang Foundation. We established and sponsored the women's cycling team, which is an unpopular sport, and contribute to the growth of sports talent. The Love Nature With Blue Mind: Drawing Festival, which is held to inform growing children of the importance of environmental protection, attracts more than 10,000 students and parents every year. Samyang's employees and families participate in various volunteer activities to help underprivileged neighbors with difficulties to spread love to the local community.





Samyang Group Performance of Social Contribution Activities

Classification (*)	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Donations	KRW million	478	127	395
Environment	KRW million	13	53	75
Underprivileged	KRW million	373	380	374
Communities	KRW million	47	61	59
Fostering human resources	KRW million	839	1,010	1,195
Total	KRW million	1,750	1,631	2,098

(*) Recalculated data due to changing the criteria for classifying social contribution performance

54

+ Expansion of Social Contribution Activities

SOCIAL

Introducing Social Foundations

Introducing Foundations

Yangyoung Foundation

The Yangyoung Foundation, the first private scholarship foundation in Korea, awards scholarships to around 80 undergraduates each year and supports the research expenses of professors in the humanities and natural sciences. The Yangyoung Foundation and Sudang Foundation are public corporations that aim to foster talent. The Yangyoung Foundation was founded by Chairman Sudang Kim Yeon-Su of Samyang Corporation in 1938 as Korea's first private scholarship foundation. Sudang Foundation was founded in 1968 to expand the scholarship program. Later, affiliates of Samyang Group, including Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, KCI, and Samnam Petrochemical, joined the fundraising efforts. Despite challenging conditions, the Yangyoung and Sudang Foundations provide scholarships to exemplary students each year and support the research expenses of teaching and research organizations. In particular, the Sudang Foundation operates the Sudang Prize to encourage those who contribute to the advancement of academic and technical fields in South Korea.

Sudang Foundation

The Sudang Foundation offers scholarships to around 20 undergraduates and 60 high school students every year and supports various academic activities.

Yangyoung Foundation_Scholarship and Support Achievement (1939-2022)

			(Unit of amount: KRW million)
Classification (*)	Scholarship	Research Expenses	Academic Support
Number of recipients	9,598 people	591 people	136 cases
Amount	15,990	4,363	2,059

(*) Recalculated only by the performance of the Yangyoung Foundation

Sudang Foundation_Scholarship and Support Achievement (1939-2022)

(Unit of amount: KRW million)

Classification	Scholarship (Middle and High Schools)	Scholarship (Universities)	Research Expenses	Academic Support	Educational Institutions
Number of recipients	11,288 people	2,368 people	237 people	38 cases	1 case
Amount	2,919	5,211	1,528	370	144

Introducing the Sudang Prize

The Sudang Prize was introduced to encourage people who make outstanding contributions to developing the nation and society, in keeping with the spirit of Sudang Kim Yeon-Su, the founder of Samyang Group, who was dedicated to fostering national prosperity and talent. The Sudang Prize was started by the Kyungbang Scholarship Society in 1973, and continued in the form of Sudang Science Awards, which was granted 14 times up to 1986. The Sudang Foundation took over the Sudang Science Awards and expanded the scope to include the natural sciences and humanities. In 2006, the Sudang Science Awards was reorganized as the 15th Sudang Prize.

GOVERNANCE

Currently, the Sudang Prize committee receives recommendations for candidates in three categories, including basic sciences, applied sciences, and humanities, and selects two researchers with outstanding achievements to receive prize money of KRW 200 million and a plaque. Sudang Foundation has organized the Sudang Prize Steering Committee, composed of renowned social figures, to increase the fairness and expertise in the administration of the Sudang Prize.



(≡)(5

+ Expansion of Social Contribution Activities

GOVERNANCE

SOCIAL

Human Resource Development

Startup Open Innovation Program

Samyang Group plans to run an open innovation program that provides support to startups and start-up teams seeking to collaborate in areas related to existing business fields. The Open Innovation Program will find startups with excellent innovative technologies, provide market verification opportunities through collaboration with Business Department, provide PoC funding and investment review. Based on the varied experience and know-how of Samyang Group, we plan to create a variety of collaboration models and actively support the growth of startups. Samyang Group's open innovation program will contribute to the development of the domestic startup ecosystem and help startups upgrade their technologies and businesses with the support of Samyang Group.

Blue Manito Mentoring Activities of Youth Hope Foundation Startup open innovation program

Samyang Group is sponsoring the Youth Hope Foundation, a public foundation under the Ministry of Justice, for the right growth of teenagers. Samyang Group's employees participate in the 'Blue Manito', a one-on-one mentoring program, of the Youth Hope Foundation and act as mentors. Mentors of Samyang Group not only develop their human values through mentoring activities with teenagers, but also contribute to fostering talents for a sustainable future by supporting and assisting their hopes and dreams as a socially responsible company.



Samyang Corporation Women's Cycling Team

Samyang Group founded the women's cycling team in 1986, when cycling was not well known in Korea, and continued to sponsor and operate it until now, contributing to the development of the unpopular sports field. Since its establishment, the Samyang Corporation Women's Cycling Team has produced numerous national representatives and revitalized the stagnated Korean women's cycling scene by setting new Korean records.



Samyang Corporation Women's Cycling Team

Environmental Conservation

Love Nature With Blue Mind: Drawing Festival

Samyang Group and Huvis held the '24th Love Nature With Blue Mind: Online Drawing Festival' for students attending elementary and middle schools in the Jeollabuk-do and Jeonju regions. The 'Love Nature With Blue Mind: Drawing Festival' is an event jointly hosted by Huvis, a company specializing in chemical fiber materials, with affiliates of Samyang Group including Samyang Corporation and Samyang Kasei. Since its inception in 1996, around 10,000 students and parents have participated in making this event a representative environmental festival of Jeollabuk-do Province and a nationwide environmental event.



Love Nature With Blue Mind: Online Drawing Festival

(≡)(ຽ

+ Expansion of Social Contribution Activities

Future Science Camp

Samyang Group's Future Science Camp is one of the educational and social contribution programs held by Samyang Group to practice corporate social responsibility. It is an educational camp that provides opportunities for science and technology education to teenagers who can lead the future. This camp is for vulnerable youth, and participants can learn the importance and fun of science and technology and develop their creative problem-solving skills through lectures, experience programs, and laboratory practice activities.

(Due to COVID-19, it has been suspended from 2020 to 2022, and will proceed again from 2023)

Conducting Natural Purification Activities in the Community

Samyang Group is carrying out One-Company and One-Stream Purification Activity in the community as a natural purification activity. One-Company and One-Stream Purification Activity is a social contribution activity that Samyang Group started in 2013 to focus more on environmental protection while practicing corporate social responsibility. In the One-Company and One-Stream Purification Activity, various activities such as cleaning trash or pollutants regularly in the stream section owned by Samyang Group affiliates and planting trees to preserve biodiversity are carried out.



One-Company and One-Stream Campaign

Protecting Local Communities

SOCIAL

Beautiful Sharing Pack

Beautiful Sharing Pack is one of Samyang Group's social contribution programs, and it is an activity to convey love and warm hearts through volunteer activities to help neighbors in need in the local communities. The program aims to convey the practice of love to various vulnerable groups such as orphans, children, teenagers, the elderly, and the disabled in the community, and delivers a sharing pack consisting of various essential household items including 'Q.one' sugar, rice, soap, and toothpaste. Through this, Samyang Group is contributing to the development of the community and the harmony of the community by identifying the problems of the community and continuously supporting them on the spot.

GOVERNANCE

House Repair, and Briquette Delivery

Samyang Group conducts a House Repair and Briquette Delivery program to help neighbors in need improve their residential environment and meet their wintering needs. Employees of the Group participate in these volunteer activities to share their warmth with neighbors.



+ Expansion of Social Contribution Activities

GOVERNANCE

SOCIAL

ServeQ cake promotion poster



Community Chest of Korea donation activity

CASE STUDY

Samyang Corporation

Provided 'Neighborhood Bakery's Cake Recipe' for Free during Christmas Season

ServeQ, a food ingredients distribution brand of Samyang Corporation, a food and chemical affiliate of Samyang Group, has started a warm good deed for co-prosperity with local bakeries ahead of the Christmas season. ServeQ released eight new Christmas cake recipes developed by its confectionery chief on its website and distributed promotional posters free of charge. The new recipes and promotional posters jointly provided by ServeQ and the Korea Confectionery Association have been running for 10 years since the launch of ServeQ in 2013 to support small bakeries that are difficult to develop new menus compared to franchise bakeries. ServeQ aims to release recipes and distribute promotional posters to about 6,000 bakeries across the country to reduce the number of self-employed bakeries and help small bakeries' promotional activities and strengthen their competitiveness. Meanwhile, ServeQ continues to develop bakery recipes that reflect the latest trends by its professional chefs, as well as cakes, which it provides free of charge to restaurant workers and prospective founders.

Samyang Group

Donated KRW 300 million to the Community Chest of Korea

Samyang Group donated KRW 300 million to the Community Chest of Korea. Samyang Holdings and Samyang Innochem contributed KRW 100 million, and Samyang Packaging and Samnam Petrochemical contributed KRW 50 million to this donation. The donated funds will be used to support the basic livelihood of neglected neighbors, improve their residential environment, and provide essential medical expenses. Samyang Group has been donating neighbor funds to the Community Chest of Korea every year since 2001.

Samyang Group

Scholarships for 2022 Delivered by the Yangyoung and Sudang Foundations

The Yangyoung and Sudang Foundations of Samyang Group awarded KRW 1 billion scholarships for 2022 to 143 high school, undergraduates and graduate students in South Korea. The Yangyoung Foundation supported 65 undergraduate and graduate students, and the Sudang Foundation supported 143 students, including 18 undergraduates and 60 high school students. They provided KRW 1 billion to the recipients. The scholarships of the two foundations are KRW 1 million per year for high school students, and scholarships for undergraduates are provided for up to four semesters. Samyang has been offering additional living expenses in addition to tuition fees to help students fully concentrate on their studies. The recipients were exemplary students selected through recommendations from schools, who have shown outstanding academic performance despite difficult conditions.

Samyang Group

Hosting of the 31st Sudang Prize Ceremony

The Sudang Prize was established to fulfill the spirit of Sudang Kim Yeon-Su, who was dedicated to fostering talent, and annually selects and awards researchers who contribute to the academic advancement of Korea. The Sudang Foundation of Samyang Group selected Oh Saeng-Geun, an honorary professor of French literature department at Seoul National University, and Lee Sung-Hwan, a professor of artificial intelligence department at Korea University, as winners of the 31st Sudang Prize.



31st Sudang Prize

Samyang Group

Donated KRW 200 million to the Restoration of Forest Fires and Supporting Residents on the East Coast

Samyang Group donated KRW 200 million, including KRW 50 million worth of medicines, to recover from forest fires on the east coast and support the affected residents. Its affiliates such as Samyang Holdings, Samyang Packaging, and Samyang Innochem participated in the donation. Samyang Innochem and Samyang Packaging donated KRW 100 million and KRW 50 million, respectively, and Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group donated KRW 50 million worth of an arthritis medicine, 'Rheumastop S Plaster Hot', to the Korean Red Cross.

OVERVIEW	ESG

59

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance



Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

Samyang Group pursues a healthy and happy life of employees by creating an organizational culture in which employees can actively work and an environment that maintains work-life balance.



Town hall meeting



0

Female Human Resources Mentoring Forum

Organizational Culture

MATERIAL

Establishing Joyfully Working Organizational Culture for Employees

Organizational culture is the spiritual foundation of a company that determines the values, way of thinking, and behavior of members. It constitutes the unique and core capability of companies. Samyang Group strives to create a pleasant organizational culture for employees by operating various activation programs.

Name of Programs	Details
Organizational Activation Surveys and Task Derivation Workshops	Annual organizational activation surveys to investigate the commitment of employees and organizational workshops to establish various action plans for identifying and improving points requiring supplementation
Employee Assistance Program (implemented in 2023)	Supporting to resolve concerns and support positive thinking and commitment to work through professional psychological counseling companies for the psychological/emotional stability of employees
CEO Interaction	Forming an organizational consensus through communication with the CEO and building trust and positive perception about the company and management
Selecting and Operating Change Agent	Supporting Change Agent activities to spread key messages to improve the organizational atmosphere within the group and to internally drive change and innovation
Operating Activities to Vitalize Organizational Culture by Company and Organization	Designing and operating organization-vitalizing activities by each organization, to meet the needs of members, help growth, and serve society.
W_Ave (women's Avenue)	Inviting female professional personnels from both within and outside the company to support future vision and career planning, as well as conducting explanations of the work-life balance programs in place within the group, along with Q&A sessions.

Diagnosis

Samyang Group conducts annual organizational activation surveys to identify areas necessary for sustainable growth and improve problems. Organizational activation surveys diagnose the Vitality Index (VI) of Samyang and study areas for improvement. VI is calculated by measuring the number of employees who are immersed in work. Samyang Group is planning to foster a healthy organizational culture by diagnosing the organizational culture, objectively deriving group-wide improvement tasks, and actively resolving such issues.

Continuous Communication to Revitalize Organizational Culture

Through regular town hall meetings for each group and organization, Samyang Group is promoting various activities to share the future direction, open a place of communication where members can share their opinions openly, and promote socialization. In addition, Samyang Group is preparing specific plans to create healthier organizations. We plan to develop various educational curricula that reflect the opinions from the junior meetings and enhance communication about the group's vision. Improvement activities to upgrade the culture of Samyang Group and gain empathy from employees will continue in the future.

Organizational Activation, from Diagnosis to Practice

1	2	3	4
Samyang Group Organizational Activation Survey and Identification of Challenges In order to form a healthy organizational culture, we are investigating group VI diagnosis and improvement areas and deriving group- level improvement tasks based on the results.	Group-Specific Organizational Activation Survey Challenge Identification Workshops We are conducting workshops with executives, team leaders, and team members from each business group. By identifying positive experiences and emotions within the organization, we are selecting organizational- specific follow-up tasks that focus on problem-solving.	Keep going As the digital work environment settles down, a 'change in the way one works' is inevitable. We are holding small group meetings to improve members' understanding of the system. In addition, we induce changes with C&C Board and Change Agent, and continue changes with C&C Board and meetings for generational understanding.	Future Plans to Revitalize the Organization

(≡)()

 \bigcirc

(1) Respect

(2) Prohibit

(3) Prohibit

(4) No Discr

(5) Prohibit

APPENDIX

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

Organizational Diversity

Samyang Group seeks to diversify its human resources and aims to build an inclusive culture in which all employees can maximize their capabilities. To this end, we are establishing diversity goals and guantitative goals to achieve them. Samyang Group's employees consist of a variety of personnel, including women, the disabled, veterans, and foreigners, and the proportion of female employees is increasing every year. In 2023, we hold Mentoring for Female Employees to strive to foster female leaders. In addition, in the mid- to long-term, the diversity goal of Samyang Holdings was set at 7.4% of the socially disadvantaged compared to all employees, 12 employees with disabilities, and 24 employees eligible for veterans.

CASE STUDY

Samyang Group

Company newsletter "With Us" from September to October 2022



Samyang Fine Technology's labor-management Co-prosperity workshop

With Colleagues, Meeting After Work

Through creative activities, Samyang Group established a virtuous cycle structure in which labor and management ahcive continuous growth of the company through creative activities, therfore create happiness for employees. Encouraging active communication between employees and sharing their stories through company newsletter is to establish a virtuous cycle structure. The realization of a communicational labor-management culture is one of the core values of Samyang Group.

Samyang Fine Technology

Conducting Labor-Management Co-prosperity Workshops

Samyang Fine Technology held a labor-management co-prosperity workshop. As part of the project to support the labor-management co-prosperity program at the Industrial Peace Awards in Jeollabuk-do, the event had a tour of the Jeonju plant of Samyang Kasei, a town hall meeting hosted by the CEO Lee Hyuk, and a vision briefing by the SC PU Head Cho Young-Do for communication and harmony. At the event, all employees pledged to do their best to strengthen manufacturing competitiveness based on the culture of labor-management co-prosperity in 2023, although the management environment is difficult both internally and externally.

Human Rights Management

SOCIAL

Human Rights Management Policy

Based on the management philosophy of 'Ingredients that Add Value to Life', Samyang Group aims to grow into a sustainable company by respecting and protecting the human rights of all stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers, and the community. We comply with international human rights standards and norms, including the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights, UN Business and Human Rights Implementation Guidelines, OECD Multinational Enterprise Guidelines, and UN Convention on the Rights of the Child. Through the enactment of this policy, we share the policy with all stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers, and community, who may pose human rights-related risks, and strive to improve and spread awareness. Samyang Group will apply its human rights management policy to all business sites around the world and check and improve human rights and labor-related risks through continuous monitoring. The human rights management policy was proposed and approved by the ESG Committee of Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI of four listed companies in Samyang Group, and is disclosed on the Samyang Group website.

0

Human Rights

Management

Ą

Human rights management policy

Human Rights Management Policy

l) Respect for human rights	(6) Guarantee of freedom of association and
2) Prohibition of forced labor	collective bargaining
8) Prohibition of child labor	(7) Compliance with wages and working hours
l) No Discrimination	(8) Safety and health compliance
5) Prohibition of sexual harassment and	(9) Responsible supply chain management
workplace bulllying	(10) Protecting customer and user rights and privacy

(≡)(

61

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

Implementing Human Rights Management

To facilitate communication with stakeholders, Samyang Group practices transparent disclosure of human rights-related matters and strives to clarify the direction of human rights management at the top management level. Samyang Group has officially documented the comprehensive concept and management standards for human rights management and has been approved by the ESG Committee. In addition, we plan to conduct a human rights impact assessment through surveys for employees and self-inspection in the business sites in the future. Samyang Group is planning to identify external conditions (such as human rights-related laws) for human rights impact assessment will include a human rights survey for Samyang Group employees and a self-inspection of human rights in the business sites. We will monitor the results of the assessment and promote improvement activities to establish an organizational culture that respects and protects human rights. In addition, we plan to publish a human rights report to express the CEO's commitment in human rights management and to strengthen transparent communication on human rights-related matters for stakeholders. Through this, we want to actively promote human rights management and become a company trusted by stakeholders.

Human Rights Management Education and Monitoring

SOCIAL

As ESG management is spreading, interest in human rights management of companies has increased. Every year, Samyang Group provides anti-bullying education, sexual harassment prevention education, and education to improve awarness of the disabled to all employees, including new employees, to prevent human rights risks in advance and raise their human rights awareness. In addition, a counseling room is established and operated to handle grievances. Samyang Group continuously monitors and improves compliance with human rights management policy. Monitoring and improvements are regularly reported through the ESG Committee, management meetings, and sustainability report to internalize human rights policies.

GOVERNANCE

Human Rights Management Process





A)

)(≡)(ර

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

GOVERNANCE

In-house Human Rights Report

To improve the working environment of employees, Samyang Group prepares a grievance process to listen to the grievances of workers. To this end, one member representing labor and management from among the members of the labor-management council is elected as a grievance handling member. An employee may report to the grievance committee member verbally or in writing, and the grievance committee member shall immediately handle the reported matters by consultation with all members. With these measures, Samyang Group will promptly handle employees' grievances and create a more pleasant working environment.

Process of Handling Workplace Bullying



Grievance Reception Channels



Labor-Management Council

SOCIAL

Samyang Group respects the freedom of association according to the ILO (International Labor Organization) Conventions and domestic labor laws. Samyang Group has established the Labor-Management Council Regulations to conduct activities for improving its organizational culture and handling grievances. The Labor-Management Council is held once a quarter. Matters determined by the Labor-Management Council identically apply to all employees, and some individual matters apply to the corresponding individuals.

•	Labor-Management Council Regulations
Improved pro	ductivity and performance distribution
• •	assignment, education, and training of workers
Prevention of	
Grievances of and Work-Far	workers (including grievances related to the Equal Employment Opportunity nily Balance Assistance Act, on issues related to education, assignments, ismissals, etc.)
improvement health of wor	of safety, health, and other work environments and the promotion of the kers
5 Improvement	of personnel and labor management systems
	iples of employment adjustment, such as reassignment of workers, d dismissal for managerial or technical reasons
Operation of	working and resting hours
Improvement	of wage payment methods, systems, and structures
LO Introduction	of new machines and technologies or improvement of work processes
1 Enactment	or revision of work rules
L2 Support for for workers	he employee shareholding system and other property formation systems
L3 Compensati	ons for workers regarding job-related inventions, etc.
14 Improved w	elfare for employees
L5 Installation	of worker monitoring facilities within business sites
L6 Support for	the maternity protection of female workers and work-life balance
	sment in the business site and the prevention of sexual harassment by etc. under the Equal Employment Opportunity and Work-Family Balance ct
8 Prohibition	of workplace bullying under the Labor Standards Act
9 Other matte	rs related to labor-management cooperation

OVERVIEW ESG JOURNEY	OURNEY ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPENDIX
----------------------	----------------------	--------	------------	----------

(≣)(ອ)

Work-life Balance

Changing Work Environment

Samyang Group is concentrating on changing work environment to increase the efficiency and satisfaction of employees. We take strategies to reduce inefficient tasks, focus on core tasks, focus on changing the way and culture of working. We listen to employees, checks work processes, and eliminate inefficient practices. These efforts improve the working environment of employees and increase their productivity, efficiency, and creativity.



(≡)(

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

Change in Working Method

Samyang Group uses digital infrastructure to increase work efficiency and effectiveness and strengthen investment in human resources. Samyang Group introduced M365 and Smart CRMs, etc., and deployed Mobility work environments and New ERP to help focus on more value-added tasks and handle tasks based on facts and data, beyond time and space constraints.



CASE STUDY

Samyang Group

Building a Digital HR Infrastructure

SOCIAL

Samyang Group opened a new Samyang HR system to improve the inconvenience of the existing HR work system and to effectively manage HR using new technologies such as cloud, big data, AI, and RPA. The new Samyang HR system can support active communication among employees, and therefore transparent and fair field-oriented personnel management is feasible. Samyang Group is considering establishing a new HR system not only in domestic but also in overseas business sites. We are also upgrading our HR systems to provide more information in the HR Analytics area. Currently, we are increasing the completeness of the system through training employees to establish the system and continuous improvement work. The new HR system is based on AI and ML technologies and develops as employees use it more, which will help Samyang Group improve its HR work environment in the future.



Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report	OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL
---	----------	-------------	---------------	--------

• Supporting general health checkup expenses (employees and their spouse)

for the purpose of checking health conditions and preventing illnesses

• Supporting medical expenses for employees, their spouses, children, and

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

65



Daycare center



Expenses parents to reduce the burden of medical expenses **Operating In-house** • Providing free breakfast, lunch, and dinner at the in-house restaurant **Supporting Stable Life Restaurants and Fitness** • Operating a fitness center at each business site to help employees manage their health Centers • Various in-house loans, such as livelihood funds, marriage funds, transfer Loan funds, housing funds, and employee association loans **Cafeteria and Various** · Providing employees with various amenities, including a cafeteria and other **Convenience Facilities** facilities to enhance work efficiency In-house restaurant **Operating a Daycare** · Operating a daycare center for double-income parents who need to meet Center at Work the demands of work and children at the same time

Fitness center



Cafeteria



Employee lounge





Supporting Healthy Lives

Supporting Health

Checkup and Medical



GOVERNANCE

APPENDIX

+ Flexible Organizational Culture and Work-life Balance

SOCIAL

가족친화인증서 가 입 명 : (주)상양측당스 소 제 기 : 서류에서 해주 (#2392 21 ((2518) 928924 5.4895 Flextime 8870:2020.12.01-2023.11.30 한 기업은 '가족차와 사회환경의 조성 측정에 관한 법률, 제152 제1 앞에 따라 우수한 가족전화경영 운영제제를 구축하고 가족원화제도를 운영함으로써 근로자의 입·생활 균형을 지원하고 국가경쟁력 항상에 기여하였기에 가족선하기인 으로 인증합니다. **Operating Sabbatical** 2020/1 1219 0113 Month employees who have worked for 10 years 여성가족부 Samyang Holdings Family-Summer Vacation and friendly certificate from the Vacation Allowance Ministry of Gender Equality and Family **Operating Recreation** 12020-08671 Facilities and Providing a Leisure Activity 가족친화인증서 a leisure activity allowance Allowance 기 입 명 : (주)상양사 소 계 지 : 서울카로서 8817 8430월 31 (2116) 41944 書意可登:2020.12.01-2023.11.30 **Providing Gifts** 위기업은 '가족원화사회환경의 조성측관에 관한 법률, 제15로 제1항에 따라 추수한 가족원화정영 운영체제를 구축하고 **Every Year** 가족된화제도를 운영함으로써 근로자의 접·생활 균형을 지원하고 국가정병역 항상에 기어하였기에 가족된화기업 으로 선중합니다. 202011 1218 0118 **Rewards and** Rewarding long service **Overseas Training for** 여성가족부전했 Long Service leaves Samyang Corporation Family-

Supporting In-house

Club Activities

friendly certificate from the Ministry of Gender Equality and Family

Supporting Pleasant Lives

· Operating free working hours and flextime systems for employees to choose the most convenient time to work during the day

• Operating a sabbatical month system for new team managers and

Supportting for summer vacations and providing vacation allowances

• Operating recreation centers in Jeju, condominiums and resorts (Hanwha, Sono, Muju, Kumho, etc.), supporting lodging fees, and providing

• Providing gifts for traditional holidays (New Year's, Chuseok), Labor Day, and Foundation Day and improving productivity

Supporting overseas training with expenses, and granting long service

Supporting club operations and activities to support members' interests

CASE STUDY

Samyang Group

Samyang Group's Metaverse Increased Communication with Employees and Customers

Samyang Group has implemented 'Samyang World', a virtual reality space to guide business information by business sector on the metaverse platform ZEP, and communicates with employees and customers. Around the main island, where Jongno Headquarters and Samyang Discovery Center are located, which are exactly the same as the actual appearance, are surrounded by islands in chemical, food, medicine, bio, packaging, and other business sectors. Public Relations Centers of islands for each business sector have objects for viewing related content such as promotional materials and videos for each business. In the auditorium of the main island's Headquarters building, there is a history hall where people can experience Samyang Group's heritage, and the Discovery Center has various spaces such as OX quizzes, which are used as communication channels for Samyang Group employees.





Samyang Group World Map

Metaverse '100 Challenge' Communication Event

Welfare Benefit Satisfaction Diagnosis

Samyang Group is periodically surveying welfare benefits service satisfaction. The survey results is being used to evaluate and improve benefits services. We continue to communicate with employees to improve the quality of life, improve work satisfaction, boost morale, and work commitment.

ESG JOURNEY

67

+ Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development

GOVERNANCE



A

)(≡)(ර

Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development

Samyang Group prioritizes hiring and fostering excellent people. We strive to actively attract talented people and create an environment they can demonstrate their capabilities. We are focusing on improving the capabilities of the entire organization by providing opportunities for all members to individually grow. We have established a transparent compensation system based on fair performance evaluation results.



Samyang Group recruitment poster

Talent Acquisition and Development Strategies

Talent Acquisition and Development

Samyang Group invests for talent, focusing on the right people of Samyang and HR operation principles. We help all employees realize their self to the fullest extent possible, contribute to the growth of the company, and further to the sustainable development of society, and build an open corporate culture that recognizes each other's diversity and capabilities.

Core Qualities of the Samyang People in Creating a New Path

Although each person is doing different things in their respective positions, the Samyang people are using these three qualities as one common vision.



Securing Talent Strategies

Employees of Samyang with competence and passion are the company's greatest assets, who drive the future of Samyang Group. Accordingly, Samyang Group strives to recruit outstanding human resources for the needs of each organization as the company grows. Samyang Group attracts individuals to grow with the company by operating a scholarship system for undergraduates and graduate students every year. In addition, Samyang Group is implementing experiential internship programs that link major universities with its business sites and offer field trips to plants.

Talent Recruitment System

Samyang Group changed the recruitment method from open recruitment twice a year to regular selection throughout the year to find talent. In addition to occasional recruitment, we operate various recruitment channels such as direct search, expansion of online promotion, expansion of recommended recruitment, and formation of major university networks. All applicants have equal opportunities in the recruitment process and are not subject to unfair discrimination by academic background, gender, religion, etc.



 $(\equiv)(\mathfrak{G})$

68

+ Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development

GOVERNANCE

Establishing Education System to Improve Compentencies and Job Expertise

Samyang Group operates education programs to improve. A variety of programs are held including e-learning, microlearning through Workday (HR system) built for HR digital transformation to facilitate selfdirected Learning and offline course.

Joining a Company



New employee orientation program



New employee orientation program



Mentoring

New Employee On-boarding Process

Samyang Group is helping new employees adjust to the organization through an on-boarding process that has been going on for about a year. New employees first access the on-boarding page via Workday (HR system) to learn video lectures on in-house systems to improve their organizational understanding. They use this page to understand not only the progress of the onboarding process, but also the features and information that are useful for their work. After the video lecture, they will be on the Job Training (OJT) for 8 weeks to learn the job they are assigned to under the guidance of senior employees of their team. After that, new employees from each business site gather at the training center in Daejeon for two to three weeks, two to three times a year to participate in the introductory course. Introductory courses include programs such as team-building to strengthen networking among new employees, enducation for organization-understanding and improvement on work efficiency, and stress management, etc. Also, through mentoring, new employees create a career roadmap to specifically set career growth directions and plans within the organization. Mentors who are senior employees related to new employees and Mentees will conduct career development activities such as job training and role model interviews and psychosocial activities to strengthen the intimacy between them for 6 months. In addition, Samyang Group is constantly planning and developing education to improve organizational adjustment and competencies of new employees, and striving to strengthen the retention of new employees.

Developing Job Competencies

Job Competency Enhancement Program

Samyang Group establishes a job training system and executes job training. Based on in-house instructors selected based on excellent talent, video lecture contents will be produced and operated through the Workday learning module, and offline courses will be opened and operated together based on the needs of employees. Through the academic degree program, potential employees can develop their expertise by taking bachelor's, master's, and doctorate degrees highly related to their job.

Career Development Planning System

All employees of Samyang Group can develop their careers through educational opportunities and job rotation by creating career development plan.

Career Development and Job competency Programs

Name of Program	Description	
Job competency program	Specialized job-related education focused on enhancing the required competencies (organized by business or job category).	
Academic degree support program (Bachelor's, Master's, Doctoral)	Providing help to take bachelor's, master's, and doctorate degrees.	
On-demand learning and book learning course	Education featuring online lectures and correspondence courses linked to leadership, general skills, and job-related competencies, with additional reading materials.	

(≡)(ຽ

69

+ Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development

Developing Common Competencies

Programs to Strengthen Digital Competency

Samyang Group operates training to develop digital-based thinking capabilities. We help to improve work productivity with OA skill UP course to increase the utilization of M365-centered OA such as PowerPoint and Excel, and introduction and basic courses to Robotic Process Automation (RPA) based on theory and practice. Also, by conducting a digital marketing course focusing on employees in sales roles, we contribute to expanding customer inflow and sales expansion.

Business Trend Live Seminar

Samyang Group hold monthly business live seminar on various topics such as trends, self-development, and digital as well as contents related to Samyang Group's future businesses such as eco-friendly and high-tech materials. By operating YouTube Live with speakers who are experts in each field, employees across the country can participate in real-time and gain various insights.



Education to strengthen digital competency

Increasing Leadership Competency

Programs to Improve Leadership Competencies

By continually operating the leadership pipeline system, Samyang Group endeavors to expand personalized education and build sophisticated, detailed programs.

Development Goals for Each Leadership Pipeline



Program to Foster Core Talents: Future Leader

The members selected as Future Leaders of Samyang Group participate in systematic training programs such as leadership skills, facilitation training, digital competency training, and executive meetings to grow into future managers. Among Future Leaders, those selected as outstanding candidates are encouraged to develop their expertise through MBA courses.

(≣)(ອ

APPENDIX

+ Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development

Developing Leadership Competencis

Training Goals for Each Hierarchical Levels

	Name of Program	Details	
Executive and Business Leaders	External forum for management	CEO courses, ESG leadership courses, etc	
	Integrated course for people and businesses	Courses linked to results of 360 degree feedback (optional)	
	One-to-one and one-to-many coaching courses	Expert coaching and learning on leadership	
	Orientation program for new c-level executives	Understanding the organization and in-house systems for new management	
Manager	Growth Leadership Course (GLC)	Understanding leadership principles, developing and learning self-models	
	Goal and performance management capabilities course (three times a year)	Setting goals for absolute evaluation and learning know-how about performance management	
	Course to improve the competency of team managers	Process design according to an analysis of educational needs (optional)	
	Business classics reading course	Learning management classics and online content	
	Orientation program for new manager	Understanding in-house systems and organization/performance management	
Successor of Manager	Leadership for middle managers	Learning change manager role execution, in-house system familiarization, and coaching training	
	Facilitation	Basic and advanced courses	

Operating Support System for Retirees

Retirement

Samyang Group supports middle-aged and old-aged retirees in designing their life after retirement by operating a future design education program. This program aims to provide life designing opportunities and support the job transitions after retirement. This education is provided to employees who are 50 years old or above on the year of the retirement date, employees subject to regular retirement, and employees who are non-voluntarily resigning for management reasons.



Employee Education (Regular Employees)

Classi	fication	Unit	2020	2021(*)	2022
Hours of Education	Total hours of education	Hours	8,760	20,371	20,173
	Hours of education per person	Hours	72	68	68
Educational Expenses	Total educational expenses	KRW million	169	379	447
	Educational expenses per person	KRW million/ person	1.41	1.28	1.49

(*) Re-calculated due to an error in aggregation of training time data in 2021

Retirement Pension Operation Status_Based on Separate Financial Statements

Classi	fication	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Defined Benefit (DB)	Number of holders	Persons	120	420	423
	Reserve	KRW million	21,050	37,693	42,229
	Reserve ratio (*)	%	114.3	96.0	105.7
Defined Contribution (DC)	Number of holders	Persons	13	24	27
	Guarantee rate	%	100	100	100

(*) Re-established the criteria for calculating the reserve ratio from the estimated retirement benefit amount to the present value of the retirement benefit debt amount

)(≣)(ຽ

ESG JOURNEY

APPENDIX

+ Performance Evaluation and Compensation for Employee Competency Development

Fair Performance Evaluation and Reasonable Compensation

Fair Performance Evaluation and Compensation System

Samyang Group promotes the growth of employees and company by operating a HR system based on the value and performance of individual jobs, not seniority-oriented HR management. Samyang Group's job-oriented and performance-oriented HR system manages the performance of employees by organizing them into achievements that are the output of performance and individual knowledge, skills, and behavioral characteristics necessary for performance. Competency evaluation is classified into common competency, leadership competency (managers), and job competency to evaluate/ assess employee's potential.

The evaluation is conducted in an absolute manner and is evaluated on actual performance based on individual goals, rather than evaluating relative advantage within the organization. For increased objectivity and acceptability of evaluations, employees are evaluated from various angles on their ability to interact and collaborate, based on intermediate inspection, occasional evaluation, and feedback from coworkers. The job-based HR of Samyang Group offers reasonable rewards by reflecting relative job values and performances based on performance evaluation management and competency evaluation management.

Performance Evaluation Process

Classification	Setting Goals	Intermediate inspection	Evaluation and Feedback
Achievement	Goal sharing meeting Discussing individual roles and responsibilities to achieve organizational goals and perform duties Setting individual goals - Establishing achievement levels and initiatives for each evaluation task Reviewing and Approving goal	Continuing occasional evaluation and feedback Aggregating Interim performance for each evaluation task and collecting evidence Interim inspection meeting and interview - Checking progress against goals and discussing how to achieve them Correcting goals after agreement	Collecting performance results and evidence for each evaluation task, and self-evaluation Evaluating by superiors based on evaluation tasks Feedback-interview for evaluation results - Discussing feedback and improvement measures Determining final evaluation
Competency	setting results • Setting competency and career development goals • Reviewing and approving settings	with evaluators if necessary Continuing occasional evaluation and feedback Aggregating interim performance against competency and career development goals and collecting evidence Interim inspection meeting and interview Checking the level of implementation and discussing future plans and support 	grade • Evaluating competency and career development goals - Self-evaluation and evaluating by superiors • Evaluating competency - Self-evaluation and evaluating by superiors - Discussing feedback and improvement measures • Determining final evaluation grade

Reasonable Compensation

Samyang Group operates an evaluation and compensation system that returns reasonable compensation based on the performance of individual employees. Compensation are provided based on performance evaluation results in connection with salary increase rates, bonuses, and performance allowances, offering appropriate incentives to High performers to motivate employees. In this manner, the job-based HR of Samyang offers reasonable rewards by reflecting relative job values and performances.

Evaluation and Compensation



Basic Salaries

Compensations differentiated according to job values and performance evaluation results

Incentives

Incentives differentiated according to the attainment of target financial performance

+ Suppliers ESG Risk Management

SOCIAL



(≡)(ຽ

Suppliers ESG Risk Management

Samyang Group aims to help all suppliers grow together with the ability to raise awareness and manage ESG management. To this end, we maintain close partnerships with our suppliers and implement various management systems to fulfill our overall social responsibilities.

Building a Sustainable Supply Chain

Prosperous Life with Suppliers

With the advent of the age of the Industrial Revolution 4.0, companies faced an uncertain environment. Close cooperation with various suppliers is essential for the continuous development of the company. Even after its foundation, Samyang Group has always emphasized trust and co-prosperity, and has been on the path of win-win growth with its suppliers. In addition, we aim to create a fair transaction culture based on ethical management principles and strengthen cooperative relationships. Samyang Group will establish a long-term partnership through various exchange activities and co-prosperity cooperation systems, and continue its efforts for win-win growth with its suppliers.

Sustainable Supply Chain Strategies



Operating Integrated Purchase System

The Integrated Purchasing Office purchases all integrated purchase items of Samyang Group, optimizing human resources on the company level to attain its purchasing objectives. In addition, we aim for rapid and efficient business processing by computerizing the purchasing process. The personnel refer to the operation manual for details about providing information to suppliers, participating in biddings, purchase orders, and payment settlement. All data, such as transaction history, are safely stored on the TOPS (Total Open e-Procurement System), ERP, or documents.

Complying with Business Standards

All employees related to purchasing duties must handle their duties ethically and fairly at all times, and all purchasing duties must be carried out while abiding by national laws and regulations. Since the execution of ethical duties has an important impact on the image and competitiveness of Samyang Group, Samyang Group observes its Code of Ethics, Code of Conduct, and Four Major Practices as business standards.

Sustainable Purchasing

Samyang Group perceives its social, environmental, and economic responsibilities and implements its sustainable management guidelines. Samyang Group fulfills its social responsibility through sustainable purchases, co-prosperity with stakeholders, cooperation with customers, and open management based on an open organizational culture. While pursuing environmental soundness with future-oriented, eco-friendly purchases, Samyang Group produces economic profits with innovative technologies and systems and creative purchasing.
(≡)(ຽ

+ Suppliers ESG Risk Management

SOCIAL

Responsible Supply Chain Management

Empowering ESG Competency of Supply Chain

Supply Chain ESG Competency Empowerment Roadmap

Samyang Group has established a three-year roadmap to strengthen ESG competency of supply chain to execute ESG with its suppliers. ESG Code of Conduct was introduced, and an ESG evaluation system suitable for Samyang Group was developed in connection with external specialized organizations, and we are evaluating 10 outstanding suppliers. In the future, we plan to expand our evaluation across the whole part of ESG supply chain to strengthen ESG competency of our supply chain.

Introducing Code of Conduct for Suppliers

According to the principles of ethical management to 'pursue co-development with suppliers by creating a fair transaction culture', Samyang Group will maintain fair transactions with suppliers and further strengthen cooperative relationships. In order to establish long-term partnerships with suppliers and sustainable win-win growth, we have established the Code of Conduct for Suppliers in five areas: human rights management, safety and health management, environmental management, ethical management, and management system. Code of Conduct for Suppliers complies with international standards and norms, including the International Labor Organization (ILO) Core Convention Standards, the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights, UN Guiding Principles on Business & Human Rights, and OECD Multinational Enterprise Guidelines, and applies to all suppliers providing products and services to Samyang Group. The Code of Conduct for Suppliers was proposed and approved by the ESG Committee of Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI of four listed companies in Samyang Group, and is disclosed on the Samyang Group website.

GOVERNANCE

Goals 2023 2024 2025 Establishing **Diagnosing and** Improving and Supply Chain ESG **Evaluating Supply** Monitoring Supply Policy Chain ESG Chain ESG Action plan Establishing ESG Code Selecting and evaluating • Expanding ESG of supply chain ESG of Conduct, evaluation reflection purchase diagnosis targets system process Declaring Code of Establishing a plan to Expanding Conduct for Suppliers enable supply chain improvement support and pledging compliance ESG evaluation programs



Code of Conduct for Suppliers 414 ¢ Compliance with business integrity Industrial safety Fair trade Emergency preparedness Disclosure of information Industrial accident and disease Personal information protection management Physical over-work control intellectual property protection Protection of whistleblowers Hygiene and food and housing Safety and health education and training System Prohibition of forced labor Environmental licensing and reporting compliance Prohibition of child labor Compliance with No Discrimination (\underline{a}) environmental regulations Prohibition of sexual harassment Prevention of environmental and workplace bullying pollution and reduction of Guarantee of freedom of . resource use Expression of will to comply association and collective with self-regulation Hazardous chemicals bargaining management Management obligations and · Guarantee of Wages and benefits responsibilities • Energy consumption and Compliance with working hours GHG emissions management Managing goals Biodiversity Responding to legislation and customer requirements

Educational management

74

(*1) The RBA

(Responsible Business Alliance)

: A global business association

management in the electronics sector, which stipulates labor

rights, environment, and business

used among global supply chain

ethics, and is most commonly

: An index that evaluates and

quantifies the level of win-win

growth of large and medium-

sized companies with great ripple effects from social interest.

The evaluation of this index

is conducted annually by the

Partnership in a comparative

context.

Korea Commission for Corporate

management indicators. (*2) Win-Win Index

(initiative) for supply chain

(≡)(⊅

ESG Evaluation for Outstanding Suppliers

Samyang Group has entered into business agreements with external specialized organizations to bolster support for the ESG management of suppliers and enhance their ESG competitiveness. This agreement aims to strengthen ESG competitiveness across Samyang Group's supply chain, and evaluations have been conducted for some suppliers in 64 categories, including labor rights (19), safety and health (24), environment (12), and business ethics (9). The diagnostic model used for ESG management diagnosis was developed based on K-ESG guidelines and RBA (*1) diagnostic tools, and the results will be incorporated into Samyang Group's supply chain ESG policy formulation. Upholding ethical management principles, Samyang Group maintains fair business relationships with its suppliers and strives to strengthen collaboration. Going forward, ESG management will remain crucial, and the company will focus on fostering long-term partnerships with exceptional suppliers to maximize mutual benefits and synergies.

Evaluation Criteria

Identifying potential employment cases that violate laws and regulations, such as the Labor Standards Act. Identifying any potential violations of workers' freedom and rights outside of laws and regulations. Identifying whether there are any facilities that violate laws and regulations, such as the Occupational Safety and Health Act. B---Safety and Health Identifying whether adequate sanitation is provided in relation to the health. Identifying whether they are operating within the legal framework, such as obtaining environmental permits for workplace facilities, etc. C---Environment • Assessing the presence of a system to monitor and enhance environmental performance beyond the minimum licensing requirements. Identifying whether there are procedures for preventing workers from engaging in anti-corruption or conflicts of interest. D-Business Ethics Assessing whether they are involved in projects that cause social controversy.

Win-Win Growth with Suppliers

SOCIAL

+ Suppliers ESG Risk Management

Given the pivotal role of mutual care and cooperation in societal growth, companies also can achieve heightened outcomes by fostering interdependence and collaboration. Samyang Group places a premium on nurturing a cooperative ecosystem with its suppliers to ensure market competitiveness and sustainable growth. By promoting a culture of equitable transactions and embracing a co-prosperity approach, we strive to advance alongside our suppliers. This endeavor involves implementing diverse support initiatives such as the operation of co-prosperity funds and the establishment of the Samyang Co-prosperity Council, ultimately fostering win-win growth. Consequently, Samyang Corporation has garnered a favorable rating in the Win-Win Index (*2) and attained the highest rating in the Fair Trade Agreement within Samyang Group. To further elevate the Win-Win Index rating, Samyang Group is poised to expand its suppliers network, enhance its framework, and augment co-prosperity initiatives, inclusive of investment.

GOVERNANCE

Supporting Win-Win Growth

Allocating Personnel Dedicated to Win-Win Growth	 Securing market competitiveness and sustainable growth drivers 	Strengthening communication with suppliers
Operating the Internal Deliberation Committee	 Inspecting subcontract transactions 	Establishing fair transaction order
Introduction of Standard Subcontracts	Establishing subcontracting order	• Promoting the rights and interests of contractors
Operating Co-prosperity Funds	Supporting business financing	Supporting suppliers financially
Holding Samyang Co-prosperity Council	• Exchanging information with suppliers	Developing joint technologies

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report



GOVERNANCE

Governance

- 76 Corporate Governance MATERIAL
- 83 Ethics and Compliance Management MATERIAL
- 86 Advancement of Business Portfolio MATERIAL

Establishing a sound corporate governance structure and building a relationship of trust with stakeholders are key factors for sustainable management. In particular, having transparent and fair governance plays a decisive role in gaining the trust of stakeholders. Recently, as the demands of all stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, and local communities, have increased, companies are required to establish sound governance centered on a Board of Directors with independence, diversity, and expertise and to practice transparent and responsible management around this to promote sustainable growth.



SOCIAL

APPENDIX

+ Corporate Governance



(≡)(ර

Corporate Governance

Samyang Holdings is aware of the changes in the corporate management environment and strives to satisfy the diverse needs of stakeholders. To this end, we have formed a Board of Directors with expertise and seek to increase corporate value through continuous improvement of management strategies and communication with stakeholders. Samyang Holdings pursues sustainable management and conducts management activities that consider environmental and social responsibilities.

Operation of Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Samyang Holdings pursues integrity and trust in management based on transparent and sound governance. In pursuit of this objective, comprehensive managerial decisions are made by the Board of Directors, comprising professionals distinguished by their expertise and impartiality. The Board of Directors of Samyang Holdings ensures a balance between oversight and collaboration with the management, thereby achieving stable corporate governance.

Composition of the Board of Directors

Samyang Holdings is continuously striving to enhance corporate value and seeks to improve the rights and interests of stakeholders, including shareholders, based on the management policy of upholding integrity and trust. To this end, the Board of Directors makes resolutions on important matters regulated by laws or articles of association, matters entrusted at the general meeting of shareholders, and matters

related to the basic management guidelines and business management of the company. The Board of Directors also supervises the duties of the management.

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making body of the company and has the authority to appoint the CEO. The majority of the Board is comprised of outside directors to ensure they are independent of the management and dominant shareholders. As of the end of March 2023, the Board of Directors consists of a total of seven members, of whom three are inside directors and four are outside directors. Samyang Holdings operates the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee to ensure the independence and fairness of the candidate recommendation and appointment processes. The Outside Director Candidate Recommendation and appointment processes. The Outside Director Candidate Recommendation and recommends candidates for outside directors who are in the best interests of the company and shareholders, after reviewing their independence from the company and the largest shareholder and their professional capabilities for directing global enterprises. Three outside directors were recommended in 2022 by the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee.

	current composition of b	ourd of Directors					(As of the end of March 2023)
Name of Director	Kim Yoon (Male)	Eom Tae-Ung (Male)	Lee Young-Joon (Male)	Yoo Kwan-Hee (Male)	Lee Yong-Mo (Male)	Lee Jun-Young (Male)	Nam Pan-Woo (Male)
Position	Inside director, Chair of the Board of Directors	Inside director, CEO	Inside director, CEO	Outside director	Outside director	Outside director	Outside director
Length of Service	08.30.1993~present	03.26.2021~Present	03.30.2022~Present	03.22.2019~Present	03.22.2019~Present	03.26.2021~Present	03.30.2022~Present
End of Term	March 2026	March 2024	March 2025	March 2025	March 2025	March 2024	March 2025
Expertise	Corporate management	Corporate management	Corporate management	Business Management (Professor)	Public administration (Professor)	Chemical engineering (Professor)	Law (attorney)
Career	BAin Business Management, Business School of Korea University MA in Monterey Institute of International Studies Vice Chairman of the Federation of Korean Industries (Present) Chairman of the Korea-Japan Economic Association (Present) Chairman and ECD of Samyang Holdings Corporation (2011-2019) Chairman of Samyang Holdings Corporation (2019-2019)	BAin Chemistry, Sogang University MAin Helsinki School of Economics (EMBA) CEO of Samyang Biopharm Corporation (2014-2021) Con Samyang Hopharm Corporation (2014-2021) Constant Staff Group Head of Samyang Holdings (Present)	 BA in College of Medicine, Seoul National University MA/PhD in College of Medicine, Seoul National University MA in Business Management, Ajou University Head of Samyang Holdings Bipharm Group (2021-2022) CEO of Samyang Holdings Corporation and Head of Biopharm Group (Present) 	 BA in Business Management, Seoul National University Ma/Phd in Business Management, Indiana University Vice President, Graduate School of Business Management, Korea University President of the Korean Association of Small Business Studies Emeritus professor, Business Management, Business School of Korea University (Present) Outside director of Samyang Holdings Corporation (Present) 	BA in Statistics, George Washington University MA in Management, Massachusetts Institute of Technology MA in Policy Studies, Harvard University PhD in Business Administration, New York University Vice President for International Affairs, Konkuk University President of the Korean Association for Policy Studies Non-executive auditor of Ssangyong E&C (Present) Professor of Business Administration, college of School Science, Konkuk University Outside director of Samyang Holdings Corporation (Present)	BA/MA in Textile Engineering, Seoul National University PhD, University of Massachusetts-Lowell • General Affairs Director of the Korean Fiber Society • President of the Polymer Society of Korea (Present) • Head of Planning and coordination Office at Sungkyunkwan University • Outside director of Samyang Holdings Corporation (Present)	 BA in Agricutural Economics, Seoul National University MA in Business Administration, Seoul National University PhD, School of Law, South Carolina State University Director of the Jungbu Regional Tax Office Tax accountant at Kim & Chang Tax Corporation Attorney at Kim & Chang (Present) Outside director of Digital Daesung (Present) Outside director of Samyang Holdings Corporation (Present)

Current Composition of Board of Directors

)(≡)(ර

APPENDIX

+ Corporate Governance



Strengthening and Supporting the Expertise of Directors

SOCIAL

Samyang Holdings ensures the expertise of the Board of Directors by appointing directors who have professional knowledge in different areas and strengthening the expertise of the Board of Directors to enhance the accuracy and efficiency of decision-making. In pursuit of this objective, the support team aids the Board of Directors in fulfilling their professional responsibilities and delivers specialized training focused on skills and expertise, enabling their meaningful contributions to the company's sustained growth and advancement. In addition, Seminars and educational opportunities offered by external experts further improve their expertise. Each director's specialized area can be found in the Board skills matrix.

Independence of Directors

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making body that resolves major management affairs of the company. The Board of Directors was formed according to the articles of association to make efficient decisions and has a supervising role for the management. For this purpose, the Chair of the Board of Directors is distinct from the CEO, ensuring the autonomy of the Board of Directors. Furthermore, the majority of the Board of Directors is constituted by outside directors to facilitate robust managerial oversight. The Board of Directors makes decisions independently from the dominant shareholder and the management to represent various stakeholders and supervise major pending issues. The Board of Directors appoints the Chair in accordance with the BoD Regulations, and outside directors are elected from among experts in different areas through a fair and reasonable procedure. Individuals appointed as Directors do not maintain direct vested interests in the company, aligning with the stipulations set forth in the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee Regulations, and possess the requisite expertise, independence, and transparency. They are guaranteed a three-year term and independent execution of duties.

Enhancing Directors' Independence

- 1 Separation of the Chair of the Board from the CEO
- Shall not become partners with unlimited liability or directors of other enterprises engaged in the same type of business without the consent of the Board of Directors
- **3** The majority of the Board of Directors is comprised of outside directors
- 4 Restrictions on directors' voting rights for resolutions involving interests

Board Skills Matrix

(As of the end of March 2023)





(≡)(

ESG JOURNEY

(As of the end of March 2023)

78

GOVERNANCE + Corporate Governance

Committees Under the Board of Directors

Samyang Holdings has established and is operating the Audit Committee, Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee, and ESG Committee under the Board of Directors to increase the expertise and efficiency of the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee is entirely composed of outside directors, and the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee is comprised of four directors, consisting of one inside director and three outside directors. These committees have secured the independence and transparency of decision-making. In addition, Samyang Holdings recently established the ESG Committee, which is comprised of five directors, including one inside director and four outside directors. The committees are operated based on stipulated regulations, and the convening status and resolutions made by the committees are reported to the Board of Directors.

Composition and Major Activities of Committees under the Board of Directors

Board of Directors Outside Director Candidate Audit Committee **ESG** Committee **Recommendation Committee** Major activities Major activities Major activities - Oversight of Board of Directors - Recommending and - Reviewing ESG management appointing candidates for and the management strategies and orientations Approving appointment of outside directors Identifying and understanding external auditors - Reviewing and appointing ESG topics and issues - Ongoing review and approval the eligibility of outside directors of ESG performance and improvement measures Eom Tae-Ung (Inside director) Eom Tae-Ung (Inside director) Lee Yong-Mo (Outside director) Lee Yong-Mo (Outside director) Nam Pan-Woo (Outside director Lee Jun-Young (Outside director Lee Jun-Young (Outside director Nam Pan-Woo (Outside director

Audit Committee

SOCIAL

The Audit Committee is entirely composed of outside directors, including experts in law, finance, and management, to supervise management in a transparent and professional manner. The history of committee activities is disclosed transparently. In 2022, the Audit Committee was held seven times to report on and resolve the audit activities of Samyang Holdings and the appointment of external auditors.

The Audit Committee deliberates on the financial statements, supplementary schedules, and the results of audit procedures conducted by external audit firms. Additionally, the committee audits matters related to significant issues within the company, reviews the operational status of the internal accounting control system as reported by both internal auditors and external auditors. In adherence to the regulations outlined in the Commercial Act concerning the Audit Committee, committee members are appointed as independent outside directors to ensure their independence. It is the committee's policy to include at least one member with expertise in accounting and finance among the independent outside directors. The members of the Audit Committee do not receive compensation other than their directorial remuneration to uphold their independence in carrying out tasks distinct from those of the management and major shareholders.

Audit Committee Activities

Session	Date Held	Agenda
1st	2022.02.09	1 Deliberation on the Agenda of the 71st Regular Shareholders' Meeting
2nd	2022.03.22	0 Evaluation of the operation status of the internal monitoring system in 2021
	8 8	② Evaluating and reviewing the adequacy of the operation conditions of the internal accounting management system
		3 Finalization of the Audit Committee's audit report
3rd	2022.03.30	1 Appointment of the chair of the Audit Committee
4th	2022.05.04	① Review of the 1st quarter review report
		② Report on the internal audit plan
		3 Report on the operation plan of internal accounting control system
		3 Audit of resolutions by the board of directors
5th	2022.08.10	0 Report on the 2nd quarter review report
		② Audit report on Board of Directors' resolutions
		③ Deliberation on the internal audit plan
6th	2022.11.09	① Report on the 3rd quarter review report
	2	② Audit report on Board of Directors' resolutions
		③ Internal audit results report
7th	2022.12.09	0 Appointment of an external auditor for Samyang Holdings

(≡)(

GOVERNANCE + Corporate Governance

Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee

The Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee participates in the deliberation on the company's management policies objectively and fairly, recommending and determining candidates for outside directors who can supervise and support the management as members of the Board of Directors. The Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee forms a group of candidates in consideration of their independence and professional competence from the largest shareholders and recommends candidates who align with the interests of shareholders and the company after evaluation by the Board of Directors. All outside directors of Samyang Holdings appointed through the relevant appointment process consist of persons with the qualifications stipulated by the law. In 2022, a total of one meeting of the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee was held to recommend outside director candidates and appoint the chair of the Committee. The Outside Director Candidate Recommended Outside directors Yoo Kwan-Hee, Lee Yong-Mo, and newly appointed Nam Pan-Woo, who are currently in office.

Outside director Candidate Recommendation Process

Composition of a group of	Outside director candidate evaluation	Recommendation of>
•	•	
The Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee forms a group of candidates in consideration of their independence and professional competence from the largest shareholders.	Members of the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee, representing various fields, conduct an objective and independent evaluation in consideration of the areas of recommendation for new outside directors.	The Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee reviews the composition of a group of candidates for outside directors and whether they meet the outside director qualifications set forth in the law, and then recommends the final outside director candidate.

Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee Activities

				Direc	tor's name a	nd attendance	rate	
Session	Date Held	Agenda	Approval Status	Yoo Kwan-Hee (100%)	Lee Yong-Mo (100%)	Lee Jun-Young (100%)	Eom Tae-Ung (100%)	
				Approval Status				
1st	2022.02.09	 Appointment of the chair of the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee 	Resolution	Approval	Approval	Approval	Approval	
	 Recommendation of outside director candidates 		Resolution	Approval	Approval	Approval	Approval	

ESG Committee

SOCIAL

Samyang Holdings installed the ESG Committee to manage and supervise major internal and external ESG issues and make management decisions. The ESG Committee reviews and analyzes strategies and key management policy issues related to environment, social values, and governance (environment, safety and health, human rights, code of conduct for suppliers, green purchasing, and biodiversity). It fulfills the role of overseeing and managing the outcomes and issues of sustainable management strategies to ensure the company's long-term sustainable growth. The ESG Committee officially reviews and approves the sustainability report. At the 1st ESG Committee held on May 26, 2023, the ESG vision system, 2050 Net Zero roadmap, and publication of the sustainability report were reported, and the results of the 2022 materiality assessment and six ESG management policies were approved. In the future, we plan to present and review agenda items such as non-financial indicator improvement plans and reports on the response to domestic and international evaluations. The ESG Committee holds regular committee meetings twice a year and ad hoc committee meetings as needed. A newly established ESG team provides support for the endeavors of the ESG Committee. In addition to Samyang Holdings, similar committees have been instituted at Samyang Corporation, Samyang Packaging, and KCI to ensure the comprehensive implementation of the ESG management system across the entirety of the Samyang Group.

The 1st ESG Committee Report and Resolution

- 2. Resolutions 2.1 Item 1: Enactment of ESG management policy (1) Environmental management policy
 - Environmental management policy
 Safety and health management policy
 Biodiversity Policy
 Green purchasing policy
 Code of Conduct for Suppliers
 Human rights management policy
 Item 2: Approval of 2022 ESG materiality assessment results

ESG Committee's Major Agenda Items

- Establishment of ESG Management Strategy and Plans
- 2 Evaluation of ESG Performance and Initiatives
- 3 Publication of the Sustainability Report
- 4 Matters related to the cooperation of external experts
- 5 Matters concerning the establishment and amendment of ESG Committee regulations
- 6 Other matters delegated by the Board of Directors or recognized as necessary by the Committee

▲)(≡)(७

9 11 GOVERNANCE + Corporate Governance

Remuneration for the Board of Directors

Samyang Holdings does not link the evaluation and remuneration of outside directors to maintain their independence. The remuneration for directors is approved at the general meeting of shareholders, and the remuneration for outside directors and members of the Audit Committee is paid within the remuneration limit for directors approved at the general meeting of shareholders in accordance with Article 388 of the Commercial Act and the BoD Regulations. The remuneration limit for directors approved at the general meeting of shareholders in 2022 is KRW 8 billion, and the total remuneration paid to directors is KRW 4,100 million.

Board of Directors Participation Status

SOCIAL

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Participation rate of inside directors	%	100	96.87	100
Participation rate of outside directors	%	100	100	94

Board of Directors Operation History in 2022

		(As of December 2022 / Ur	it: Persons, KRW million)
Classification	Number of Directors	Total Remunerations	Average Per Person
Registered directors (excluding members of the Audit Committee)	3	3,921	1,307
Members of the Audit Committee	4	198	50

Operation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Samyang Holdings pursues efficient and rational operations to protect the interests of the company and its shareholders. To achieve this, the company has established articles of incorporation and board regulations, and has formulated board operating regulations that specifically define the authority, responsibilities, and operational procedures of the board. The BoD sessions are classified into regular BoD meetings held at least once a quarter and non-regular BoD meetings held as necessary in cases of emergencies or important issues. The regular BoD meetings handle the approval of the financial statements and convene regular general meetings of shareholders each quarter, and the non-regular BoD meetings make important decisions and respond to urgent issues. Samyang Holdings strives to practice ethical management by operating an active and transparent Board of Directors.

Board of Directors Operating Status

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
 Total number of BoD meetings held	Times	6	13	
Agenda discussed	Number	6	18	

Session	Date Held	Participation Rate	Approval Status	Details of Agenda		
1st	2022.02.09 100%		2022.02.09	100%	Resolution	① Approval of financial statements, consolidated financial statements, and sales reports for the 71th term
		100%		② Entrustment of authority to approve financial statements and consolidated financial statements for the 71th term to the general meeting of shareholders		
		100%	Resolution	③ Resolution to convene the regular general meeting of shareholders for the 71th term		
		100%	Resolution	④ Establishment of the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee and the appointment of its members		
2nd	2022.03.02	100%	Resolution	① Joint and several guarantee for borrowings from financial institutions to NC Chem Co., Ltd.		
3rd	2022.03.22	100%	Resolution	Provision of a joint and several guarantee to NC Chem Co., Ltd.		
		-	Report	(Report) Report on the evaluation of the operating conditions of the internal accounting management system by the Audit Committee		
4th	2022.03.30	100%	Resolution	① Appointment of the CEO		
		100%	Resolution	② Appointment of members of the Outside Director Candidate Recommendation Committee		
5th	2022.05.04	-	Report	• (Report) 1st quarter sales report		
6th	2022.05.31	100%	Resolution	① Approval of transactions with stakeholders		
7th	2022.08.10	85.71%	Resolution	① Extension of credit limits at Shinhan Bank		
701	2022.08.10	-	Report	(2) (Report) Sales interim report		
8th	2022.09.21	100%	Resolution	① Loan payment guarantee for Samyang Biopharm Hungary		
9th	2022.11.09	85.71%	Report	(Report) 3rd quarter sales report		

81

GOVERNANCE + Corporate Governance

Shareholder Value Enhancement

Protecting the Rights and Interests of Shareholders

Samyang Holdings provides sufficient information regarding the general meeting of shareholders to shareholders 14 days before the meeting by sending out the notice of convocation and through the DART (Data Analysis, Retrieval and Transfer System) of the Financial Supervisory Service. In addition, Samyang Holdings introduced an electronic voting system to protect the rights of shareholders, increase convenience in exercising voting rights, and expand shareholder participation, helping them exercise their voting rights through various channels. Samyang Holdings does not have a letter voting system, but all shareholders are fully guided to the general shareholders' meeting before the general shareholders' meeting. The electronic voting system and the electronic proxy solicitation system pursuant to Article 160-5 of the Enforcement Decree of the Capital Market and Financial Investment Act were entrusted to the Korea Securities Depository, and a proxy voting system was prepared for all shareholders who are unable to exercise their voting rights directly.

OVERVIEW

ESG JOURNEY

ENVIRONMENTAL

SOCIAL

Communication With Shareholders

IR inquiry

Please feel free to leave any inquiries related to Investor Relations (IR) here. We will promptly respond after reviewing your questions.

Samyang Group **IR Inquiry**

IR Data Room | Investment Information | Samyang Group (samyang.com)

Samyang Holdings ensures that all shareholders have equal access to the same information by disclosing corporate information on the company website (www.samyang.com), the DART (Data Analysis, Retrieval and Transfer System) of the Financial Supervisory Service (http://dart.fss.or.kr), and the Corporate Disclosure Channel KIND of the Korea Exchange (http://kind.krx.co.kr). In addition, Samyang Holdings provides major status data, finance information, the IR archive, disclosure information, and public announcements through the ^rinvestment information menu and regularly updates them to improve the understanding and trust of shareholders. Samyang Holdings provides a website in English and Chinese for foreign investors and discloses non-financial information by listing ESG-related content on the website. In addition, we actively collect shareholder opinions by setting up an 'Inquiry' menu on our website so that shareholders can express their opinions.

Shareholder Return Policy

Samyang Holdings has been paying dividends every year since listing on the stock exchange in 1968 to enhance shareholder value. The dividend policy is to maintain a stable cash dividend level over the long term by comprehensively considering management performance and financial status of the year, past dividend trends, and domestic and foreign economic and market environments.

The company basically pays dividends based on net income. In the mid- to long-term, we aim for a dividend payout ratio of 30% to 40% compared to separate net income. In addition, while considering the internal and external economic and market environment, we plan to pay dividends to help the company maintain its financial stability while gradually increasing dividends in response to the recent shareholderfriendly market environment. The dividend status of Samyang Holdings is disclosed on the Dividend Status | Stock Information | Investment Information | Samyang Group website (samyang.com).

Share Issuance Status and Share Ratios of Major Shareholders

Samyang Holdings grants equal voting rights according to the type and number of shares owned. One voting right is granted to one share, and preferred shares do not have voting rights. By the end of December 2022, Samyang Holdings had issued 8,564,271 common shares and 304,058 preferred shares. The number of shares with voting rights is 7,435,545 shares, corresponding to 83.8% of all shares issued.

(As of end of December, 2022 / Unit: Shares)

Classification	Type of Share	Number of Shares	Remarks
Total number of shares issued	Common shares	8,564,271	-
	Preferred shares	304,058	-
Number of shares without	Common shares	1,128,726	Treasury shares
voting rights	Preferred shares	304,058	-
Number of shares with voting rights	Common shares	7,435,545	-

As of the end of 2022, shareholders of Samyang Holdings were comprised of the largest shareholder and special party concerned (41.57%), other minority shareholders (52.86%), the National Pension Service (5.56%), and the employee share ownership association (0.01%).



(≣)(ອ

SOCIAL

+ Corporate Governance

Transparently Announcing and Distributing Economic Values

Samyang Holdings communicates with various stakeholders in all business processes. Samyang Holdings pursues growth while sharing the created values with stakeholders. In 2022, Samyang Holdings achieved a sales volume of KRW 3,316.8 billion based on consolidated financial statements and distributed the economic values among stakeholders, such as shareholders, investors, employees, governments, and local communities. By incorporating ESG principles, Samyang Holdings is committed to consistently generating economic value through sustainable management practices and transparently sharing the achievements with stakeholders.

Samyang Holdings Information (As of December 2022)

Sales (Based on Consolidated Financial Statements in 2022)



KRW **3,316.8** billion

Operating Profit (Based on Consolidated Financial Statements in 2022)



KRW 132.3 billion

Net Income (Based on Consolidated Financial Statements in 2022)







APPENDIX

+ Ethics and Compliance Management



(≡)(

Ethics and Compliance Management

Samyang Group pursues ethical management to grow sustainably and create a competitive advantage by fulfilling its economic, social, and environmental responsibilities. To this end, in the course of expanding its businesses and growing consistently, Samyang Group has endeavored to practice the principles of ethical management while forming mutual trust with various stakeholders, such as customers, shareholders, and suppliers.

Ethics and Compliance Management

Ethical Management System

MATERIAL

Ever since its foundation in 1924, Samyang Group has regarded 'trust' as the core of its management activities based on integrity in management for nearly 90 years. Samyang Group defines ethical management as a 'management strategy for a company to grow sustainably and create competitive advantage by fulfilling its economic, social, and environmental responsibilities.' The Code of Ethics was stipulated in 2002 as a means to institutionalize ethical management. The Code of Ethics of Samyang Group includes the basic mindset, principles, practice guidelines, and detailed guidelines. In May 2013, Samyang Group held the 'ethical management proclamation ceremony' to systematize internal ethical awareness and practice ethical management according to the demands of the changing business environment.

Ethical Management System Diagram



Ethical Management Activities

Samyang Group's Five Principles for Practicing Ethical Management

Chairman Kim Yoon appeared at the ethical management proclamation ceremony of Samyang Group and emphasized, "Ethical management involves our commitment as part of society to perform responsibilities faithfully, instilling a strong belief that Samyang is a trustworthy company in the eyes of stakeholders." He further reiterated, "While all employees are dedicated to practicing ethical management, I earnestly request that each individual strictly adhere to the declared ethical management principles as their Code of Conduct and criteria for value judgment." His statements mark ethical management as the starting point for creating profits in the market while fulfilling the social requirements which are perceived as essential survival strategies.

Accordingly, starting with Samyang Holdings, Samyang Corporation, Biopharm, Samyang Kasei, Samnam Petrochemical, Samyang Data Systems, and Samyang Innochem sequentially held an 'ethical management proclamation ceremony.' Ethical management has turned into a requisite for Samyang Group to grow sustainably as a responsible economic entity of our society.

Ethical Management Principles and Practice Guidelines

Samyang Group aims to provide positive values to human society by realizing the Samyang Value. To this end, we are pursuing ethical management that complies with laws and ethics and faithfully fulfills our corporate roles and social responsibilities. Samyang Group applies ethical management principles to all business areas, and in order to put them into practice, ethical management practice guidelines and detailed guidelines are available on the Samyang Portal for all employees to review at any time.

🧭 Ethical Management Practice Guidelines

)(≡)(ර

ESG JOURNEY

APPENDIX

+ Ethics and Compliance Management

Samyang Group has established five ethical management principles and educated all employees to observe them. In addition, the Samyang Group has prepared specific action guidelines to support ethically correct behavior in actual work. Through this, Samyang Group maintains trust-based relationships with all stakeholders and pursues continuous growth and development.

5 Principles of Ethical Management

Ethical Management System

SOCIAL

Samyang Group operates an ethical management website to publicly disclose the Code of Ethics to be followed by all employees (Ethical Management | ESG | Samyang Group (samyang.com)). Moreover, Samyang Group operates internal and external reporting channels to enable various internal and external stakeholders to report unethical activities. In addition, any reports received are handled confidentially, and we prioritize the protection of reporters so that they can feel secure when making a report.



We are committed to establishing and practicing ethical management principles.

For oughout the process of expanding and growing our business, we have always adhered to ethical management principles and established mutual trust with various stakeholders, including sustomers, shareholders, and business partners,

Ethical management website

Counseling and Reporting Process

Selecting the reporting method	Reporting	Receiving a reply to the report
Website, email, phone call, fax, postal mail	Execution of reporting	Replies according to the selected reporting method

ESG JOURNEY

APPENDIX

+ Ethics and Compliance Management



(≡)(

Ethical management pledge



Ethical education certificate

Reinforcing Ethical and Compliance Culture

Ethics and Compliance Management

Samyang Group emphasizes ethical and compliance management and conducts periodic ethical and compliance education for employees. The education consists of ethics education, which covers ethical management principles, ethical management practice guidelines, and reporting systems, and compliance education, which covers sexual harassment and molestation, embezzlement and malpractice, interference in public duties, the Improper Solicitation and Graft Act, and fair transaction compliance. Education is mandatory regardless of one's job group and position. Targets of education are required to sign and submit an ethical management pledge before evaluation. Samyang Group strives to instill the importance of ethical performance and regulatory compliance in all employees.

Details of Ethical Management Education

Classification	Details of Education	Total Hours of Education
2020	Ethical management, sexual harassment prevention, disability awareness (three courses)	3.2 hours
2021	Sexual harassment prevention, disability awareness, workplace bullying prevention, ethical management, information security (five courses)	4 hours
2022	Sexual harassment prevention, disability awareness, workplace bullying prevention, ethical management, information security (five courses)	5 hours

Samyang Holdings's Ethical Management Education Participants and Completion Rate

Classification	Unit	2020(*2)	2021	2022
Education Participants (*1)	Persons	126	424	473
Completed Participants	Persons	126	423	469
Completion Rate	%	100	99.80	99.10

(*1) Excluding contract workers, overseas dispatchers, and outside directors in the same year (*2) Recalculated due to a data aggregation error in 2020

Ethical Audits

Samyang Holdings performs regular audits, life cycle audits, themed audits, report audits, and monitoring as internal audit activities. The Management Diagnosis Team investigates and reports violations of the Code of Ethics, which are transferred to the Personnel Committee if necessary.

Classification	Details
Regular audits	Conducted biennially across all business sites, including international branches, to ascertain and disseminate the 'Best Practice'
Life cycle audits	Management-directed audits to be conducted approximately four times annually
Themed audits	Audits conducted across the entire Group or designated business units focusing on specific themes
Report audits	Audits performed in response to reports received online or offline
On-going Monitoring	Monthly monitoring of personnel, general, finance, accounting, sales, purchase, production, and environmental safety affairs and monitoring of corporate credit cards

Status and Types of Violations of Samyang Group Code of Ethics

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Corruption	Cases	0	6	12
Suppliers	Cases	0	2	1
Theft	Cases	0	1	1
Others	Cases	4	0	4
Total	Cases	4	9	18

Samyang Group Code of Ethics Violation Status

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Number of reports received	Cases	4	9	18
Number of corruption cases confirmed	Cases	2	6	10
Rate handled	%	100	100	100
Number of disciplinary actions (*)	Cases	0	3	9

(*) Cases in which contracts with suppliers were terminated or contract renewals were canceled due to corruption during the reporting period, lawsuits filed against the organization or its employees in relation to corruption, and no results. MATERIAL

ESG JOURNEY

APPENDIX

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio



(≡)(ຽ

Advancement of Business Portfolio

We must actively invest in new businesses to achieve sustainable growth. The Samyang Group seeks to grow for a sustainable future for all, focusing on the three growth themes of health & wellness, advanced materials, and eco-friendliness.

Enhancing Market Competitiveness

Strategy for Increasing Market Competitiveness

Samyang Group promotes the mid- to long-term development of the Group by establishing 5-year growth strategies. Based on the 'Vision 2025' strategy, a strategy to grow into a global company that supplies specialty ingredients and solutions to health, advanced industries, and eco-friendliness, Samyang Group prepares to write new chapters in its history in the next 100 years through continual changes.

The strategic aim of Samyang Group is to sophisticate the business structure. Samyang Group is seeking diversified M&A, CVC investment, and partnership opportunities for its advanced business structure. Through this, we will strengthen our existing business areas, develop new markets, and grow into a company that leads the global market. In particular, we intend to cultivate pioneering products and services through the enhancement of our proficiency in the three focal areas of health and wellness, advanced

tech materials, and eco-friendliness, as well as our own technology and R&D capabilities. Through this, Samyang Group will achieve continuous growth and maintain a leading position in a competitive market.

Directions of Growth

Samyang Group has been contemplating building a portfolio capable of sustainable growth by utilizing the external environment and internal strengths. We are responding to the trend of accelerated changes after the pandemic, such as demographic change, climate change, digitalization, and global economic block, by strengthening bio and organic synthesis technologies, which are core technologies, and convergence technologies using them. The Samyang Group will reinforce selection and focus on existing businesses, discover future growth opportunities, and supply specialty products to global customers, focusing on the three growth themes of health & wellness, advanced materials, and eco-friendliness. To this end, the Samyang Group will continue to strengthen its diverse product portfolio and solution capabilities in response to customer needs.



SOCIAL

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio

Directions of Each Business

Health & Wellness Business

Health & Wellness is a word that adds well-being to health, and includes all product and service domains for treatment, prevention, body care, and beauty. Samyang Group has already entered the health & wellness market in the food, chemical, packaging, and biopharmaceutical fields and plans to focus more on this area in the future.



(≡)()

Spurring the Specialty Business

The trend of sugar reduction continues, and the demand for sweeteners with low calories has increased amid the increasing attention of consumers to health since COVID-19. Samyang Corporation is pioneering a new market in the Health & Wellness industry through allulose, a specialty sugar material that is an alternative sweetener, and resistant dextrin, and fructo-oligosaccharide.



APPENDIX





Renewing About Me With 'Clean Beauty'

About Me, a cosmetic brand, defined its brand identity as 'Clean Beauty.' Clean beauty used to be perceived as referring to 'cosmetic products made of mild ingredients for the skin,' but its meaning has recently been expanded to include 'cosmetic products that consider the environmental impact during production and use.' About Me releases products made of mild ingredients to realize clean beauty, targeting the MZ generations that engage in value consumption by adding eco-friendly values to packaging materials and product bottles.

Expanding the Portfolio of Personal Care Materials

KCI strives to enter the global market with its primary products and develop convergent products using related technologies. Personal care polymers and surfactants from KCI are essential ingredients used to manufacture shampoos, rinses, and cosmetic products. KCI intends to focus on the concentrated development of the personal care materials business by incorporating functional materials and value-added substances into its existing portfolio, which is centered around personal care ingredients.







Expanding CDMO and Entering the Medical Aesthetics Market

Biopharmaceutical businesses are pursuing R&D on innovative new drugs, the construction of a global production base, and entry into new businesses. In South Korea, we are expanding the anticancer injection Pharmaceutical Plant in Daejeon that accords with the advanced global GMP, aiming to expand the global CDMO business. The expansion of the CDMO business is meaningful in expanding the scope of biopharmaceutical businesses into the field of solutions. We are also expanding into the domestic and international beauty and medical aesthetics markets, obtaining product approvals for our lifting thread brand 'Croquis®' and progressing with the approval process for our polycaprolactone (PCL)-based dermal filler 'Lafullen®'.

APPENDIX

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio

Eco-friendly and Advanced Materials Business

Eco-friendly and advanced materials represent worldwide trends, with industries related to water treatment products, eco-friendly plastics, semiconductors, batteries, and other relevant sectors witnessing sustained growth. Samyang Group is proactively undertaking comprehensive initiatives aligned with these trends.

Eco-friendly Materials



 $(\equiv)(\mathfrak{G})$

Samyang Packaging, an affiliate for beverages and packaging, operates a business recycling waste plastics using innovative technologies. As a company that produces PET bottles, Samyang Packaging is making efforts to lead the recycling business in order to enhance social responsibility. To this end, we established Samyang EcoTech Co., Ltd., a 100% subsidiary, and invested approximately KRW 43 billion to introduce recycled PETchip production facilities with a capacity of 21,000 tons to the existing recycled PETflakes Sihwa Plant. Samyang EcoTech plans to start production of r-flake and r-PETchip in the first half of 2023, and these recycled PETchips are expected to be used as a material that is more suitable for producing high value-added products than general PETflakes due to their high purity. Samyang EcoTech minimizes waste and raw material inefficiencies generated during the production of our products through the implementation of additional processes. This endeavor is anticipated to yield a reduction of approximately 45,000 tons of plastic on an annual basis. The recycled PET chips are currently being incorporated into various applications such as textile fibers for apparel, food packaging, and cosmetic containers. Samyang Group is dedicated to the environmentally conscious manufacturing of products and aspires to assume a pioneering role within the PET industry by actively working towards the establishment of a virtuous economy for PET, thereby contributing to sustainable environmental practices.

ESG JOURNEY



Samyang EcoTech Sihwa Plant

Advanced Materials

Samyang Group's advanced material business focuses on the development of semiconductors and materials for mobility and energy. This reflects our will and strategy to enter the advanced material industry market and seek new opportunities, and we are pursuing technological development and innovation through the advanced material business. In addition, Samyang Group is targeting new markets by directly or indirectly investing in companies with new technologies. Through this, we seek to secure new technologies and knowledge through technological cooperation and alliances and strengthen our competitiveness in the advanced material industry. Samyang Group will continue to make efforts and investments in R&D, build cooperation with partners who can develop innovative products and technologies, and further strengthen market development and entry into the global market.

O Creating an Eco-friendly Specialty Ingredients Market Using Isosorbide

The growth driver in the environmentally friendly segment of the chemical business is isosorbide. Isosorbide is a bio-based material made by chemically processing starch extracted from plant resources, and can be used in place of existing chemical materials in polycarbonate, paints, and adhesives. Samyang Innochem has initiated the operation of a Gunsan plant, producing 15,000 tons of isosorbide annually. Samyang Group plans to develop various eco-friendly specialty ingredients using isosorbide, expanding its applications and creating new markets through active collaboration with external partners.



Gunsan plant of Samyang Innochem

APPENDIX

89

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio

Advancement Strategy for Each Business Sector

Business Sector	Goals and Directions	Major task	Strategies and Performances
Chemicals	Becoming a Global Specialist in Specialty Chemicals Growing alongside Advanced Industries Creating and globalizing a specialty portfolio in pursuit of market growth	 Full-fledged ISB Revenue Generation Implementation of Growth Strategies for KCI/NCchem Enhancement of Ion Exchange Resin Business Portfolio Advanced Management System for Diversified Compound Pipeline Accelerated Overseas EP (Engineering Plastics) Localization 	Chemical businesses led by specialty compound products enhance industrial competitiveness and lead the global market by supplying essential materials and solutions for advanced industries such as semiconductors and displays and energy industries such as batteries and hydrogen. In addition, while demonstrating stable outcomes with existing businesses centered on polycarbonate chains, the chemical businesses have reorganized their business portfolio based on specialty solutions to find new business opportunities in the fields of eco-friendliness, advanced industries, and personal care. Samyang Corporation will grow into a global specialty company that contributes to enhancing the competitiveness of clients by developing innovative technologies and expanding the network targeting the global market. Samyang Corporation strives to enhance industries through cutting-edge materials, foster eco-friendly solutions for environmental preservation, delve into energy materials, and deliver globally acclaimed chemical substances. This commitment is aimed at elevating business value and enriching the quality of life for individuals.
Food	A global solution provider in the Health & Nutrition sector Establishing a strong global presence through leadership in specialty ingredients	 International expansion of the Allulose market Diversification of the Sugar Reduction product portfolio Early normalization of new specialty factories Prominent position in the frozen dough market Solidification of Sangkwaehwan (EASY TOMORROW)'s foothold in the refreshing beverage market 	Food businesses add vital energy to our lives by offering specialty and basic materials based on food biotech, differentiated functional foods, and cosmetic products. The businesses are pioneering food culture with various food ingredients and technical services. Samyang Corporation has secured leadership in specialty food ingredients through basic food ingredients such as sugar, starch sweetener, and flour, prebiotics like resistant dextrin and fructo-oligosaccharide, and an alternative sweetener called allulose. Its food service distribution businesses are expanding their forzen bakery product lineup, strengthening their promotions, and strengthening their online sales activities by building digital channels. Moreover, Samyang Corporation endeavors to enhance competitiveness by focusing on core food ingredients and the innovation of health & wellness specialty products. This commitment is aimed at contributing to the enhancement of customers' overall well-being and quality of life.
Biophar- maceutical	A healthcare value creator that elevating the quality of patients' lives Strengthening the competitive edge of its Medical Device and Pharmaceutical businesses and exploring novel growth opportunities	 Defining and implementing the strategy for global expansion in the MD sector CDMO (Contract Development and Manufacturing Organization) factory completion and mass production system conversion Achieving mSENS development milestones 	Biopharmaceutical businesses help improve life quality and assist the quick recovery of patients with new anticancer drugs and optimal surgical care solutions. Reliable medical aesthetic solutions contribute to maintaining healthy beauty. Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group secured the growth drivers necessary to open overseas markets based on differentiated technologies in two major business areas, namely pharmaceuticals and medical devices. Samyang Holdings sepecially concentrates on three areas, namely modified new drugs applying drug delivery technologies, new biopharmaceuticals using mRNA (*1) to lead future anticancer treatment, and medical devices using advanced biodegradable materials.
Packaging	A total solution partner in Beverage & Packaging sector Strengthening the leadership of the aseptic packaging business, Improving the profitability and discovering new opportunities in the container business	 Strengthening leadership in the Aseptic business Developing strategies for non-price differentiation in the Aseptic sector Stabilizing and expanding Recycling business 	Our packaging businesses apply an advanced aseptic (*2) technique to utilize beverage R&D and manufacturing capabilities and supply safer products that satisfy the needs of customers and markets. They contribute to the resource circulating economy through eco-friendly materials and recycling. Samyang Packaging maintains its unparalleled top position in the industry with the largest supply capacity, operational efficiency, and highest level of technological prowess. Equipped with the first domestic aseptic (sterile) filling system, we are leading the market by providing cleaner and more hygienic PET beverages. In addition, Samyang Packaging established Samyang Ecotech to build a virtuous cycle economic system for PET and invested about KRW 43 billion to fulfill its social responsibility as a company that produces PET bottles. While solidifying its market leadership with continual facility investments and technical development, Samyang Packaging will become a total solution partner in beverage and packaging areas by expanding its entry into overseas markets and securing new growth drivers such as eco-friendly recycled plastics.

(*1) RNA that carries genetic information from DNA to ribosomes in the cytoplasm (*2) Aseptic: Korea's first beverage production system based on an aseptic filling method introduced by Samyang Packaging ESG JOURNEY

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio



Samyang Corporation Central Research Center (Daejeon)

Research and Development

Operation of Research Centers to Promote R&D

Samyang Group has excellent R&D capabilities in the chemical, food, biopharmaceutical, and packaging industries. Dedicated researchers are striving to secure innovative technologies and create high-value products to sustain our competitive edge. We are consistently delving into emerging megatrends and broadening our research and development scope to pave the way for new growth opportunities in the future.

Chemical Research Center



Samyang Discovery Center (Pangyo)

The Chemical Research Center, located in Daejeon, develops cutting-edge advanced materials by synthesizing and processing engineering plastics. Based on the accumulated polymer synthesis and processing technologies, the Chemical Research Center will contribute to customers' abundant and convenient lives by expanding the field of R&D to lightweight automobile materials, alternative metal composite materials, eco-friendly materials, and functional materials. Furthermore, we are expanding our research scope by developing environmentally friendly materials through the exploration of plant-derived isosorbide and the study of derivatives.

Food R&D Center

The Food R&D Center strives to become the No. 1 Food and Service Innovator by providing differentiated value to customers, developing new products with a competitive edge, and conducting R&D to secure future growth drivers. The Food R&D Center is committed to achieving a position of global technological competitiveness by leveraging our accumulated technologies to develop high-value-added food and industrial materials. Simultaneously, we are enhancing customer-focused applied research efforts.

Bio-Convergence Research Center

The Bio-Convergence Research Center was launched in April 2023 with the goal of creating a new business that leads the market by developing bio-derived high value-added specialty ingredients that can be used in the food, personal care, and pharmaceutical fields. The Bio-Convergence Research Center is dedicated to strengthening the position of Samyang Group in promoting eco-friendliness and human health. We will achieve this by establishing a system metabolism engineering R&D hub and developing high-functional specialty ingredients through the convergence of chemical processing technologies.

Biopharmaceutical R&D Center

The Biopharmaceutical R&D Center is a medical device, medicine, and new drug research center that aims for the global market and has developed bioabsorbable surgical sutures and anticancer drugs (solid cancer, blood cancer, etc.). In particular, SENS[™], a gene delivery technology developed using biodegradable polymer production and processing technology with a history of more than 30 years, can be used for various treatments and is a key technology leading the global gene therapy market. The Biopharmaceutical R&D Center will focus its core research capabilities, encompassing a multitude of patents and profound expertise, towards making a substantial contribution to the improvement of human health.

Samyang Packaging Tech Center

Samyang Packaging Tech Center has various research fields and experimental facilities for material research for packaging solution development, product design and modeling technology testing and evaluation, and production process improvement. The Samyang Packaging Tech Center collaborates with the Samyang Group's research center to conduct research and development activities required to develop and manufacture innovative packaging solutions. The Samyang Packaging Tech Center engages in research and development endeavors essential for the creation and production of solutions. In addition, the center seeks to create eco-friendly values through R&D that considers the minimization of waste and the carbon footprint of manufactured products.

KCI Tech Center

KCI Tech Center is developing the world's highest quality functional raw materials for personal care. The Tech Center promotes cooperation between excellent researchers and customers based on cutting-edge equipment and accumulated technologies. In addition, KCI Tech Center develops differentiated raw materials that meet the needs of customers and strives to improve product processes through process optimization. KCI Tech Center provides training on raw materials and cosmetics prescription technology and provides customized solutions to solve concerns that arise during customer production.

)(≡)(ර

APPENDIX

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio

Strategic Directions for R&D

Samyang Group is conducting research and development of various high value-added products required by the market and customers. We will conduct research on both quality and price competitiveness to become the main pillar of the company's new growth driver. In addition, in order to respond to various eco-friendly issues, we are expanding research on applying eco-friendly technologies to various products and fundamental technologies. Through collaboration with group affiliates and stakeholders, we are continuously promoting research on eco-friendly and recyclable products and technologies that can be easily integrated into everyday life. In addition, aligned with the digital innovation trends, we leverage IT systems to conduct research and development rapidly, accurately, and efficiently.

Samyang Innovation R&D Fair

(SIRF)

Samyang Innovation R&D Fair (SIRF)

The 'Samyang Innovation R&D Fair (SIRF)' has been held since 2012 and celebrates its 11th anniversary this year. SIRF is an event where the research outcomes from all research institutes within the Samyang Group during the year are exhibited and shared. It is held every year, promoting employees' enthusiasm for research and development, and serving as a platform for knowledge sharing. Samyang Group participates in SIRF by showcasing projects and conducting an awards ceremony for outstanding projects. The selection and recognition of exceptional R&D projects at SIRF take into account various aspects such as their contribution to competitiveness, innovation, and creativity.



2023.01.05 (4) 2023.04 Million

Samyang Innovation R&D Fair (SIRF) poster

Managing Intellectual Properties

SOCIAL

Samyang Group strategically pursues the protection and utilization of its technological assets. Technologies with business value and potential are subjected to patent applications, while technologies requiring confidentiality are managed as trade secrets. The group's intellectual property team offers close support tailored to each technology, ensuring a step-by-step patent strategy (pre-application/ application/registration). Notably, pre-application patent workshops foster idea generation, invention consultations assess patent application feasibility, and prior searches verify patentability.

R&D Investments of Samyang Holdings

Classification (*)	Unit	2020	2021	2022
R&D expenses	KRW million	12,113	15,122	22,708
Rate of R&D expenses to sales	%	16.00	16.02	10.76
R&D personnel	Persons	55	52	64

(*) Recalculated as R&D expenses of Samyang Holdings affiliated Biopharmaceutical Research Institute

Report on Intellectual Proterty Rights

(As of the end of December 2022)

				Dom	nestic			Intern	ational	
Affiliates	filiates Classification Un	Unit	Patent	Utility Model	Trade- mark	Subtotal	Patent	Utility Model	Trade- mark	Subtotal
Samyang Group	Pending applications	Cases	282	3	41	326	368	0	75	443
	Registered	Cases	740	0	339	1,079	651	1	448	1,100
	Total	Cases	1,022	3	380	1,405	1,019	1	523	1,543
Samyang Holdings	Pending applications	Cases	55	0	8	63	125	0	15	140
	Registered	Cases	131	0	168	299	333	1	139	473
	Total	Cases	186	0	176	362	458	1	154	613

(≡)()

APPENDIX

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio

CASE STUDY

Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Samyang Holdings Biopharmaceuticals Group develops and supplies safe medicines using its own and optimized production technology to improve patients' quality of life and create sustainable health.



Genexol® PM, Nanoxel® M

Anti-cancer drugs in the taxanes, like paclitaxel and docetaxel, are insoluble substances, so they are kept stable by adding Cremophor EL and polysorbate 80, which are alcohol-based solubilizers that are harmful for the body. Samyang Holdings utilizes a new type of nano-sized polymer compound to maximize anti-tumor effects without using harmful alcohol-based solubilizers.

Azalid[®] Injection, Decilid[®] Injection

Azacitidine and decitabine are are highly unstable drugs in aqueous solutions, prone to hydrolysis. To address this instability, Samyang Holdings' unique technology produces stable and excellent medicines.

Developing Optimal Cancer Therapies for Koreans

Many existing original drugs available in the Korean market are standardized based on Western adults, resulting in a significant surplus of medications – ranging from 30% to 50% – being discarded when administered to Korean patients. To address this issue, Samyang Holdings is committed to supplying pharmaceuticals with dosages optimized for the physique of Eastern populations, including Koreans, thereby improving medication utilization and reducing wastage.

SENS™

Samyang Holdings' Biopharmaceuticals Group is actively engaged in the development of distinct gene delivery technologies with versatile applications in various therapeutic interventions. SENS™ represents Samyang Holdings' proprietary gene delivery technology utilizing novel cationic lipids and biodegradable polymers. The newly discovered cationic lipids effectively safeguard nucleic acids and confer tissue selectivity to formulations. The incorporation of biodegradable polymers that naturally degrade within the body ensures both systemic stability and remarkable safety. Equipped with diverse compositions and delivery vehicle libraries, Samyang Holdings possesses an array of tissue-specific delivery platforms. SENS™ from Samyang Holdings stands as a pivotal

technology leading the global gene therapy market, contributing to the advancement of human health. Leveraging its substantial expertise, Samyang Holdings accelerates drug delivery technology advancements, offering compositions with exceptional gene delivery efficiency and safety.

SENS[™] Goals and Development Strategy

SOCIAL



Signed a Partnership for New Anti-cancer Drug Development

Samyang Holdings and LG Chem signed a strategic partnership agreement in April 2023 to apply Samyang Holdings' proprietary drug delivery technology to develop new mRNA-based anti-cancer drugs. Through a nonexclusive technology transfer contract, Samyang Holdings will provide LG Chem with the technology of its own mRNA delivery system, 'NanoReady, and related compositions. LG Chem plans to apply this to discover mRNA-based, innovative new drug substances that maximize anticancer efficacy. In addition to NanoReady, Samyang Holdings is



Establishment of Samyang Holdings – LG Chem Partnership

also accelerating the development of various mRNA delivery systems for preventive vaccines and rare disease treatments and aims to contribute to the development of various therapeutic agents through long-term selective mRNA delivery systems that overcome the limitations of existing mRNA delivery systems.

APPENDIX

+ Advancement of Business Portfolio

CASE STUDY

Samyang Corporation

Development of Engineering Plastics

Samyang Corporation's AM BU supplies engineering plastics products such as PC, PBT, TPEE, and M-PET, as well as various compound products based on PC, PBT, PMMA, and PET, to domestic and international customers. In addition, we are advancing the industrial structure and expanding overseas production hubs through the development of core materials used in the automobile, electrical and electronic, medical, and security industries. In addition, we are preparing for the future by expanding our research into areas such as lightweight automotive materials, metal replacement materials, and eco-friendly materials.



Next-generation 0 kcal Sweetener, Allulose

Allulose is a saccharide that is rarely found in some fruits or crops, such as figs and raisins. It is an alternative saccharide that can reduce calorie intake while maintaining approximately 70% of the sweetness of sugar. In addition, in Korea, Nexweet® Allulose, produced using Samyang Corporation's own enzyme technology, is the only 0 kcal material registered as a food ingredient. Samyang Corporation is providing healthy and delicious dietary life to mankind through allulose, a nextgeneration sweetener material differentiated from existing sugars.

KCI

KCI is developing DMI (Dimethyl Isosorbide) with functions such as penetration aid, solvent, and irritation reliever so that active ingredients can be effectively delivered to the human body. DMI is an EWG(*) grade 1 product using plant-derived, eco-friendly ingredients. It has a high effect on protecting the human body from external stimuli, so it can be used for skin care, sunscreen, and tanning products. Research is currently underway, and it is expected to become a representative product in strengthening the eco-friendly product portfolio in the future.

Samyang Packaging

Development of Lightweight PET Container Production Technology

The conventional lightweight PET technology has encountered challenges such as compromised gas barrier properties and diminished strength due to the thinning of PET bottle walls. Additionally, issues like container deformation during distribution and difficulties in upholding beverage quality, particularly for carbonated drinks, have restricted its application to a limited range of products. Samyang Packaging has effectively engineered a lightweight PET container that upholds container strength while ensuring the integrity of beverage quality. As a tangible outcome of this technology, a reduction in PET raw material consumption by 13% to 18% has been achieved.



Development of Label-free Containers

Samyang Packaging is currently in the process of developing label-free containers for plastic beverage bottles, eliminating the need for separate disposal of labels during recycling processes. This innovation relies on the contrasting densities of PET bottle material, which sinks in water (with a density exceeding 1), and label components, which float (with a density below 1), facilitating their natural separation. By successfully creating label materials with a density below 1 that maintain equivalent quality to conventional labels with a density exceeding 1, Samyang Packaging has advanced to producing prototype products. The demand for this technology is anticipated to grow continuously both domestically and internationally, considering the existing regulations on the use of label materials with a density below 1 in Europe and the increasing requirements in South Korea.

^(*) EWG: The Environmental Working Group, a non-profit environmental research organization in the United States, evaluates the safety of cosmetic ingredients and ranks them from 1 to 10. The lower the rating, the safer the product is.

Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

(\equiv)	(Y)

VERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVER

APPENDIX

Appendix

- **95** ESG Facts & Figures
- 101 GRI Index
- **104** SASB
- **105** Awards and Associations
- **106** Independent Assurance Statement

(■)(≡)(5)

OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPEN

(Unit: KRW million)

+ ESG Facts & Figures

ESG Facts & Figures

Our financial information accords with the consolidated standards under the Korean version of International Financial Reporting Standards (K-IFRS). Environmental, Social, and Governance data have been prepared based on separate standards of Samyang Holdings. In cases where there are discrepancies in certain scopes, they have been explicitly indicated through annotations in the report.

(Unit: KRW million)

Financial Information

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

			(one record
Classification	2020	2021	2022
Current assets	1,475,919	1,651,027	1,747,899
Non-current assets	2,417,646	2,809,562	2,799,882
Total assets	3,893,565	4,460,589	4,547,781
Current liabilities	682,049	1,002,763	754,977
Non-current liabilities	1,055,729	1,032,419	1,269,293
Total liabilities	1,737,778	2,035,182	2,024,270
Capital stock	44,342	44,342	44,342
Capital surplus	376,552	334,668	330,531
Other equity items (*)	27,785	80,969	65,827
Retained earnings	1,070,974	1,291,583	1,351,231
Non-controlling interests	636,134	673,845	731,580
Total equity	2,155,787	2,425,407	2,523,511
Total liabilities and equity	3,893,565	4,460,589	4,547,781

(*) Sum of accumulated other comprehensive income and other equity items

Condensed Consolidated Income Statement

Classification	2020	2021	2022
Sales	2,471,226	3,107,313	3,316,778
Cost of sales	1,951,116	2,378,282	2,773,466
Gross profit	520,110	729,031	543,312
Selling and administrative expenses	349,774	377,331	410,988
Operating profit	170,336	351,700	132,324
Other incomes	41,168	35,543	89,038
Other expenses	51,303	45,948	107,494
Financial incomes	27,517	30,956	66,888
Financial expenses	41,011	30,136	54,884
Gain or loss on associates using equity method	23,974	2,756	792
Income before income tax expense	170,681	344,871	126,664
Income tax expense	27,416	70,785	20,815
Current net profit	143,265	274,086	105,849
Other comprehensive income or loss	19,153	77,635	-696
Total comprehensive income or loss	162,418	351,721	105,153

ESG Facts & Figures

Environmental

Environmental Expenses

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Facility investments	KRW thousand	39,000	160,000	169,100
Operating expenses	KRW thousand	125,066	132,798	215,954

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Environmental management certifications and awards	Cases	0	1	1
Number of employees who have completed environmental education	Persons	46	44	60
Number of environmental law and regulation violations	Cases	0	0	0
Monetary sanctions	KRW	0	0	0
Environment-related liabilities	KRW	0	0	0

Management of Hazardous Chemical Substances

Emission of Hazardous Chemical Substances_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Classification (*)	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Methanol	Ton	36	30	24
Dichloromethane	Ton	20	30	7.39
Ethyl acetate (ETAC)	Ton	1	1	0.66
Trichloromethane (TCM)	Ton	12.67	1.24	0
Total	Ton	69.67	62.24	32.05
Total emissions target for 2022 31.73 to				

(*) Please note that there is a discrepancy in the data values compared to the previous year's report due to changes in the criteria for assessing chemical substance emissions.

Waste Management

Waste Management_Samyang Holdings Biopharm Group

Classi	ification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Recyc	Recycled	Ton	631	698	799
	Incinerated	Ton	237	241	206
Designated waste	Landfilled	Ton	0	0	0
	Others	Ton	0	0	0
	Subtotal	Ton	868	939	1,005
Recycled	Ton	41	97	70	
	Incinerated	Ton	140	82	63
General waste	Landfilled	Ton	0	0	0
	Others	Ton	0	0	11
	Subtotal	Ton	181	179	144
Total		Ton	1,049	1,117	1,149
Generation intensity (compared to sales)		Ton/KRW billion	9.19	3.17	6.1
Total emission	is target for 2022 –				1,138 tons

Classification	Unit	2020(*)	2021(*)	2022
Volume of waste recycled	Ton	671.64	794.86	869.08
Rate of waste recycled	%	64.03	71.14	75.63
Waste disposal expenses	KRW thousand	205,906	221,046	204,510

(*) Owing to an error in aggregating waste disposal costs, the data has been recalculated, leading to variances from the figures reported in the previous year's report.

ESG Facts & Figures

Social

Ensuring Product Quality and Safety

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Number of violations related to the safety and health impact of products and services	Cases	0	0	0
Number of violations related to the information and labeling of products and services	Cases	0	0	0

Marketing and Labeling

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Total number of marketing communication violations:	Cases	0	0	0
Cases with penalties or fines due to regulation violations	Cases	0	0	0
Cases with warnings issued due to regulation violations	Cases	0	0	0
Cases of internal guideline violations	Cases	0	0	0

Recruitment and Turnover Status

Clas	ssification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
	Internal staffing (non-regular positions)	Persons	11	27	49
New	Entry-level hiring	Persons	35	56	83
Recruitment	Experienced professional hiring	Persons	11	14	22
	Total	Persons	57	97	154
	Below 30 years old	Persons	34	60	105
Recruitment by age group	30-50 years old	Persons	23	31	41
2) 480 8.04p	Above 50 years old	Persons	0	6	8
Recruitment	Male	Persons	30	51	88
by gender	Female	Persons	27	46	66
Recruitment	Number recruited for	Persons	Employees 57	Executives 2	Executives 1
by job position	each job position	Persons		Employees 95	Employees 153
	Dismissal	Persons	0	1	2
	Voluntary turnovers	Persons	6	44	68
Turnover	Voluntary turnover rate (*1) (number of voluntary turnovers/total number of employees)	%	4.8	9.2	12.7
	Regular retirement	Persons	0	2	3
	Total	Persons	6	47	73
	Below 30 years old	Persons	0	22	34
Turnover by age group	30-50 years old	Persons	3	19	33
, 0.0 - F	Above 50 years old	Persons	3	6	6
Turnover	Male	Persons	4	33	50
by gender	Female	Persons	2	14	23

(■)(≡)(5)

98

ESG Facts & Figures

Recruitment and Turnover Status

Classifi	cation	Unit	2020	2021	2022
	Male	Persons	74	300	346
Total number of	Female	Persons	52	181	190
employees	Total	Persons	126	481	536
	Female employee ratio	%	41	38	35
	Male	Persons	73	288	334
Total number of regular employees	Female	Persons	52	144	162
	Total	Persons	125	432	496
Total number	Male	Persons	1	12	12
of temporary	Female	Persons	0	37	28
employees (*2)	Total	Persons	1	49	40
Total number	Male	Persons	4	5	4
of part-time employees	Female	Persons	0	0	0
	Male	Persons	11	14	17
Tablessel	Female	Persons	0	1	1
Total number of executives	Total	Persons	11	15	18
	Female employee ratio	%	0	7	6
Number of	Korea	Persons	8	12	14
executives (*3)	Overseas	Persons	0	0	0

(*1) The figures have been recalculated based on retiree criteria from the total employee count.

(*2) Non-regular employees include both registered and unregistered personnel.

(*3) The Samyang Holdings' business report incorporates both registered and unregistered executives.

Employee Status by Job Category and Position

Classification —	Executives	or higher	Managers	or higher	Below ma	nagers
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female
Supervising position	13	1	24	11	0	0
Other positions	4	0	104	46	201	132

Parental Leaves and Welfare Benefits

Classificati	on	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Employees who used	Male	Persons	0	1	2
parental leaves (*1)	Female	Persons	3	8	5
Employees who	Male	Persons	0	1	0
returned after parental leaves (*2)	Female	Persons	6	2	7
Employees who worked	Male	Persons	0	0	2
for 12 months or more after returning from parental leaves	Female	Persons	6	0	4
Rate of return to work	Male	%	100	100	100
after parental leaves (*3)	Female	%	100	100	86
Welfare expenses (*4)		KRW million	2,220	5,633	6,762

(*1) Employees who used parental leaves during the year

(*2) Employees who returned during the year

(*3) Early returners from parental leaves officially considered as to have returned in the returning year

(*4) Welfare expenses including the sum of expenses paid by the company and in-house labor welfare funds

(▲) (Ξ) (৩)

SOCIAL

APPENDIX + ESG Facts & Figures

ESG Facts & Figures

Fair Performance Evaluation and Compensation

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Regular performance evaluation rate (male)	%	100	100	100
Regular performance evaluation rate (female)	%	100	100	100
Regular performance evaluation rate (regular employees)	%	100	100	100
Total salary amount	KRW million	10,874	31,616	35,722
Average salary per employee	KRW million	82	66	72

Classification	2020(*)	2021(*)	2022
Ratio of the starting salary of new	P4:116%	P4:116%	P4:116%
employees to minimum wage at	P3:171%	P3:186%	P3:177%
business sites (male)	R:188%	R:202%	R:193%
Ratio of the starting salary of new	P4:116%	P4:116%	P4:116%
employees to minimum wage at	P3:171%	P3:186%	P3:177%
business sites (female)	R:188%	R:202%	R:193%

(*) Recalculated due to errors in data aggregation

* We operate a rank-based salary system, with the following job rank system.



earch F	Positions
	Title
	Expert
	Team manager
	General manager Deputy manager Section manager Assistant manager Employee

Diversity of Employees

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Ratio of socially disadvantaged persons among employees	%	0.7	0.2	2.1
Disabled persons	Persons	0	0	1
Foreigners	Persons	0	0	0
Veterans	Persons	1	1	10
Number of males in managerial positions	Persons	72	178	215
Ratio of males in managerial positions	%	67.3	65.4	67.4
Number of females in managerial positions	Persons	35	94	104
Ratio of females in managerial positions	%	32.7	34.6	32.6
Employees below 30 years of age	Persons	27	107	131
Employees between 30-50 years of age	Persons	86	279	339
Employees above 50 years of age	Persons	8	54	66
Average years of service	Year	10.4	10.1	10.3

Number of Grievances by Type

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Sexual harassment	Cases	0	0	0
Workplace bullying	Cases	0	0	0
Others	Cases	0	0	0

ESG Facts & Figures

Governance

Creation and Distribution of Economic Values

Classification (*1)	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Business areas	EA	4	4	4
Number of business sites in Korea	EA	36	37	37
Number of overseas business site	EA	11	10	10
Number of holdings services provided (*2)	EA	1	2	2
Number of bio products (*2)	EA	0	4	4
Sales of business sites in Korea	KRW million	2,516,297	3,278,777	3,080,815
Sales of overseas business sites	KRW	127,337	211,194	194,753
Sales-related expenses (cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses)	KRW million	2,300,890	2,755,614	3,184,454
Interest expenses for creditors and lenders	KRW million	28,870	26,606	33,768
Income tax expenses	KRW million	27,416	70,785	20,814
Income tax paid	KRW million	13,630	44,467	57,557
Income tax burdened	KRW million	22,740	65,767	20,038
Donations	KRW million	1,242	1,458	794
Total dividends	KRW million	17,429	23,234	27,103

(*1) Based on consolidated financial statements

(*2) Based on separate financial statements

Ethical and Compliance Management

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Number of business sites that performed risk assessment (regular audit) (*)	EA	10	9	10
Number of unfair transaction violations	Cases	0	0	0
Monetary losses from unfair transactions	KRW	0	0	0
Number of online and offline reports received	Cases	4	9	4
Rate of complaints handled	%	100	100	100

(*) Conduct a risk assessment of every business site once or every two years. Recalculated the method of describing from the workplace subject to evaluation to the workplace that was evaluated.

Governance

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Total	Persons	5	6	7
Number of inside directors	Persons	2	3	3
Number of outside directors	Persons	3	3	4
Number of female directors within the Board of Directors	Persons	0	0	0
Number of the Board of Directors meetings held	Time	6	13	9
Number of agendas discussed	Cases	6	18	11

Transparent Disclosure of Information

Classification	Unit	2020	2021	2022
Payroll of employee with the highest salary	KRW million	1,773	2,142	2,876
Average payroll of employees (excluding the CEO)	KRW million	82	66	72
Payroll of the highest salary/average payroll of employees	Factor	22	32	40
Number of shares owned by the CEO (common shares)	Shares	0	0	0
Number of shares owned by inside directors (common shares)	Shares	412,390	412,390	412,390
Annual Investor Relations (Irs)	Cases	5	0	3

rt	OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL
----	----------	-------------	---------------	--------

▲ (三) (5)

+ GRI Index

APPENDIX

GRI Index

Samyang Holdings published its sustainability report for the period between January 1 and December 31, 2022, according to the GRI Standard 2021. Additionally, Samyang Holdings has complied with the nine requirements under GRI 1 (2021). There are no sector standards applied separately, as the standards for chemicals, food and beverages, pharmaceuticals, and medical equipment and services sectors have not been announced. Regarding material issues of Samyang Holdings for the 2022 reporting period, refer to the 'Materiality Assessment' section in this report.



	Index	Description	Remarks
Organizatio	n and its reporting practices		
2-1	Organizational details	5	
2-2	Entities included in the organization's sustainability reporting	2	
2-3	Reporting period, frequency, and contact point	2	
2-4	Restatements of information	Cycle of corrections made	
2-5	External assurance	106	
Activities an	nd workers		
2-6	Activities, value chain, and other business relationships	5~11	
2-7	Employees	67,97~98	
2-8	Workers who are not employees	97~98	
Governance	2		
2-9	Governance structure and composition	76~80	
2-10	Nomination and selection of the highest governance body	76~80	
2-11	Chair of the highest governance body	76~80	
2-12	Role of the highest governance body in overseeing the management of impacts	76~80	
2-13	Delegation of responsibility for managing impacts	76~80	
2-14	Role of the highest governance body in sustainability reporting	79	
2-15	Conflict of interests	76~80	
2-16	Communication of critical concerns	76~80	
2-17	Collective knowledge of the highest governance body	76~77	
2-18	Evaluation of the performance of the highest governance body	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topi
2-19	Remuneration policies	80	
2-20	Processes to determine remuneration	80	

	Index	Description	Remarks
2-21	Annual total compensation ratio	100	No information disclosed regarding the rate of increase in total annual remuneration of the individual who receives the highest salary compared to the median rate of increase in total annual remuneration of all employees (excluding the individual with the highest salary) of the organization
Strategy, pol	licies, and practices		
2-22	Statement on sustainable development strategy	4	
2-23	Policy commitments	13, 23 (Environmental Management Policy), 24 (Green Purchasing Policy), 25 (Biodiversity Policy), 38 (Safety and Health Policy), 60 (Human Rights Management Policy), 73 (Code of Conduct for Suppliers), 79, 83-85	
2-24	Embedding policy commitments	13, 23 (Environmental Management Policy), 24 (Green Purchasing Policy), 25 (Biodiversity Policy), 38 (Safety and Health Policy), 60 (Human Rights Management Policy), 73 (Code of Conduct for Suppliers), 79, 83–85	
2-25	Procedure to Resolve Negative Impacts	17, 62, 84~85	
2-26	Procedure to Request Advisory and Raise Concerns	79	
2-27	Compliance with laws and regulations	85, 96, 100	
2-28	Membership associations	105	
Stakeholder	engagement		
2-29	Approach to stakeholder engagement	17, stakeholder engagement cases for each topic explained separately	
2-30	Collective bargaining agreements	62	

GRI Index

Material Topic

	Index	Description	Remarks
GRI 3: Disclo	osures on Material Topics		
3-1	Process to determine material topics		
3-2	List of material topics	18~21 First page of each topic	
3-3	Management of material topics		

Material issues

	Index	Description	Remarks
GRI 201: Eco	nomic Performance		
201-1	Direct economic value generated and distributed (EVG&D)	82	
201-2	Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change	28	
201-3	Defined benefit plan obligations and other retirement plans	70	
201-4	Financial assistance received from government	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic
GRI 205: Anti	-corruption		
205-1	Operations assessed for risks related to corruption	85,100	
205-2	Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and procedures	84~85	
205-3	Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken	85,100	
GRI 206: Anti	-competitive Behavior		
206-1	Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust, and monopoly practices	100	
GRI 305: Emi	ssions		
305-1	Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions	31	
305-2	Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions	31	
305-3	Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic
305-4	GHG emissions intensity	31	
305-5	Reduction of GHG emissions	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic
305-6	Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS)	33	

	Index	Description	Remarks
305-7	Nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx), and other significant air emissions	33	
GRI 306: Was	te		
306-1	Waste generation and significant waste-related impacts	32, 34	
306-2	Management of significant waste-related impacts	34	
306-3	Waste generated	34,96	
306-4	Waste diverted from disposal	96	
306-5	Waste directed to disposal	96	
GRI 402: Lab	or/Management Relations		
402-1	Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes	62	
GRI 403: Occ	upational Safety and Health		
403-1	Occupational safety and health management system	38~44	
403-2	Hazard identification, risk assessment, and incident investigation	38~44	
403-3	Occupational health services	65~66	
403-4	Worker participation, consultation, and communication on occupational safety and health	38~44	
403-5	Worker training on occupational safety and health	38~44	
403-6	Promotion of worker health	65~66	
403-7	Prevention and mitigation of occupational safety and health impacts directly linked by business relationships	38~44	
403-8	Workers covered by an occupational safety and health management system	38~44	
403-9	Work-related injuries	38~44	
403-10	Work-related ill health	38~44	
GRI 405: Dive	ersity and Equal Opportunity		
405-1	Diversity of governance bodies and employees	76,99	
405-2	Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic
GRI 406: Non	-discrimination		
406-1	Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken	62,99	

+ GRI Index

GRI Index

(▲) (Ξ) (৩)

Material issues

	Index	Description	Remarks		
GRI 407: Fre	GRI 407: Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining				
407-1	Operations and suppliers in which the right to freedom of association and collective bargaining may be at risk	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic		
GRI 413: Loc	al Communities				
413-1	Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs	54~58			
413-2	Operations with significant actual and potential negative impacts on local communities	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic		
GRI 416: Cus	tomer Safety and Health				
416-1	Assessment of the safety and health impacts of product and service categories	N/A	No GRI Topic Standards related to the material topic		
416-2	Incidents of non-compliance concerning the safety and health impacts of products and services	48~49,100			
GRI 417: Mai	rketing and Labeling				
417-1	Requirements for product and service information and labeling	47~49,100			
417-2	Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service information and labeling	48~49			
417-3	Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing communications	48~49			
GRI 418: Cus	tomer Privacy				
418-1	Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data	51			

Non - Material issues

	Index	Description	Remarks
GRI 202: Mark	et Presence		
202-1	Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender compared to local minimum wage	99	
202-2	Proportion of senior management hired from the local community	98	
GRI 203: Indir	ect Economic Impacts		
203-1	Infrastructure investments and services supported	54~58	
203-2	Significant indirect economic impacts	54~58	
GRI 302: Ener	gy		
302-1	Energy consumption within the organization	33	
302-3	Energy intensity	33	
302-4	Reduction of energy consumption	33	
GRI 303: Wate	er and Effluents		
303-1	Interactions with water as a shared resource	32	
303-2	Management of water discharge-related impacts	32	
303-3	Water withdrawal	32	
303-4	Water discharge	32	
GRI 401: Emp	loyment		
401-1	New employees hired and employee turnover	97~98	
401-2	Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary or part-time employees	65~66, 70	
401-3	Parental leave	98	
GRI 404: Train	ing and Education		
404-1	Average hours of training per year per employee	70	
404-2	Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance programs	68~70	
404-3	Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews	99	

OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	AP

PENDIX

SASB

(■)(≡)(5)

The Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) refers to the sustainability accounting standards for each industry announced by the SASB in the United States in 2011. The SASB presents sustainability risk topics that are highly associated with each industry and recommends companies to continuously report on the topics and communicate with investors and stakeholders. The SASB Index of Samyang Holdings was prepared according to the standards for biotechnology and pharmaceuticals industries, which are highly associated with our key businesses.

Classification	Index	Code	Report Page
	Discussion, by world region, of management processes for ensuring quality and patient safety during clinical trials	HC- BP- 210a.1	45~48
Safety of Clinical Trial Participants	Number of FDA Sponsor Inspections related to clinical trial management and pharmacovigilance and pharmacovigilance that resulted in: (1) Voluntary Action Indicated (VAI) and (2) Official Action Indicated (OAI)	HC- BP- 210a.2	48
	Total amount of monetary losses as a result of legal proceedings associated with clinical trials in developing countries	HC- BP- 210a.3	48
	List of products listed in the Food and Drug Administration's (FDA) MedWatch Safety Alerts for Human Medical Products database	HC- BP- 250a.1	48
	Number of fatalities associated with products as reported in the FDA Adverse Event Reporting System	HC- BP- 250a.2	48
Drug Safety	Number of recalls issued, total units recalled	HC- BP- 250a.3	48
	Total amount of product accepted for takeback, reuse, or disposal	HC- BP- 250a.4	48
	Number of FDA enforcement actions taken in response to violations of current Good Manufacturing Practices (cGMP), by type	HC- BP- 250a.5	48
Counterfeit Drugs Description of methods and technologies used to maintain the traceability of products throughout the supply chain and prevent co		HC- BP- 260a.1	48
	Total amount of monetary losses as a result of legal proceedings associated with false marketing claims	HC- BP- 270a.1	48
Ethical Marketing	Description of the code of ethics governing the promotion of off-label use of products	HC- BP- 270a.2	48
Employee Recruitment Development, and Retention	Discussion of talent recruitment and retention efforts for scientists and research and development personnel	HC-BP-330a.1	67,90~91
De la construcción de la	Total amount of monetary losses as a result of legal proceedings associated with corruption and bribery	HC- BP- 510a.1	100
Business Ethics	Description of the code of ethics governing interactions with health care professionals	HC- BP- 510a.2	48,83~84



104

APPENDIX + Awards and Associations

Awards and Associations

Awards

(▲) (Ξ) (৩)

Year	Award Details
	Won the Main Pharmaceutical Package Design Award at the '2022 iF Design Awards' with 'Croquis®', a lifting thread brand (Samyang Holdings Biopharm)
2022	Won the Environment Award at the '27th Daejeon Environment Day Commemoration Event' (Samyang Holdings Biopharm MD Plant)
	Won the Minister of Environment Award for Environmental Information Disclosure at the '2022 Green Finance Business Awards' (Samyang Corporation Ulsan Plant 1)
	Received a citation for 'contribution to activating environmental management' (Samyang Corporation Incheon Plant 2)
	Won the Main Award at the Red Dot Awards with 'Croquies', a lifting thread brand (Samyang Holdings Biopharm)
2021	Won the Grand Awards for the Food Ingredients and Chemical Categories with 'Specialty Platform' and 'AM BU Website' at Web Awards Korea 2021 (Samyang Corporation)
	Won the Grand Award for Brand Most Trusted by Consumers in the Arthritis Drug Category (Rheumastop®)
	Won the Minister of Health and Welfare Award at the '2021 National Social Welfare Sharing Contest' (Samnam Petrochemical)
	Won the Grand Award for Manufacturing at the '2020 Korea Brand Awards' (Samyang Corporation Q.one Sangkwaehwan (EASY TOMORROW))
2020	Received a ministerial citation at the 'Leaders of Resource Circulation Awards' hosted by the Korea Environment Corporation under the Ministry of Environment (Samyang Corporation Ulsan Plant 2)
	Won the Grand Award for Social Sector at the '2020 Korea Global Brand Awards' (Samyang Corporation Asan Plant)
	Won the Grand Award for Food at the 'Web Award Korea 2019' (Q.one Sangkwaehwan (EASY TOMORROW))
	Won the Main Award for Communication at the 'iF Design Awards 2019' in Germany (Samyang Group)
2019	Acquired the World Class Product Certification from the Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy (suture, Samyang Holdings Biopharm)
	Received a citation from the Minister of Health and Welfare at the '2019 Korea Sharing Awards' (Samnam Petrochemical)
	Received a citation from the Governor of Jeollanam-do Province (Hansarang Volunteer Group, Samnam Petrochemical)
	Won the 'Export Tower of 50 Million Dollars' and the 'Iron Tower Order of Industrial Service Merit' (Samyang Biopharm)
018	Received a plaque of appreciation from the Korea Organization for Parents of the Disabled (Samnam Petrochemical)
	Won the Top Award for Exemplary Chemical Facility Maintenance (Samnam Petrochemical)

Associations

Federation of Korean Industries	Korea International Trade Association
Korea-Japan Economic Association	Seoul Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Korea Management Association	Korea Association for Chief Financial Officers
Korea-U.S. Economic Council	Korea America Friendship Society
Korea Listed Companies Association	Korea Investor Relations Service
Korea Pharmaceutical and Bio-Pharma Manufacturers Association	Korea Environmental Engineers Association
Korea Biotechnology Industry Organization	Korea Environmental Preservation Association

APPENDIX

Independent Assurance Statement

To readers of Samyang Holdings 2022 Sustainability Report

Introduction

(≡)(

Korea Management Registrar (KMR) was commissioned by Samyang Holdings to conduct an independent assurance of its 2022 Sustainability Report (the "Report"). The data and its presentation in the Report is the sole responsibility of the management of Samyang Holdings. KMR's responsibility is to perform an assurance engagement as agreed upon in our agreement with Samyang Holdings and issue an assurance statement.

Scope and Standards

Samyang Holdings described its sustainability performance and activities in the Report. Our Assurance Team carried out an assurance engagement in accordance with the AA1000AS v3 and KMR's assurance standard SRV1000. We are providing a Type 2, moderate level assurance. We evaluated the adherence to the AA1000AP (2018) principles of inclusivity, materiality, responsiveness and impact, and the reliability of the information and data provided using the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Index provided below. The opinion expressed in the Assurance Statement has been formed at the materiality of the professional judgment of our Assurance Team.

Confirmation that the Report was prepared in accordance with GRI standards 2021 was included in the scope of the assurance. We have reviewed the topic-specific disclosures of standards which were identified in the materiality assessment process.

• GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards

- Universal standards
- Topic specific standards
- GRI 201: Economic Performance
- GRI 205: Anti-Corruption
- GRI 206: Anti-competitive Behavior
- GRI 305: Emissions
- GRI 306: Effluents and Waste
- GRI 402: Labor/Management Relations
- GRI 403: Occupational Safety and Health

- GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity
- GRI 406: Non-discrimination
- GRI 407: Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining

SOCIAL

- GRI 413: Local Communities
- GRI 416: Customer Safety and Health
- GRI 417: Marketing and Labeling
- GRI 418: Customer Privacy

As for the reporting boundary, the engagement excludes the data and information of Samyang Holdings' partners, suppliers and any third parties.

KMR's Approach

To perform an assurance engagement within an agreed scope of assessment using the standards outlined above, our Assurance Team undertook the following activities as part of the engagement:

- reviewed the overall Report;
- reviewed materiality assessment methodology and the assessment report;
- evaluated sustainability strategies, performance data management system, and processes;
- interviewed people in charge of preparing the Report;
- reviewed the reliability of the Report's performance data and conducted data sampling;
- assessed the reliability of information using independent external sources such as Financial Supervisory Service's DART and public databases.

Limitations and Recommendations

KMR's assurance engagement is based on the assumption that the data and information provided by Samyang Holdings to us as part of our review are provided in good faith. Limited depth of evidence gathering including inquiry and analytical procedures and limited sampling at lower levels in the organization were applied. To address this, we referred to independent external sources such as DART and National Greenhouse Gas Management System (NGMS) and public databases to challenge the quality and reliability of the information provided.

APPENDIX

Independent Assurance Statement

Conclusion and Opinion

Based on the document reviews and interviews, we had several discussions with Samyang Holdings on the revision of the Report. We reviewed the Report's final version in order to make sure that our recommendations for improvement and revision have been reflected. Based on the work performed, it is our opinion that the Report applied the GRI Standards 2021. Nothing comes to our attention to suggest that the Report was not prepared in accordance with the AA1000AP (2018) principles.

Inclusivity

(≡)(

Samyang Holdings has developed and maintained different stakeholder communication channels at all levels to announce and fulfill its responsibilities to the stakeholders. Nothing comes to our attention to suggest that there is a key stakeholder group left out in the process. The organization makes efforts to properly reflect opinions and expectations into its strategies.

Materiality

Samyang Holdings has a unique materiality assessment process to decide the impact of issues identified on its sustainability performance. We have not found any material topics left out in the process.

Responsiveness

Samyang Holdings prioritized material issues to provide a comprehensive, balanced report of performance, responses, and future plans regarding them. We did not find anything to suggest that data and information disclosed in the Report do not give a fair representation of Samyang Holdings actions.

Impact

Samyang Holdings identifies and monitors the direct and indirect impacts of material topics found through the materiality assessment, and quantifies such impacts as much as possible.

Reliability of Specific Sustainability Performance Information

SOCIAL

In addition to the adherence to AA1000AP (2018) principles, we have assessed the reliability of economic, environmental, and social performance data related to sustainability performance. We interviewed the in-charge persons and reviewed information on a sampling basis and supporting documents as well as external sources and public databases to confirm that the disclosed data is reliable. Any intentional error or misstatement is not noted from the data and information disclosed in the Report.

Competence and Independence

KMR maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures in accordance with ISO/IEC 17021 · 2015 - Requirements for bodies providing audit and certification of management systems. This engagement was carried out by an independent team of sustainability assurance professionals. KMR has no other contract with Samyang Holdings and did not provide any services to Samyang Holdings that could compromise the independence of our work.

June 2023 Seoul, Korea

CEO E. J Hway







OVERVIEW	ESG JOURNEY	ENVIRONMENTAL	SOCIAL	GOVERNANCE	APPENDIX	108
----------	-------------	---------------	--------	------------	----------	-----



Report Production

General management of report	Kim Kyoungil
Planning of report	Lim Jaehoon
Environment and safety	Lee Jeongnam, Kim Jungsub
Product quality and safety	Kim Minkyeong, Choi Boyoung, An Jisu
Information security	Shim Wooyoung
Social contribution	Lee Sangsoo, Lim Hongjo
HR system	Choi Eunjin
Human resource and recruitment	Lim Junhwan, Park Nari, Won Channyeon
Competency development	Park Haeil, Noh Gayeong
Compensation and welfare benefits	Hyun Heejung, Kwon Hyejeong
Supply chain and suppliers	Chung Seungkwon
IP strategies	Byeon Jongung, Lee Kyuok
Chemical businesses	Choi Sukyung, Jeong Seongyoon
Food businesses	Jung Youjin
Packaging businesses	Mun Junho
Governance, Board of Directors, and disclosure	Jung Seunghyun
Ethical and compliance management	Jung Sungpil, Lim Woongsik
Business portfolio and strategy	Choi Yuri, Lee Seoho

